
 

 

AGENDA 

 
 
 

Committee Administrator:     Louise Hancock  (01609 767015) 
 

Monday, 2 June 2014 
 
 
Dear Councillor 
 
NOTICE OF MEETING 
 
Meeting CABINET 

 
Date Tuesday, 10 June 2014 

 
Time 9.30 am 

 
Venue Council Chamber, Civic Centre, Stone Cross, Northallerton 

 
 
Yours sincerely 
 

P. Morton. 
 
 
Phillip Morton 
Chief Executive 
 
 
 
 
 
To: Councillors Councillors 

M S Robson (Chairman) 
Mrs B S Fortune 
N Knapton 
 

B Phillips 
P R Wilkinson (Vice-
Chairman) 
 

 
Other Members of the Council for information  

Public Document Pack



AGENDA 
  Page No 

 

1.  MINUTES 
 

 

 To confirm the decisions of the meeting held on 6 May 2014 (CA.112 - CA.115), 
previously circulated. 
 

 

2.  APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE  
 

 

Resources Management   

3.  FINANCIAL STRATEGY 2014/15 TO 2023/24 (REVISED) 
 

1 - 6 

 This report seeks approval for a revised Financial Strategy 2014/15 to 2023/24, the 
report also seeks approval to fund the costs associated from the corporate restructure 
from the One-Off Fund and the establishment of a £5,000,000 Economic Development 
Reserve.  The detailed Financial Strategy in Annex ‘A’ of this report demonstrates the 
affordability of both of these recommendations. 
 
In accepting the recommendations, Cabinet will approve and recommend to Council 
the revised Financial Strategy 2014/15 to 2023/24; the funding of costs associated with 
the Corporate Restructure from the One-off Fund, with the allocation of an additional 
£389,200 and the establishment of a £5,000,000 Economic Development Fund. 
 

 

 Relevant Ward(s): All Wards 
 

 

4.  COUNCIL PERFORMANCE 2013-14 (QUARTER 4) 
 

7 - 28 

 This report provides details on progress against the Council’s priorities and information 
on actions to address under performance. 
 
In accepting the recommendation, progress made against the Council Plan as detailed 
in Annex ‘A’ of the report will be endorsed. 
 

 

 Relevant Ward(s): All Wards 
 

 

5.  WASTE SERVICES COMPREHENSIVE REVIEW 
 

29 - 34 

 This report seeks Cabinet approval for a comprehensive review of the Council’s waste 
services to inform future strategic delivery. The preparation of a new Waste 
Management Strategy is an action in the Council’s Business Plan. 
 
In accepting the recommendation, a comprehensive review of waste services and the 
production of a Waste Management Strategy for the Council will be undertaken and the 
funding to facilitate this process will be agreed and provision will be made for £98,000 
from the Council’s One-Off Fund. 
 

 

 Relevant Ward(s): All Wards 
 

 

6.  ESTABLISHMENT OF LOCAL AUTHORITY ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT 
COMPANY 
 

35 - 38 

 This report seeks approval to investigate the potential establishment of a Council 
controlled company for the purpose of economic development. 
 
In accepting the recommendation, Cabinet will approve an investigation into the 
establishment of a Local Asset Backed Vehicle and that £25,000 for this purpose be 
allocated from the One-Off Fund. 
 

 

 Relevant Ward(s): All Wards 
 

 

Policy Implementation   



7.  REVIEW OF POLLING DISTRICTS AND POLLING PLACES - RESULTS OF 
CONSULTATION 
 

39 - 52 

 The Council currently designates polling districts and polling places for use at all 
elections taking place within its area, i.e., Parliamentary, County and Parish elections.  
The Electoral Administration Act 2006 introduced a requirement to review polling 
districts and polling places used for Parliamentary elections.  The next review must 
take place by 31 January 2015.  Following the decision of the Boundary Commission 
for Local Government to reduce the number of District Wards from 2015 there is a 
need to review electoral arrangements. 
 
In accepting the recommendation, Cabinet will approve and recommend to Council that 
the polling districts and polling places as shown in Annex ‘C’ of the report be confirmed 
for the purpose of Parliamentary elections. 
 

 

 Relevant Ward(s): All Wards 
 

 

8.  POLICY FOR THE PROVISION OF SANITARY ACCOMMODATION FOR THE 
PUBLIC 
 

53 - 62 

 This report seeks approval of a policy for the provision of sanitary accommodation for 
the public. 
 
In approving the recommendation, Cabinet will approve and recommend to Council the 
standards of sanitary accommodation as set out in the appendix to the report. 
 

 

 Relevant Ward(s): All Wards 
 

 

9.  FOOD SERVICE PLAN 2014/2016, FOOD AND ENVIRONMENT SAMPLING POLICY 
AND FOOD SAFETY ENFORCEMENT POLICY 
 

63 - 94 

 This report is required to demonstrate that food safety services and their enforcement 
within Hambleton are properly organised in order to minimise the risk of food poisoning 
or harm to consumers within Hambleton and beyond. 
 
In accepting the recommendations, Cabinet will approve and recommend to Council 
that the Food Service Plan 2014-2016, the Food and Environment Sampling Policy 
v2.1 and the Food safety Enforcement Policy be approved. 
 

 

 Relevant Ward(s): All Wards 
 

 

10.  ENVIRONMENTAL HEALTH ENFORCEMENT STRATEGY AND POLICY 
 

95 - 116 

 This report seeks approval for the latest revisions to the Environmental Health 
Enforcement Strategy and Policy. 
 
In accepting the recommendation, the revisions included in the Environmental Health 
Enforcement Strategy and Policy v4.0 will be approved. 
 

 

 Relevant Ward(s): All Wards 
 

 

11.  HEALTH AND SAFETY ENFORCEMENT POLICY - REVISION 
 

117 - 130 

 This report presents the latest revisions to the Health and Safety Enforcement Policy 
for approval. 
 
In accepting the recommendation, Cabinet will approved and recommend to Council 
that the Health and Safety Enforcement Policy v1.2 be approved. 
 

 

 Relevant Ward(s): All Wards 
 
 

 



 

12.  PUBLIC OPEN SPACE, SPORT AND RECRETATION PLANS 
 

131 - 134 

 This report seeks endorsement of the refreshed Public Open Space, Sport and 
Recreation Action Plan for Dalton. 
 
In accepting the recommendation, the Public Open Space, Sport and Recreation 
Action Plan in Annex B of the report will be endorsed. 
 

 

 Relevant Ward(s): Topcliffe 
 

 

 



  
 
HAMBLETON DISTRICT COUNCIL 
 
Report To: Cabinet 
  10 June 2014 
 
Subject: FINANCIAL STRATEGY 2014/15 TO 2023/24 (REVISED) 
 

All Wards 
Portfolio Holder for Economic Development and Finance: Councillor Peter Wilkinson 

 
 
1.0 PURPOSE AND BACKGROUND:     
 
1.1 The Financial Strategy 2014/15 to 2023/24 was originally approved by Council in 

December 2013.  However, there have been a number of significant changes in terms of 
both projected expenditure and income streams that have resulted in a requirement to 
refresh the Strategy. 

 
1.2 The key issues that have impacted upon the Financial Strategy resulting in this revision are 

summarised below: 
 

  Increased Business Rate income from the Council’s pooling arrangements. 
 

  Additional grant funding from Central Government to compensate the Council for the 
national extension of the Small Business Rate Relief Scheme. 

 

  Anticipated savings resulting from the corporate restructure. 
 
1.3 In addition to seeking approval for a revised Financial Strategy 2014/15 to 2023/24, the 

report also seeks approval to fund the costs associated from the corporate restructure from 
the One-Off Fund and the establishment of a £5,000,000 Economic Development Reserve.  
The detailed Financial Strategy in Annex ‘A’ of this report demonstrates the affordability of 
both of these recommendations. 

 
2.0 BUSINESS RATE INCOME 
 
2.1 In setting the Council’s budget for 2014/15 the Council agreed to enter into a pooling 

arrangement for business rates with North Yorkshire County Council and all of the other 
District Councils in North Yorkshire, with the exception of Harrogate Borough Council and 
Selby District Council.  The financial benefit to the Council of this relationship is 
approximately £150,000 per year. 

 
3.0 CENTRAL GOVERNMENT FUNDING 
 
3.1 In the Autumn Statement the Chancellor announced an extension of the Small Business 

Rate Relief Scheme which gives a discount of up to £1,000 per small business.  At the time 
of setting the Financial Strategy it was envisaged that the Council would be required to fund 
this scheme at an estimated cost of £200,000.  However, in the final grant settlement 
announced in February 2014 the Council will receive an ongoing grant to fully offset the cost 
of this scheme. 

 
 
 

Page 1

Agenda Item 3



4.0 CORPORATE RESTRUCTURE: 
 
4.1 The corporate restructure has exceeded the financial savings target set by the Leader by 

£11,000, with an ongoing annual saving of £511,000.  The costs associated with this for both 
redundancy payments and pension contributions amount to £918,000. This equates to a 
payback period of 1.8 years and represents excellent value for money; Council policy in 
respect of payback period allows up to 5 years. 

 
4.2 Council has already approved funding for the restructure of the Senior Management Team of 

£528,800.  An additional £389,200 will be required to be allocated from the One-off Fund to 
fund the cost of the entire restructure.  Presently it is envisaged that the full cost of the 
restructure can be paid for from an underspend against the revenue budget in 2013/14. 

 
5.0 REVISED FINANCIAL STRATEGY: 
 
5.1 The detailed Financial Strategy is presented in Annex ‘A’.   However, the overall impact of 

these changes is to increase the reserves of the Council over the 10 years of the Strategy by 
£5,262,921. 

 
5.2 A key strategic priority for the Council is economic development and increasing business 

within the District.  It is therefore proposed to use this additional resource to establish a 
£5,000,000 Economic Development Fund. 

 
6.0 LINK TO CORPORATE PRIORITIES: 
 
6.1 A robust Financial Strategy can assist with the Council’s priorities of reducing costs and 

improving the productivity of services. 
 
7.0 RISK ASSESMENT:  
 
7.1 There are no risks associated with approving these recommendations. 
 
8.0 RECOMMENDATIONS: 
 
8.1 It is recommended that Cabinet recommend to Council approval of:-  
 

(1) the revised Financial Strategy 2014/15 to 2023/24; 
 
(2) the funding of costs associated with the Corporate Restructure from the One-off Fund, 

with the allocation of an additional £389,200. 
 
(3) the establishment of a £5,000,000 Economic Development Fund. 

 
 
JUSTIN IVES 
 
Background papers: Financial Strategy 2014/15 to 2023/24 Cabinet Report November 2013 -

Item1. 
 
Author ref: JI 
 
Contact: Justin Ives 
 Director of Support Services and Deputy Chief Executive 
 Direct Line No: 767022 
 

100614 Revised Financial Strategy 

Page 2



F
IN

A
N

C
IA

L
 S

T
R

A
T

E
G

Y
 

A
N

N
E

X
 A

A
S

S
U

M
P

T
IO

N
S

2
0

1
4

/1
5

2
0

1
5

/1
6

2
0

1
6

/1
7

2
0

1
7

/1
8

2
0

1
8

/1
9

2
0

1
9

/2
0

2
0

2
0

/2
1

2
0

2
1

/2
2

2
0

2
2

/2
3

2
0

2
3

/2
4

In
fl

a
ti

o
n

%
%

%
%

%
%

%
%

%
%

C
o

u
n

ci
l T

a
x 

b
a

se
1

.1
0

0
.6

0
0

.6
0

0
.6

0
0

.6
0

0
.6

0
0

.6
0

0
.6

0
0

.6
0

0
.6

0
G

o
ve

rn
m

e
n

t 
su

p
p

o
rt

-1
1

.0
0

-1
0

.0
0

-6
.0

0
-6

.0
0

-5
.0

0
-5

.0
0

0
.0

0
0

.0
0

0
.0

0
0

.0
0

In
te

re
st

 r
a

te
s

0
.2

5
0

.5
0

0
.7

5
1

.5
0

1
.5

0
2

.0
0

2
.0

0
2

.0
0

2
.0

0
2

.0
0

B
u

d
g

e
t 

in
cr

e
a

se
2

.5
0

2
.5

0
2

.5
0

2
.5

0
2

.5
0

2
.5

0
2

.5
0

2
.5

0
2

.5
0

2
.5

0

C
o

u
n

c
il

 t
a

x

R
e

ta
in

e
d

 b
u

si
n

e
ss

 r
a

te
 in

cr
e

a
se

 a
b

o
ve

 R
P

I
1

.0
0

1
.0

0
1

.0
0

1
.0

0
1

.0
0

1
.0

0
1

.0
0

1
.0

0
1

.0
0

1
.0

0

C
o

u
n

ci
l t

a
x 

in
cr

e
a

se
0

.0
0

0
.0

0
2

.5
0

2
.5

0
2

.5
0

2
.5

0
2

.5
0

2
.5

0
2

.5
0

2
.5

0

C
o

u
n

ci
l T

a
x 

p
e

r 
h

o
u

se
h

o
ld

8
9

.4
8

8
9

.4
8

9
1

.7
2

9
4

.0
1

9
6

.3
6

9
8

.7
7

1
0

1
.2

4
1

0
3

.7
7

1
0

6
.3

6
1

0
9

.0
2

N
u

m
b

e
r 

o
f 

b
a

n
d

 D
 p

ro
p

e
rt

ie
s

3
4

,0
2

1
3

4
,2

2
5

3
4

,4
3

0
3

4
,6

3
7

3
4

,8
4

5
3

5
,0

5
4

3
5

,2
6

4
3

5
,4

7
6

3
5

,6
8

9
3

5
,9

0
3

In
cr

e
a

se
 in

 B
a

n
d

 D
 P

ro
p

e
rt

ie
s

5
7

9
2

0
4

2
0

5
2

0
7

2
0

8
2

0
9

2
1

0
2

1
2

2
1

3
2

1
4

G
o

ve
rn

m
e

n
t 

S
u

p
p

o
rt

R
e

ta
in

e
d

 B
u

si
n

e
ss

 R
a

te
s 

- 
A

d
d

iti
o

n
a

l
3

0
0

,0
0

0
3

0
0

,0
0

0
3

0
0

,0
0

0
3

0
0

,0
0

0
3

0
0

,0
0

0
3

0
0

,0
0

0
3

0
0

,0
0

0
3

0
0

,0
0

0
3

0
0

,0
0

0
3

0
0

,0
0

0
R

e
ta

in
e

d
 B

u
si

n
e

ss
 R

a
te

s 
- 

S
3

1
 g

ra
n

t
2

0
0

,0
0

0
2

0
0

,0
0

0
2

0
0

,0
0

0
2

0
0

,0
0

0
2

0
0

,0
0

0
2

0
0

,0
0

0
2

0
0

,0
0

0
2

0
0

,0
0

0
2

0
0

,0
0

0
2

0
0

,0
0

0
R

e
ta

in
e

d
 B

u
si

n
e

ss
 R

a
te

s
1

,8
5

9
,2

4
0

1
,9

1
0

,5
5

7
1

,9
5

5
,9

0
0

1
,9

9
5

,1
0

0
2

,0
4

2
,3

8
3

2
,0

7
5

,7
0

0
2

,1
1

7
,2

0
0

2
,1

5
9

,5
0

0
2

,2
0

2
,7

0
0

2
,2

0
2

,7
0

0
N

e
w

 R
S

G
2

,1
8

5
,6

2
3

1
,5

1
2

,1
9

6
1

,2
6

7
,3

0
0

1
,0

4
4

,4
0

0
1

,0
0

0
,0

0
0

5
1

6
,4

0
0

4
7

4
,9

0
0

4
3

2
,7

0
0

3
8

9
,4

0
0

3
8

9
,4

0
0

C
o

u
n

ci
l T

a
x 

3
,0

4
4

,1
9

9
3

,0
6

2
,4

6
4

3
,1

5
7

,8
6

0
3

,2
5

6
,2

2
7

3
,3

5
7

,6
5

9
3

,4
6

2
,2

5
0

3
,5

7
0

,0
9

9
3

,6
8

1
,3

0
8

3
,7

9
5

,9
8

0
3

,9
1

4
,2

2
5

7
,5

8
9

,0
6

2
6

,9
8

5
,2

1
7

6
,8

8
1

,0
6

0
6

,7
9

5
,7

2
7

7
,9

0
0

,0
4

2
6

,5
5

4
,3

5
0

6
,6

6
2

,1
9

9
6

,7
7

3
,5

0
8

6
,8

8
8

,0
8

0
7

,0
0

6
,3

2
5

R
E

V
E

N
U

E
 B

U
D

G
E

T
 a

n
d

 C
O

U
N

C
IL

 T
A

X

2
0

1
4

/1
5

2
0

1
5

/1
6

2
0

1
6

/1
7

2
0

1
7

/1
8

2
0

1
8

/1
9

2
0

1
9

/2
0

2
0

2
0

/2
1

2
0

2
1

/2
2

2
0

2
2

/2
3

2
0

2
3

/2
4

N
E

T
 R

E
V

E
N

U
E

 B
U

D
G

E
T

7
,2

3
7

,3
4

7
7

,3
4

4
,0

8
0

7
,5

6
7

,6
8

2
7

,6
0

6
,8

7
4

7
,6

4
7

,0
4

6
7

,8
3

8
,2

2
2

8
,0

3
4

,1
7

8
8

,2
3

5
,0

3
2

8
,4

4
0

,9
0

8
8

,6
5

1
,9

3
1

F
IN

A
N

C
E

D
 B

Y
 :

E
xt

e
rn

a
l s

u
p

p
o

rt
4

,5
4

4
,8

6
3

3
,9

2
2

,7
5

3
3

,7
2

3
,2

0
0

3
,5

3
9

,5
0

0
4

,5
4

2
,3

8
3

3
,0

9
2

,1
0

0
3

,0
9

2
,1

0
0

3
,0

9
2

,2
0

0
3

,0
9

2
,1

0
0

3
,0

9
2

,1
0

0
C

o
u

n
ci

l t
a

x
3

,0
4

4
,1

9
9

3
,0

6
2

,4
6

4
3

,1
5

7
,8

6
0

3
,2

5
6

,2
2

7
3

,3
5

7
,6

5
9

3
,4

6
2

,2
5

0
3

,5
7

0
,0

9
9

3
,6

8
1

,3
0

8
3

,7
9

5
,9

8
0

3
,9

1
4

,2
2

5
C

o
n

tr
ib

u
tio

n
 (

to
)/

fr
o

m
 C

o
u

n
ci

l T
a

xp
a

ye
r 

R
e

se
rv

e
(3

5
1

,7
1

6
)

3
5

8
,8

6
3

6
8

6
,6

2
2

8
1

1
,1

4
7

(2
5

2
,9

9
6

)
1

,2
8

3
,8

7
2

1
,3

7
1

,9
7

9
1

,4
6

1
,5

2
5

1
,5

5
2

,8
2

8
1

,6
4

5
,6

0
6

7
,2

3
7

,3
4

7
7

,3
4

4
,0

8
0

7
,5

6
7

,6
8

2
7

,6
0

6
,8

7
4

7
,6

4
7

,0
4

6
7

,8
3

8
,2

2
2

8
,0

3
4

,1
7

8
8

,2
3

5
,0

3
2

8
,4

4
0

,9
0

8
8

,6
5

1
,9

3
1

S
T

A
T

E
M

E
N

T
 o

f 
R

E
S

E
R

V
E

S

C
o

u
n

c
il

 T
a

x
p

a
ye

r
2

0
1

4
/1

5
2

0
1

5
/1

6
2

0
1

6
/1

7
2

0
1

7
/1

8
2

0
1

8
/1

9
2

0
1

9
/2

0
2

0
2

0
/2

1
2

0
2

1
/2

2
2

0
2

2
/2

3
2

0
2

3
/2

4
O

p
e

n
in

g
 b

a
la

n
ce

7
,7

1
7

,7
9

4
4

,1
8

2
,8

4
4

5
,2

3
1

,5
3

2
6

,2
4

7
,1

8
4

5
,2

1
6

,4
2

8
7

,1
6

0
,3

7
2

7
,6

5
6

,8
6

3
7

,0
4

3
,5

7
9

6
,3

1
9

,2
2

6
6

,4
7

7
,0

1
1

A
d

d
 :

  
N

e
w

 h
o

m
e

s 
b

o
n

u
s 

1
,0

6
3

,1
1

6
1

,3
0

7
,8

6
1

1
,5

5
6

,0
9

3
1

,4
9

0
,5

9
3

1
,4

0
0

,0
0

0
1

,4
0

0
,0

0
0

1
,4

0
0

,0
0

0
1

,4
0

0
,0

0
0

1
,4

0
0

,0
0

0
1

,4
0

0
,0

0
0

A
d

d
 :

 I
n

te
re

st
 o

n
 b

a
la

n
ce

s
5

0
,2

1
8

9
9

,6
9

0
1

4
6

,1
8

1
2

8
9

,7
9

8
2

9
0

,9
4

8
3

8
0

,3
6

4
3

5
8

,6
9

4
3

3
7

,1
7

2
3

1
0

,6
1

2
2

8
0

,7
3

1
8

,8
3

1
,1

2
8

5
,5

9
0

,3
9

5
6

,9
3

3
,8

0
6

8
,0

2
7

,5
7

5
6

,9
0

7
,3

7
6

8
,9

4
0

,7
3

6
9

,4
1

5
,5

5
7

8
,7

8
0

,7
5

1
8

,0
2

9
,8

3
8

8
,1

5
7

,7
4

2
L

e
ss

: 
T

ra
n

sf
e

rs
 t

o
 s

u
p

p
o

rt
 C

o
u

n
ci

l T
a

x
(3

5
1

,7
1

6
)

3
5

8
,8

6
3

6
8

6
,6

2
2

8
1

1
,1

4
7

(2
5

2
,9

9
6

)
1

,2
8

3
,8

7
2

1
,3

7
1

,9
7

9
1

,4
6

1
,5

2
5

1
,5

5
2

,8
2

8
1

,6
4

5
,6

0
6

L
e

ss
: 

T
ra

n
sf

e
rs

 t
o

 O
n

e
 O

ff
 F

u
n

d
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
L

e
ss

: 
T

ra
n

sf
e

rs
 t

o
 R

&
M

 F
u

n
d

0
0

0
1

,0
0

0
,0

0
0

0
0

0
1

,0
0

0
,0

0
0

0
0

Page 3



L
e

ss
: 

T
ra

n
sf

e
rs

 t
o

 C
o

m
p

u
te

r 
F

u
n

d
0

0
0

1
,0

0
0

,0
0

0
0

0
1

,0
0

0
,0

0
0

0
0

0
L

e
ss

: 
T

ra
n

sf
e

rs
 t

o
 G

ra
n

ts
 F

u
n

d
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
L

e
ss

: 
T

ra
n

sf
e

rs
 t

o
 E

co
n

o
m

ic
 D

e
ve

lo
p

m
e

n
t 

F
u

n
d

5
,0

0
0

,0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

4
,1

8
2

,8
4

4
5

,2
3

1
,5

3
2

6
,2

4
7

,1
8

4
5

,2
1

6
,4

2
8

7
,1

6
0

,3
7

2
7

,6
5

6
,8

6
3

7
,0

4
3

,5
7

9
6

,3
1

9
,2

2
6

6
,4

7
7

,0
1

1
6

,5
1

2
,1

3
6

R
e

p
a

ir
s

 a
n

d
 R

e
n

e
w

a
ls

 F
u

n
d

O
p

e
n

in
g

 b
a

la
n

ce
3

,7
9

0
,5

9
6

3
,2

7
9

,2
4

6
2

,7
3

3
,2

8
7

2
,2

0
0

,4
5

5
2

,6
4

7
,4

7
6

2
,1

0
7

,0
7

3
1

,5
1

0
,9

6
0

9
4

6
,8

4
4

1
,3

4
6

,4
2

5
7

5
7

,3
9

6
A

d
d

: 
T

ra
n

sf
e

rs
 f

ro
m

 T
a

xp
a

ye
rs

 R
e

se
rv

e
0

0
0

1
,0

0
0

,0
0

0
0

0
0

1
,0

0
0

,0
0

0
0

0

3
,7

9
0

,5
9

6
3

,2
7

9
,2

4
6

2
,7

3
3

,2
8

7
3

,2
0

0
,4

5
5

2
,6

4
7

,4
7

6
2

,1
0

7
,0

7
3

1
,5

1
0

,9
6

0
1

,9
4

6
,8

4
4

1
,3

4
6

,4
2

5
7

5
7

,3
9

6
L

e
ss

 :
 R

e
p

a
ir

s
4

2
4

,3
5

0
4

3
4

,9
5

9
4

4
5

,8
3

3
4

5
6

,9
7

9
4

6
8

,4
0

3
4

8
0

,1
1

3
4

9
2

,1
1

6
5

0
4

,4
1

9
5

1
7

,0
2

9
5

2
9

,9
5

5
L

e
ss

: 
R

e
n

e
w

a
ls

 -
 H

o
u

si
n

g
 a

n
d

 P
la

n
n

in
g

3
6

,0
0

0
3

6
,0

0
0

3
6

,0
0

0
3

6
,0

0
0

3
6

,0
0

0
3

6
,0

0
0

3
6

,0
0

0
3

6
,0

0
0

3
6

,0
0

0
3

6
,0

0
0

L
e

ss
: 

R
e

n
e

w
a

ls
 -

 L
e

is
u

re
0

2
4

,0
0

0
0

2
4

,0
0

0
0

4
4

,0
0

0
0

2
4

,0
0

0
0

0
L

e
ss

: 
R

e
n

e
w

a
ls

 -
 C

o
rp

o
ra

te
5

1
,0

0
0

5
1

,0
0

0
5

1
,0

0
0

3
6

,0
0

0
3

6
,0

0
0

3
6

,0
0

0
3

6
,0

0
0

3
6

,0
0

0
3

6
,0

0
0

3
6

,0
0

0
3

,2
7

9
,2

4
6

2
,7

3
3

,2
8

7
2

,2
0

0
,4

5
5

2
,6

4
7

,4
7

6
2

,1
0

7
,0

7
3

1
,5

1
0

,9
6

0
9

4
6

,8
4

4
1

,3
4

6
,4

2
5

7
5

7
,3

9
6

1
5

5
,4

4
1

C
o

m
p

u
te

r 
F

u
n

d
O

p
e

n
in

g
 b

a
la

n
ce

1
,6

9
8

,0
0

0
1

,2
2

3
,0

0
0

9
2

3
,0

0
0

6
2

3
,0

0
0

1
,3

2
3

,0
0

0
1

,0
2

3
,0

0
0

7
2

3
,0

0
0

1
,4

2
3

,0
0

0
1

,2
2

3
,0

0
0

1
,0

2
3

,0
0

0
A

d
d

: 
T

ra
n

sf
e

rs
 f

ro
m

 C
o

u
n

ci
l T

a
xp

a
ye

rs
 R

e
se

rv
e

0
0

0
1

,0
0

0
,0

0
0

0
0

1
,0

0
0

,0
0

0
0

0
1

,6
9

8
,0

0
0

1
,2

2
3

,0
0

0
9

2
3

,0
0

0
1

,6
2

3
,0

0
0

1
,3

2
3

,0
0

0
1

,0
2

3
,0

0
0

1
,7

2
3

,0
0

0
1

,4
2

3
,0

0
0

1
,2

2
3

,0
0

0
1

,0
2

3
,0

0
0

Le
ss

 :
 P

a
ym

en
ts

 in
 y

ea
r

4
7

5
,0

0
0

3
0

0
,0

0
0

3
0

0
,0

0
0

3
0

0
,0

0
0

3
0

0
,0

0
0

3
0

0
,0

0
0

3
0

0
,0

0
0

2
0

0
,0

0
0

2
0

0
,0

0
0

2
0

0
,0

0
0

1
,2

2
3

,0
0

0
9

2
3

,0
0

0
6

2
3

,0
0

0
1

,3
2

3
,0

0
0

1
,0

2
3

,0
0

0
7

2
3

,0
0

0
1

,4
2

3
,0

0
0

1
,2

2
3

,0
0

0
1

,0
2

3
,0

0
0

8
2

3
,0

0
0

G
ra

n
ts

 F
u

n
d

O
p

e
n

in
g

 b
a

la
n

ce
5

2
0

,5
0

8
4

2
0

,5
0

8
3

2
0

,5
0

8
2

2
0

,5
0

8
1

2
0

,5
0

8
0

0
0

0
0

A
d

d
: 

T
ra

n
sf

e
rs

 f
ro

m
 C

o
u

n
ci

l T
a

xp
a

ye
rs

 R
e

se
rv

e
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
5

2
0

,5
0

8
4

2
0

,5
0

8
3

2
0

,5
0

8
2

2
0

,5
0

8
1

2
0

,5
0

8
0

0
0

0
0

Le
ss

 :
 P

a
ym

en
ts

 in
 y

ea
r

1
0

0
,0

0
0

1
0

0
,0

0
0

1
0

0
,0

0
0

1
0

0
,0

0
0

1
2

0
,5

0
8

0
0

0
0

0
4

2
0

,5
0

8
3

2
0

,5
0

8
2

2
0

,5
0

8
1

2
0

,5
0

8
0

0
0

0
0

0

E
c

o
n

o
m

ic
 D

e
ve

lo
p

m
e

n
t 

F
u

n
d

O
p

e
n

in
g

 b
a

la
n

ce
0

4
,5

0
0

,0
0

0
4

,0
0

0
,0

0
0

3
,5

0
0

,0
0

0
3

,0
0

0
,0

0
0

2
,5

0
0

,0
0

0
2

,0
0

0
,0

0
0

1
,5

0
0

,0
0

0
1

,0
0

0
,0

0
0

5
0

0
,0

0
0

A
d

d
: 

T
ra

n
sf

e
rs

5
,0

0
0

,0
00

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
5

,0
0

0
,0

0
0

4
,5

0
0

,0
0

0
4

,0
0

0
,0

0
0

3
,5

0
0

,0
0

0
3

,0
0

0
,0

0
0

2
,5

0
0

,0
0

0
2

,0
0

0
,0

0
0

1
,5

0
0

,0
0

0
1

,0
0

0
,0

0
0

5
0

0
,0

0
0

L
e

ss
 :

P
a

ym
e

n
ts

5
0

0
,0

0
0

5
0

0
,0

0
0

5
0

0
,0

0
0

5
0

0
,0

0
0

5
0

0
,0

0
0

5
0

0
,0

0
0

5
0

0
,0

0
0

5
0

0
,0

0
0

5
0

0
,0

0
0

5
0

0
,0

0
0

4
,5

0
0

,0
0

0
4

,0
0

0
,0

0
0

3
,5

0
0

,0
0

0
3

,0
0

0
,0

0
0

2
,5

0
0

,0
0

0
2

,0
0

0
,0

0
0

1
,5

0
0

,0
0

0
1

,0
0

0
,0

0
0

5
0

0
,0

0
0

0

O
n

e
 O

ff
 F

u
n

d
O

p
e

n
in

g
 b

a
la

n
ce

2
,0

9
2

,4
1

9
1

,3
9

2
,7

7
2

1
,2

5
2

,7
7

2
1

,2
5

2
,7

7
2

1
,2

5
2

,7
7

2
1

,2
5

2
,7

7
2

1
,1

1
2

,7
7

2
1

,1
1

2
,7

7
2

1
,1

1
2

,7
7

2
1

,1
1

2
,7

7
2

A
d

d
: 

T
ra

n
sf

e
rs

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

2
,0

9
2

,4
1

9
1

,3
9

2
,7

7
2

1
,2

5
2

,7
7

2
1

,2
5

2
,7

7
2

1
,2

5
2

,7
7

2
1

,2
5

2
,7

7
2

1
,1

1
2

,7
7

2
1

,1
1

2
,7

7
2

1
,1

1
2

,7
7

2
1

,1
1

2
,7

7
2

Le
ss

 :
 P

a
ym

en
ts

 in
 y

ea
r

6
9

9
,6

4
7

1
4

0
,0

0
0

0
0

0
1

4
0

,0
0

0
0

0
0

1
4

0
,0

0
0

1
,3

9
2

,7
7

2
1

,2
5

2
,7

7
2

1
,2

5
2

,7
7

2
1

,2
5

2
,7

7
2

1
,2

5
2

,7
7

2
1

,1
1

2
,7

7
2

1
,1

1
2

,7
7

2
1

,1
1

2
,7

7
2

1
,1

1
2

,7
7

2
9

7
2

,7
7

2

G
e

n
e

ra
l 

F
u

n
d

 W
o

rk
in

g
 B

a
la

n
c

e
2

,0
0

0
,0

0
0

2
,0

0
0

,0
0

0
2

,0
0

0
,0

0
0

2
,0

0
0

,0
0

0
2

,0
0

0
,0

0
0

2
,0

0
0

,0
0

0
2

,0
0

0
,0

0
0

2
,0

0
0

,0
0

0
2

,0
0

0
,0

0
0

2
,0

0
0

,0
0

0

2
0

1
4

/1
5

2
0

1
5

/1
6

2
0

1
6

/1
7

2
0

1
7

/1
8

2
0

1
8

/1
9

2
0

1
9

/2
0

2
0

2
0

/2
1

2
0

2
1

/2
2

2
0

2
2

/2
3

2
0

2
2

/2
4

R
e

so
u

rc
e

s 
b

ro
u

g
h

t 
fo

rw
a

rd
3

,4
9

2
,8

0
4

3
,3

3
0

,8
0

4
3

,0
8

5
,8

0
4

3
,3

9
0

,8
0

4
3

,6
4

4
,8

0
4

3
,5

4
4

,8
0

4
3

,4
4

4
,8

0
4

3
,3

9
4

,8
0

4
3

,2
9

4
,8

0
4

2
,8

9
4

,8
0

4

P
L

U
S

 :
 N

e
w

 R
e

c
e

ip
ts

S
a

le
 o

f 
la

n
d

 -
 L

e
a

m
in

g
 B

a
r

6
5

8
,0

0
0

3
5

5
,0

0
0

3
5

5
,0

0
0

3
5

4
,0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

S
a

le
 o

f 
A

ss
e

ts
1

0
0

,0
0

0
2

5
0

,0
0

0
1

5
0

,0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

G
ra

n
ts

1
0

0
,0

0
0

1
0

0
,0

0
0

1
0

0
,0

0
0

1
0

0
,0

0
0

1
0

0
,0

0
0

1
0

0
,0

0
0

1
0

0
,0

0
0

1
0

0
,0

0
0

1
0

0
,0

0
0

1
0

0
,0

0
0

8
5

8
,0

0
0

7
0

5
,0

0
0

6
0

5
,0

0
0

4
5

4
,0

0
0

1
0

0
,0

0
0

1
0

0
,0

0
0

1
0

0
,0

0
0

1
0

0
,0

0
0

1
0

0
,0

0
0

1
0

0
,0

0
0

Page 4



L
E

S
S

 :
 C

a
p

it
a

l 
E

x
p

e
n

d
it

u
re

 
1

,0
2

0
,0

0
0

9
5

0
,0

0
0

3
0

0
,0

0
0

2
0

0
,0

0
0

2
0

0
,0

0
0

2
0

0
,0

0
0

1
5

0
,0

0
0

2
0

0
,0

0
0

5
0

0
,0

0
0

1
5

0
,0

0
0

T
o

ta
l r

e
so

u
rc

e
s 

a
va

ila
b

le
3

,3
3

0
,8

0
4

3
,0

8
5

,8
0

4
3

,3
9

0
,8

0
4

3
,6

4
4

,8
0

4
3

,5
4

4
,8

0
4

3
,4

4
4

,8
0

4
3

,3
9

4
,8

0
4

3
,2

9
4

,8
0

4
2

,8
9

4
,8

0
4

2
,8

4
4

,8
0

4

2
0

1
4

/1
5

2
0

1
5

/1
6

2
0

1
6

/1
7

2
0

1
7

/1
8

2
0

1
8

/1
9

2
0

1
9

/2
0

2
0

2
0

/2
1

2
0

2
1

/2
2

2
0

2
2

/2
3

2
0

2
2

/2
4

R
e

ve
n

u
e

 r
e

s
e

rv
e

s

C
o

u
n

ci
l t

a
xp

a
ye

rs
4

,1
8

2
,8

4
4

5
,2

3
1

,5
3

2
6

,2
4

7
,1

8
4

5
,2

1
6

,4
2

8
7

,1
6

0
,3

7
2

7
,6

5
6

,8
6

3
7

,0
4

3
,5

7
9

6
,3

1
9

,2
2

6
6

,4
7

7
,0

1
1

6
,5

1
2

,1
3

6
R

e
p

a
ir

s 
a

n
d

 R
e

n
e

w
a

ls
 F

u
n

d
3

,2
7

9
,2

4
6

2
,7

3
3

,2
8

7
2

,2
0

0
,4

5
5

2
,6

4
7

,4
7

6
2

,1
0

7
,0

7
3

1
,5

1
0

,9
6

0
9

4
6

,8
4

4
1

,3
4

6
,4

2
5

7
5

7
,3

9
6

1
5

5
,4

4
1

C
o

m
p

u
te

r 
F

u
n

d
1

,2
2

3
,0

0
0

9
2

3
,0

0
0

6
2

3
,0

0
0

1
,3

2
3

,0
0

0
1

,0
2

3
,0

0
0

7
2

3
,0

0
0

1
,4

2
3

,0
0

0
1

,2
2

3
,0

0
0

1
,0

2
3

,0
0

0
8

2
3

,0
0

0
G

ra
n

ts
 F

u
n

d
4

2
0

,5
0

8
3

2
0

,5
0

8
2

2
0

,5
0

8
1

2
0

,5
0

8
0

0
0

0
0

0
O

n
e

 O
ff

 F
u

n
d

1
,3

9
2

,7
7

2
1

,2
5

2
,7

7
2

1
,2

5
2

,7
7

2
1

,2
5

2
,7

7
2

1
,2

5
2

,7
7

2
1

,1
1

2
,7

7
2

1
,1

1
2

,7
7

2
1

,1
1

2
,7

7
2

1
,1

1
2

,7
7

2
9

7
2

,7
7

2

1
4

,9
9

8
,3

7
0

1
4

,4
6

1
,0

9
9

1
4

,0
4

3
,9

1
9

1
3

,5
6

0
,1

8
4

1
4

,0
4

3
,2

1
7

1
3

,0
0

3
,5

9
5

1
2

,0
2

6
,1

9
5

1
1

,0
0

1
,4

2
4

9
,8

7
0

,1
7

9
8

,4
6

3
,3

4
9

C
a

p
it

a
l 

R
e

c
e

ip
ts

R
e

so
u

rc
e

s 
a

va
ila

b
le

3
,3

3
0

,8
0

4
3

,0
8

5
,8

0
4

3
,3

9
0

,8
0

4
3

,6
4

4
,8

0
4

3
,5

4
4

,8
0

4
3

,4
4

4
,8

0
4

3
,3

9
4

,8
0

4
3

,2
9

4
,8

0
4

2
,8

9
4

,8
0

4
2

,8
4

4
,8

0
4

3
,3

3
0

,8
0

4
3

,0
8

5
,8

0
4

3
,3

9
0

,8
0

4
3

,6
4

4
,8

0
4

3
,5

4
4

,8
0

4
3

,4
4

4
,8

0
4

3
,3

9
4

,8
0

4
3

,2
9

4
,8

0
4

2
,8

9
4

,8
0

4
2

,8
4

4
,8

0
4

G
e

n
e

ra
l 

F
u

n
d

 W
o

rk
in

g
 B

a
la

n
c

e
2

,0
0

0
,0

0
0

2
,0

0
0

,0
0

0
2

,0
0

0
,0

0
0

2
,0

0
0

,0
0

0
2

,0
0

0
,0

0
0

2
,0

0
0

,0
0

0
2

,0
0

0
,0

0
0

2
,0

0
0

,0
0

0
2

,0
0

0
,0

0
0

2
,0

0
0

,0
0

0

T
o

ta
l 

B
a

la
n

c
e

s
2

0
,3

2
9

,1
7

4
1

9
,5

4
6

,9
0

3
1

9
,4

3
4

,7
2

3
1

9
,2

0
4

,9
8

8
1

9
,5

8
8

,0
2

1
1

8
,4

4
8

,3
9

9
1

7
,4

2
0

,9
9

9
1

6
,2

9
6

,2
2

8
1

4
,7

6
4

,9
8

3
1

3
,3

0
8

,1
5

3

Page 5



This page is intentionally left blank



  
 
HAMBLETON DISTRICT COUNCIL 
 
Report To: Cabinet 
  10 June 2014 
 
Subject: COUNCIL PERFORMANCE 2013-14 (QUARTER 4) 
 

All Wards 
Portfolio Holder for Support Services: Councillor N Knapton 

 
 
1.0 PURPOSE AND BACKGROUND:     
 
1.1 The Council Plan sets out the direction for the Council for the next two years and has been 

updated to reflect changes to community needs.  It shows the Council’s goals and gives 
measurable outcomes.  The Council’s approach to performance management is designed 
to ensure that priorities are effectively implemented, monitored and managed to achieve 
real improvements in the quality of life in the local community.   

 
1.2 The Council’s performance and strategic risks are reported quarterly to the Management 

Team and Review Boards.  The public has access to performance information through 
these quarterly Performance Reports.  This report provides details on progress against the 
Council’s priorities and information on actions to address under performance. 

 
2.0 LINK TO COUNCIL PRIORITIES:    
 
2.2 An overview of performance against each Council Priority is attached at Annex ‘A’.   
 
2.3 In summary, performance at the end of the year against the Council Plan was 78% on or 

above target, 10% were within the tolerance range set and 12% did not meet the in-year 
target. 

 
2.4 The indicators not meeting performance in the fourth quarter are:- 

 
2.4.1 The Investing in Communities Fund and Community Grants Programme whilst not 

meeting the profiled target for receipt of claims, saw many projects commenced. 
Approval has been given to roll forward the remaining funds to enable work to be 
completed during the coming year. 
 

2.4.2 During Q4 49 dwellings have been completed giving a cumulative performance for 
2013/14 of 166 new homes. This falls significantly below the in-year increased target 
of 420 but shows a slight improvement on last year (151 new dwellings) which is the 
lowest rate in 20 years. Council on 10 December 2013 approved a change to the 
Local Development Framework phasing which should assist housing construction.  

 
2.4.3 In Q4 10 affordable homes were completed of which 4 are rural affordable homes. 

This gives a total of 60 affordable homes delivered during 2013/14, of which 51 are 
rural affordable homes against the target of 130 for the year.  

 
 
 
 
 

Page 7

Agenda Item 4



2.4.4 The average time taken to process a new benefit claim is 22 days, this falls behind 
the target of 16 days. During 2013/14 action has been taken to improve 
performance and despite the impact of the changes to Welfare Reform and increase 
in demand for the service, performance continues to improve. 

  
2.4.5 Employment land applications remains low with 1.4 hectares of additional 

employment land being approved in Q4 giving an in-year total of 3.6 hectares. A 
proactive approach in discussion with developers continues to be adopted.   

 
2.5 Targets this quarter showing significant progress include:- 
 

2.5.1 Customer satisfaction in dealing with the Council through face to face contact, 
telephone calls and via the web site continues to improve and exceeded the targets 
set.  

 
2.5.2 The number of homeless preventions due to actions taken by the Council continued 

the in-year trend of performance exceeding target. The total for the year was 380 
against the target of 120. 

 
2.5.3 Supporting the community to participate in sport and active recreation by securing 

developer contributions and external funding for public open space schemes 
continued to significantly exceed the annual target.  

 
2.5.4 The range of support initiatives for local business continues to expand and receive 

positive feedback from the local business community. 
 
2.5.5 The number of apprentice places secured within the business community and the 

Council exceeded target and will be further supported during the coming year. 
 

3.0 CONCLUSIONS:  
 
3.1 Performance against the refreshed Council Plan key priorities within the year has been 

managed and action plans have been developed to address areas of weak performance.   
 
3.2 The number of new homes and employment land delivered continues to be impacted by the 

current economic situation. Actions to encourage building to commence are in place and 
the economic study of the District will help to inform further actions. 

 
4.0 RISK ASSESSMENT:  
 
4.1 There are no risks directly associated in approving this report. 

 
5.0 FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS: 
 
5.1 There are no direct financial effects from this report. 
 
6.0 LEGAL IMPLICATIONS:  
 
6.1 There are no direct legal implications arising from this report. 
 
7.0 EQUALITY/DIVERSITY ISSUES 
 
7.1 An Equalities Impact Assessment was not completed in compiling this report as no service 

changes are recommended within it. 
 
 

Page 8



8.0 RECOMMENDATION:      
 
8.1 It is recommended that progress made against the Council Plan as detailed in Annex ‘A’ is 

endorsed. 
 
 
JUSTIN IVES 
 
Background papers: Council Plan 2011 to 2015 Performance Report 2013/14 for 

Quarter 4 
 
Author ref:   SS 
 
Contact:   Justin Ives  

Director of Support Services & Deputy Chief Executive 
    Direct Line No: (01609) 767022 
     

Sue Seddon  
Improvement Manager 
Direct Line No: (01609) 767232 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
100614 Council Perf 2013-14 Q4 

Page 9



A
N

N
E

X
  ‘

A
’  

Is
su

e:
 2

01
3/

14
 

H
am

bl
et
on

 D
is
tr
ic
t C

ou
nc
il 

 

CO
U
N
CI
L 
PL
AN

 2
01

3 
to
 2
01

4 
 

 

Pe
rf
or
m
an

ce
 Q
ua

rt
er
 4
 

(0
1 
Ja
nu

ar
y 
to
 3
1 
M
ar
ch
 2
01

4)
 

In
tr
od

uc
tio

n 
   

 T
he

 fo
llo

w
in

g 
in

fo
rm

at
io

n 
pr

ov
id

es
 th

e 
de

ta
ils

 o
f p

er
fo

rm
an

ce
 a

ga
in

st
 th

e 
C

ou
nc

il 
P

la
n 

P
rio

rit
ie

s 
fo

r 
th

e 
fo

ur
th

 q
ua

rt
er

 o
f 2

01
3/

14
, a

s 
re

po
rt

ed
 a

t t
he

 
qu

ar
te

rly
 R

e
vi

ew
 B

oa
rd

s 
he

ld
 in

 A
pr

il 
20

14
. 

   
  K

e
y 

P
ri

o
ri

ti
es

: 

   
  C

us
to

m
er

 S
er

vi
ce

s 
an

d 
A

ss
et

 M
an

ag
em

en
t 

   
  H

ou
si

ng
, P

la
nn

in
g 

an
d 

W
as

te
 M

an
ag

em
en

t 

   
  L

ei
su

re
 a

nd
 H

ea
lth

 

   
  S

up
po

rt
 S

er
vi

ce
s 

an
d 

E
co

no
m

ic
 D

ev
el

op
m

e
nt

 

                             

Page 10



A
nn

ex
 1

 
 

 
 

 
Q

4 
C

ou
nc

il 
P

la
n 

P
er

fo
rm

an
ce

 2
01

3/
14

 
 

   
   

   
   

  

Cu
st
om

er
 S
er
vi
ce
s 
&
 A
ss
et
 M

an
ag
em

en
t 

 A
IM

 (
1)

 :
 T

o
 p

u
t 

o
u

r 
cu

st
o

m
er

s 
fi

rs
t 

an
d

 p
ro

vi
d

e 
h

ig
h

 q
u

al
it

y,
 v

al
u

e 
fo

r 
m

o
n

e
y 

se
rv

ic
es

 t
h

at
 m

ee
t 

th
e 

n
ee

d
s 

o
f 

o
u

r 
co

m
m

u
n

it
ie

s 
 W

e 
w

ill
 m

ee
t t

hi
s 

ai
m

 b
y 

m
on

ito
rin

g 
cu

st
om

er
 fe

ed
ba

ck
 a

nd
 s

at
is

fa
ct

io
n 

le
ve

ls
 to

 e
ns

ur
e 

th
e 

de
liv

er
y 

of
 a

n 
ea

sy
 to

 u
se

, e
as

y 
to

 a
cc

es
s,

 r
es

po
ns

iv
e 

se
rv

ic
e.

 

 In
d

ic
at

o
r 

T
ar

g
et

 
Qu

ar
te

r 1
 

Qu
ar

te
r 2

 
Qu

ar
te

r 3
  

(to
 en

d 
No

v’1
3)

 
Qu

ar
te

r 4
 

Q
4 

A
ct

io
n

s/
co

m
m

en
t 

 a)
 

In
cr

ea
se

 r
es

ol
ut

io
n 

of
 

en
qu

iri
es

 a
t t

he
 f

irs
t 

po
in

t o
f c

on
ta

ct
 v

ia
 –

 
 

F
ac

e 
to

 f
ac

e 
 

 
T

el
ep

ho
ne

 
 

     

80
%

 
  

50
%

 
  

Av
er

ag
e  

   
65

%
 

    78
%

 (F
oo

tfa
ll 

14
43

8)
  

 45
%

 (C
all

s 
23

04
2)

    
 Av

er
ag

e  
62

%
 

    79
%

 (F
oo

tfa
ll 

14
,33

3)
 

 38
.5

%
 (C

all
s 

23
,80

3)
 

 Av
er

ag
e 

58
.8

%
 

    79
.4

%
 (F

oo
tfa

ll 
30

,58
9)

  
 38

%
 (C

all
s 

23
,51

7)
    

 Av
er

ag
e 5

8.7
%

 

    80
.4

%
 

(4
3,4

11
) 

 38
%

 (3
3,9

62
) 

  Av
er

ag
e 

59
.2

%
 

T
ar

ge
t 

m
et

 
fo

r 
fa

ce
 

to
 

fa
ce

 
en

qu
iri

es
 

an
d 

w
as

 
w

ith
in

 
to

le
ra

nc
e 

fo
r 

en
qu

iri
es

 v
ia

 t
he

 t
el

ep
ho

ne
. 

 H
ig

h 
le

ve
ls

 o
f 

cu
st

om
er

 c
on

ta
ct

 h
av

e 
co

nt
in

ue
d 

th
ro

ug
ho

ut
 

th
e 

ye
ar

 r
es

ul
tin

g 
in

 a
 1

0.
4%

 i
nc

re
as

e 
in

 t
el

ep
ho

ne
 c

al
ls

 
an

d 
4.

8%
 i

n 
vi

si
to

rs
 t

o 
th

e 
C

ou
nc

il 
of

fic
es

 o
n 

th
e 

pr
ev

io
u

s 
fin

an
ci

al
 y

ea
r.

   
 A

 n
ew

 p
ea

k 
in

 d
em

an
d 

w
as

 r
ea

ch
ed

 i
n 

M
ar

ch
 2

01
4 

w
ith

 
8,

41
6 

te
le

ph
on

e 
ca

lls
 b

ei
ng

 r
ec

ei
ve

d.
  

O
n 

13
 M

a
rc

h 
1,

00
0 

ca
lls

 w
er

e 
re

ce
iv

ed
 in

 th
e 

da
y.

   
 

 b)
 

Im
pr

ov
e 

an
d

 e
ns

ur
e 

co
ns

is
te

nt
ly

 h
ig

h 
le

ve
ls

 o
f c

us
to

m
er

 
sa

tis
fa

ct
io

n 
th

ro
ug

h 
– 

  
F

ac
e 

to
 F

ac
e 

 
 

T
el

ep
ho

ne
 

 
 

W
eb

si
te

 
 

     
90

%
 

 

85
%

 
 

45
%

 

     94
%

  (
10

61
 

fee
db

ac
k) 

94
%

  (
28

4 
fee

db
ac

k) 
58

%
  (

28
1 

fee
db

ac
k) 

     94
%

 (9
59

  
fee

db
ac

k) 
98

%
 (2

63
8 

fee
db

ac
k) 

55
%

 (2
11

 
fee

db
ac

k) 

      93
.3

%
 (2

,59
0 

fee
db

ac
k) 

96
.8

%
 (4

,13
7 

fee
db

ac
k) 

 57
%

 (6
27

 
fee

db
ac

k) 

     93
%

 (3
,43

8 
fee

db
ac

k) 
98

%
 (6

,46
9 

fee
db

ac
k) 

53
%

 (9
44

 
fee

db
ac

k) 

T
ar

ge
t e

xc
ee

de
d.

 
 H

ig
h 

le
ve

ls
 o

f 
cu

st
om

er
 c

on
ta

ct
 h

av
e 

co
nt

in
ue

d 
th

ro
ug

ho
ut

 
th

e 
ye

ar
, 

re
su

lti
ng

 i
n 

a 
10

.4
%

 i
nc

re
as

e 
in

 t
el

ep
ho

ne
 c

al
ls

 
an

d 
4.

8%
 i

n 
vi

si
to

rs
 t

o 
th

e 
C

ou
nc

il 
of

fic
es

 o
n 

th
e 

pr
ev

io
u

s 
fin

an
ci

al
 y

ea
r.

   
 T

he
 f

ee
db

ac
k 

re
qu

es
te

d 
by

 t
he

 C
u

st
om

er
 S

er
vi

ce
s 

T
ea

m
 

co
nf

irm
s 

th
at

 
cu

st
om

er
 

sa
tis

fa
ct

io
n 

le
ve

ls
 

fo
r 

bo
th

 
te

le
ph

on
e 

an
d 

fa
ce

 to
 fa

ce
 s

er
vi

ce
s 

ar
e 

co
ns

is
te

nt
ly

 h
ig

h.
 

 A
 to

ta
l o

f 1
1,

00
0 

cu
st

om
er

s 
pr

ov
id

in
g 

a 
ra

tin
g 

of
 th

e 
C

ou
nc

il’
s 

se
rv

ic
es

 in
 th

e 
fir

st
 y

ea
r 

us
in

g 
th

e 
G

ov
M

et
ric

 
sy

st
em

. 
  

Page 11



A
N

N
E

X
  ‘

A
’  

Is
su

e:
 2

01
3/

14
 

 c)
 

U
ph

el
d 

co
m

pl
ai

nt
s 

le
ad

in
g 

to
 s

er
vi

ce
 

im
pr

ov
e

m
en

ts
 

 

95
%

 
 94

.8
%

 
( 2

9 
co

mp
lai

nts
) 

 10
0%

  
(1

8 
co

mp
lai

nts
)  

 95
%

 
(2

1 
co

m
pl

ai
nt

s)
 

 94
%

  
(c

um
ul

at
iv

e 
89

 
co

m
pl

ai
nt

s 
10

1 
co

m
pl

im
en

ts
)  

 T
ar

ge
t m

et
. 

d)
 

Im
pr

ov
e 

th
e 

to
ta

l 
nu

m
be

r 
of

 c
on

ta
ct

s 
by

 W
eb

 (
m

o
nt

hl
y)

: 

 
56

,35
0 

53
,74

8 
No

t a
va

ila
ble

 
65

,00
0 

 

P
er

fo
rm

an
ce

 
re

po
rt

ed
 

to
 

sh
ow

 
th

e 
“t

re
nd

” 
to

 
en

ab
le

 
m

on
ito

rin
g 

of
 t

he
 i

m
pa

ct
 o

f 
ac

tio
ns

 t
o 

im
pr

ov
e 

in
fo

rm
at

io
n

 
pr

ov
id

ed
 o

n 
th

e 
w

eb
 s

ite
.  

 W
or

k 
is

 o
ng

oi
ng

 t
o 

in
cr

ea
se

 f
irs

t 
po

in
t 

re
so

lu
tio

n 
by

 t
he

 
us

e 
of

 i
m

pr
ov

ed
 t

ec
hn

ol
og

y 
an

d 
ta

sk
 a

na
ly

si
s 

to
 e

xp
an

d
 

th
e 

nu
m

be
r 

of
 

se
rv

ic
es

 
pr

ov
id

ed
 

th
ro

ug
h 

th
e 

C
on

ta
ct

 
C

en
tr

e.
 

 T
he

 o
ng

oi
ng

 w
eb

 im
pr

ov
em

en
t 

pr
oj

ec
t 

w
ill

 b
e 

in
st

ru
m

en
ta

l 
in

 t
he

 in
cr

ea
se

d 
us

e 
of

 a
ut

om
at

ed
 s

el
f-

se
rv

ic
e 

op
tio

ns
. 

  

 

e)
 

T
ra

ck
 t

he
 t

ot
al

 
nu

m
be

r 
of

 c
on

ta
ct

s 
by

 c
ha

nn
el

 to
 m

on
ito

r 
ch

an
ne

l s
hi

ft.
 

F
ac

e 
to

 f
ac

e 

 T
el

ep
ho

ne
 

S
el

f s
er

vi
ce

s 
(e

xc
lu

di
ng

 w
eb

 s
ite

) 

 

 
 fac

e t
o f

ac
e  

35
%

   (
14

,41
8)

 
  tel

ep
ho

ne
    

55
.9

%
 

(2
3,0

27
) 

 se
lf-s

er
ve

   
9.1

%
    

  
(3

,74
9)

 
 To

tal
:41

,11
94

 

 fac
e t

o f
ac

e  
34

.3
%

    
 

(1
4,3

12
) 

 tel
ep

ho
ne

    
57

.1
%

    
  

(2
3,8

26
) 

 se
lf- 

se
rvi

ce
    

 
8.9

%
    

  
(3

,58
9)

 
 To

tal
:41

,72
7 

 fac
e t

o f
ac

e  
35

%
    

 (9
,49

7)
 

  tel
ep

ho
ne

    
56

.2
%

    
  

(1
5,2

49
) 

 se
lf-s

er
vic

e  
   

8.8
%

    
  (

2,3
87

) 
  To

tal
:36

,90
7 

 fac
e t

o f
ac

e  
34

.3
%

    
 

(1
2,7

94
) 

 tel
ep

ho
ne

    
56

.9
%

    
  

(1
5,2

49
) 

 se
lf-s

er
vic

e  
   

8.8
%

    
  

(3
,28

2)
 

 To
tal

:37
,29

9 
 A

IM
 (

2)
: 

E
n

co
u

ra
g

in
g

 o
u

r 
re

si
d

en
ts

 t
o

 b
ec

o
m

e 
m

o
re

 in
vo

lv
ed

 in
 m

ak
in

g
 d

ec
is

io
n

s 
an

d
 d

el
iv

er
in

g
 s

er
vi

ce
s 

w
h

ic
h

 im
p

ac
t 

o
n

 t
h

ei
r 

lo
ca

l  
  

co
m

m
u

n
it

ie
s.

  
W

e 
w

ill
 m

ee
t t

hi
s 

ai
m

 b
y 

:-
 

In
d

ic
at

o
r 

Q
u

ar
te

r 
1 

- 
4 

Q
4 

A
ct

io
n

s/
co

m
m

en
t 

 W
or

k 
w

ith
 o

ur
 

co
m

m
u

ni
tie

s 
so

 
th

at
 

th
ey

 
ca

n 
pr

ot
ec

t 
an

d 
pr

ov
id

e 
lo

ca
l 

se
rv

ic
es

, 
fa

ci
lit

ie
s 

an
d 

op
en

 s
pa

ce
s.

 

 1.
 P

ro
vi

de
d 

ad
vi

ce
 &

 g
ui

da
nc

e 
on

 a
 n

um
be

r 
of

 i
ni

tia
tiv

es
 

in
cl

ud
in

g 
th

e 
pr

op
os

ed
 C

om
m

un
ity

 S
ho

p 
&

 P
os

t 
O

ffi
ce

 
in

 
E

as
t 

C
ow

to
n,

 
N

ei
gh

bo
ur

ho
od

 
P

la
nn

in
g 

in
 

In
gl

eb
y 

A
rn

cl
iff

e,
 

qu
es

tio
nn

ai
re

s 
fo

r 
th

e 
S

es
sa

y 
C

om
m

un
ity

 
P

la
n.

 O
th

er
 a

ct
iv

iti
es

 in
cl

ud
e 

a 
S

um
m

er
 E

ve
nt

s 
ca

le
nd

ar
 

an
d 

‘G
re

en
 S

tr
at

eg
y’

 f
or

 N
or

th
al

le
rt

on
 in

 p
ar

tn
er

sh
ip

 w
ith

 
N

Y
C

C
 a

nd
 l

oc
al

 b
us

in
es

se
s,

 a
nd

 t
he

 c
o-

or
di

na
tio

n 
of

 a
 

su
cc

es
sf

ul
 D

ev
el

op
m

e
nt

 O
ffi

ce
r 

N
et

w
or

k 
fo

r 
H

am
bl

et
on

 
&

 R
ic

hm
on

d
sh

ire
. 

 

 
 T

ar
ge

t m
et

. 
  

Page 12



A
nn

ex
 1

 
 

 
 

 
Q

4 
C

ou
nc

il 
P

la
n 

P
er

fo
rm

an
ce

 2
01

3/
14

 
 

   
   

   
   

  
2.

 M
em

be
rs

 
o

f 
th

e 
A

re
a 

P
ar

tn
er

sh
ip

s 
to

ok
 

pa
rt

 
in

 
a 

co
ns

ul
ta

tio
n 

ev
en

t 
to

 d
et

er
m

in
e 

fu
tu

re
 L

E
A

D
E

R
 p

rio
rit

ie
s 

fo
r 

20
15

-2
0.

 

3.
 A

 n
um

be
r 

of
 p

rio
rit

y 
pr

oj
ec

ts
 h

av
e 

be
en

 c
om

pl
et

ed
 i

n 
Q

4,
 i

nc
lu

di
ng

 B
ed

al
e 

S
co

ut
 &

 G
ui

de
 H

ut
, 

K
yl

e 
V

al
le

y 
S

co
ut

 H
ut

 n
ea

r 
E

as
in

gw
ol

d 
an

d 
th

e 
fir

st
 p

ha
se

 o
f 

th
e

 
S

w
ai

nb
y 

P
la

yi
ng

 F
ie

ld
 E

nh
an

ce
m

en
t p

ro
je

ct
. 

4.
 W

or
k 

st
ar

te
d 

to
 

or
ga

ni
se

 
co

m
m

un
ity

 
ac

tiv
iti

es
 

to
 

ce
le

br
at

e 
th

e 
vi

si
t 

of
 t

h
e 

T
ou

r 
de

 F
ra

nc
e 

in
 J

ul
y 

20
15

. 
F

un
di

ng
 

fo
r 

an
 

‘E
ve

nt
s 

C
o-

or
di

na
to

r’ 
po

st
 

ha
s 

be
en

 
se

cu
re

d 
in

 B
ed

al
e 

w
ith

 m
at

ch
 f

un
di

ng
 f

ro
m

 B
ed

al
e 

T
ow

n
 

C
ou

nc
il 

an
d 

lo
ca

l b
us

in
es

se
s.

 

P
ro

vi
de

 
di

re
ct

 
su

pp
or

t 
to

 
th

e 
fiv

e
 

A
re

a 
P

ar
tn

er
sh

ip
s 

so
 

th
at

 
du

rin
g 

20
13

/1
4 

th
ey

 c
an

 r
ef

re
sh

 t
he

ir 
Lo

ca
l 

A
ct

io
n 

P
la

ns
 

an
d 

de
te

rm
in

e 
co

m
m

un
ity

 p
rio

rit
ie

s.
  

W
e 

w
ill

 s
up

po
rt

 t
he

 C
o

m
m

un
ity

 l
e

d 
F

or
um

s 
to

 
pu

bl
is

h 
5 

lo
ca

l 
ac

tio
n 

pl
an

s 
by

 A
pr

il 
20

14
. 

W
or

k 
to

 
pu

bl
is

h 
A

ct
io

n 
P

la
ns

 
fo

r 
4 

of
 

th
e 

5 
A

re
a 

P
ar

tn
er

sh
ip

s 
is

 
on

go
in

g 
as

 
lo

ca
l 

pr
io

rit
ie

s 
ar

e 
be

in
g 

re
vi

si
te

d 
as

 p
ar

t 
of

 t
he

 a
nn

ua
l r

ep
or

t p
ro

ce
ss

  

 

 

P
er

fo
rm

an
ce

 d
id

 n
ot

 m
ee

t 
th

e 
en

d 
of

 y
ea

r 
sc

he
du

le
, 

ho
w

ev
er

 p
ro

gr
es

s 
in

 d
ev

el
op

in
g 

an
d 

pu
bl

is
hi

ng
 p

la
ns

 is
 

po
si

tiv
e 

an
d 

co
m

m
un

ity
 p

ro
je

ct
s 

ar
e 

un
de

rw
ay

 i
n 

ea
ch

 
ar

ea
. 

P
ro

vi
de

 
£

10
0,

00
0 

fu
nd

in
g 

to
 

im
pl

em
en

t 
th

e 
B

ig
 S

oc
ie

ty
 a

t 
a 

lo
ca

l 
le

ve
l. 

C
on

su
lt 

an
d 

en
ga

ge
 w

ith
 o

ur
 

co
m

m
un

iti
es

 
to

 
id

en
tif

y 
ne

ed
s 

an
d

 
su

pp
or

t 
th

em
 t

hr
ou

gh
 t

he
 d

el
iv

er
y 

of
 

th
es

e 
in

iti
at

iv
es

. 

W
e 

w
ill

 
al

lo
ca

te
 

£5
0,

00
0 

by
 

A
p

ril
 

20
14

 
th

ro
ug

h 
ou

r 
In

ve
st

in
g 

in
 

C
om

m
un

iti
es

 f
un

d 
in

 2
01

3-
14

 a
nd

 a
 

fu
rt

he
r 

£5
0,

00
0 

in
 2

01
4-

15
 t

o 
pr

oj
ec

ts
 

w
hi

ch
 e

na
bl

e 
co

m
m

un
iti

es
 t

o 
id

en
tif

y 
an

d 
m

ee
t 

th
ei

r 
ow

n 
ne

ed
s 

– 
“h

el
pi

ng
 

th
em

 to
 h

el
p 

th
em

se
lv

es
” 

A
t 

ye
ar

-e
nd

 £
28

,0
30

 o
f 

th
e 

£5
0,

00
0 

ha
s 

be
en

 a
llo

ca
te

d 
to

 
pr

oj
ec

ts
 

th
ro

ug
h 

S
up

po
rt

in
g 

A
re

a 
A

ct
io

n 
&

 
P

re
pa

re
d 

P
ar

is
he

s 
G

ra
nt

s.
  

 £7
44

1.
11

 c
la

im
ed

 f
ro

m
 I

nv
es

tin
g 

in
 C

om
m

un
iti

es
 S

ch
em

e 
in

 
Q

4 
&

 
£2

0,
60

5.
83

 
fr

om
 

C
o

m
m

u
ni

ty
 

G
ra

nt
s 

P
ro

gr
am

m
e 

en
su

rin
g 

su
cc

es
sf

ul
 

co
m

pl
et

io
n 

of
 

6 
ca

pi
ta

l 
pr

oj
ec

ts
 

in
cl

ud
in

g:
 r

es
ur

fa
ci

ng
 W

es
t 

T
an

fie
ld

 t
en

ni
s 

co
ur

ts
, 

 S
ea

m
er

 
V

ill
ag

e 
H

al
l 

re
fu

rb
is

hm
en

t 
an

d 
7 

re
ve

nu
e 

pr
oj

ec
ts

 
e.

g.
 

C
ra

sh
, 

B
an

g 
W

al
lo

p 
Y

ou
th

 
T

he
at

re
, 

‘M
ea

ls
 

on
 

W
he

el
s’

 
sc

he
m

e 
op

er
at

ed
 

by
 

T
hi

rs
k 

&
 

D
is

tr
ic

t 
C

om
m

un
ity

 
C

ar
e 

A
ss

oc
ia

tio
n.

 
        

 

P
er

fo
rm

an
ce

 is
 b

el
ow

 ta
rg

et
 fo

r 
th

is
 y

ea
r,

 b
ut

 r
el

ia
nt

 o
n 

co
m

m
un

ity
 b

id
s.

. 
 R

em
ai

ni
ng

 f
un

ds
 a

re
 r

in
g-

fe
nc

ed
 t

o 
su

pp
or

t 
co

m
m

un
ity

 
as

se
t 

tr
an

sf
er

 
pr

oj
ec

ts
; 

di
sc

us
si

on
s 

st
ar

te
d 

w
ith

 
4 

co
m

m
un

iti
es

, 
al

th
ou

gh
 n

o 
gr

an
ts

 h
av

e 
be

en
 a

llo
ca

te
d 

at
 

th
is

 s
ta

ge
. 

T
he

re
fo

re
 t

he
 f

un
di

ng
 w

ill
 b

e 
ro

lle
d 

fo
rw

ar
d

 
to

 2
01

4/
15

 t
o 

en
ab

le
 t

he
 w

or
k 

to
 b

e 
co

m
pl

et
ed

 d
ur

in
g 

th
e 

ne
xt

 f
in

an
ci

al
 y

ea
r.

 
 

Page 13



A
nn

ex
 1

 
 

 
 

 
Q

4 
C

ou
nc

il 
P

la
n 

P
er

fo
rm

an
ce

 2
01

3/
14

 
 

   
   

   
   

  
£7

50
 

 
aw

ar
de

d 
fr

om
 

C
ou

nc
il’

s 
‘P

re
pa

re
d 

P
ar

is
he

s’
 

gr
an

t 
sc

he
m

e 
to

 
su

pp
or

t 
em

er
ge

nc
y 

pl
an

s 
dr

af
te

d 
by

 
B

ed
al

e 
T

ow
n 

C
ou

nc
il,

 N
ew

to
n-

O
n-

O
us

e 
P

ar
is

h 
C

ou
nc

il 
&

 B
ro

m
pt

on
 

F
lo

od
 G

ro
up

. 
 

 
In

ve
st

in
g 

in
 C

o
m

m
un

iti
es

 F
un

d 
- 

£2
1,

23
5 

sp
en

t 
&

 
cl

ai
m

ed
 b

y 
31

-3
-1

4 
 

C
om

m
un

ity
  

G
ra

nt
s 

P
ro

gr
am

m
e

 -
 £

33
,7

91
 s

pe
nt

 &
 

cl
ai

m
ed

 b
y 

31
-3

-1
4 

 

  A
IM

 (
3)

 :
 Im

p
ro

vi
n

g
 t

h
e 

p
er

fo
rm

an
ce

 a
n

d
 p

ro
d

u
ct

iv
it

y 
o

f 
o

u
r 

se
rv

ic
es

 
 W

e 
w

ill
 im

pr
ov

e 
ou

r 
pr

oc
ur

em
en

t p
ro

ce
ss

 to
 e

ns
ur

e 
va

lu
e 

fo
r 

m
on

ey
 a

nd
 e

ffi
ci

en
ci

es
 a

re
 m

ax
im

is
ed

. 
 In

d
ic

at
o

r 
Q

u
ar

te
r 

1 
- 

4 
Q

4 
A

ct
io

n
s/

co
m

m
en

t 

P
ro

vi
de

 in
fo

rm
at

io
n 

to
 b

e 
re

po
rt

ed
 a

s 
pa

rt
 

of
 

th
e 

Y
O

R
pr

o
cu

re
 

an
nu

al
 

pe
rf

or
m

an
ce

 d
at

a 
w

hi
ch

 w
ill

 e
na

bl
e

 
be

nc
hm

ar
ki

ng
 

in
fo

rm
a

tio
n 

to
 

be
 

es
ta

bl
is

he
d.

  

 

T
he

 lo
ca

l b
us

in
es

s 
in

di
ca

to
r 

w
hi

ch
 h

as
 b

ee
n 

se
le

ct
ed

 a
s 

th
e 

ke
y 

be
nc

hm
ar

k 
is

 “
sp

en
d 

by
 t

he
 C

o
un

ci
l 

w
ith

 b
us

in
es

se
s 

in
 

th
e 

D
is

tr
ic

t”
. 

 T
he

 a
im

 i
s 

to
 c

om
pa

re
 t

hi
s 

sp
en

d 
w

ith
 t

he
 

ot
he

r 
D

is
tr

ic
t 

au
th

or
iti

es
 

w
ith

in
 

th
e 

re
gi

on
 

to
 

be
 

ab
le

 
to

 
ac

cu
ra

te
ly

 
re

fle
ct

 
pe

rf
or

m
an

ce
 

a
nd

 
lo

ok
 

fo
r 

w
ay

s 
of

 
im

pr
ov

in
g.

 A
nn

ua
l 

sp
en

d 
da

ta
 f

or
 2

01
3-

14
 r

eq
ui

re
d 

be
fo

re
 

re
su

lts
 c

an
 b

e 
re

po
rt

ed
. 

 

P
er

fo
rm

an
ce

 is
 w

ith
in

 ta
rg

et
.  

 

A
gr

ee
d 

fo
rw

ar
d 

pl
an

 o
f 

pr
oc

ur
em

en
t 

pr
oj

ec
ts

 
w

ith
 

id
en

tif
ie

d 
le

ad
 

an
d

 
re

po
rt

ed
 

sa
vi

ng
s/

ef
fic

ie
nc

ie
s 

vi
a 

m
an

ag
em

en
t t

ea
m

. 

 

T
he

 
P

ro
cu

re
m

en
t 

F
or

w
ar

d 
P

la
n 

in
cl

ud
es

 
th

e 
C

ap
ita

l 
P

ro
gr

am
m

e
 p

ro
je

ct
s 

an
d 

ot
he

r 
si

gn
ifi

ca
nt

 p
ro

cu
re

m
en

ts
. 

A
 

dr
af

t P
la

n 
ha

s 
be

en
 p

re
se

nt
ed

 to
 M

an
ag

em
en

t T
ea

m
. 

T
ar

ge
t m

et
. 

 

Q
ua

rt
er

ly
 

up
-d

at
ed

 
de

ta
ils

 
of

 
co

nt
ra

ct
s 

(o
ve

r 
£1

0,
00

0)
 

pu
bl

is
he

d
 

on
 t

he
 w

eb
 s

ite
, 

in
cl

ud
in

g 
st

ar
t/

en
d 

da
te

s 
an

d 
an

y 
cu

rr
en

tly
 

be
in

g
 

pr
oc

ur
ed

/d
at

es
 

pr
oc

es
s 

to
 

co
m

m
en

ce
. 

T
he

 f
irs

t 
ve

rs
io

n 
pu

bl
is

he
d 

on
 t

he
 w

eb
 s

ite
 a

nd
 is

 s
ub

je
ct

 t
o 

co
nt

in
uo

us
 r

ev
ie

w
 t

o 
e

ns
ur

e 
al

l 
co

nt
ra

ct
 o

pp
or

tu
ni

tie
s 

ar
e 

id
en

tif
ie

d 
an

d 
m

ee
ts

 
th

e 
re

qu
ire

m
en

ts
 

of
 

th
e 

N
at

io
na

l 
T

ra
ns

pa
re

nc
y 

ag
en

da
. 

 T
he

 I
nf

or
m

at
io

n 
fo

r 
B

us
in

es
se

s 
se

ct
io

n 
of

 t
he

 w
eb

 s
ite

 i
s 

be
in

g 
ex

pa
nd

ed
 

an
d 

up
da

te
d 

to
 

pr
ov

id
e 

lin
ks

 
to

 
fu

rt
he

r 
op

po
rt

un
iti

es
 w

ith
in

 t
he

 p
ub

lic
 s

ec
to

r.
 

T
ar

ge
t m

et
. 

 

Page 14



A
nn

ex
 1

 
 

 
 

 
Q

4 
C

ou
nc

il 
P

la
n 

P
er

fo
rm

an
ce

 2
01

3/
14

 
 

   
   

   
   

  

D
ev

el
op

 p
ro

cu
re

m
en

t s
tr

at
eg

y 
to

 
in

cl
ud

e 
a 

pr
og

ra
m

m
e 

of
 tr

ai
ni

ng
 a

nd
 

to
ol

ki
ts

/in
fo

rm
at

io
n 

to
 e

ns
ur

e 
ef

fic
ie

nc
ie

s 
m

ax
im

is
ed

 th
ro

ug
h 

pr
oc

ur
em

en
t a

nd
 c

on
tr

ac
t 

m
an

ag
em

en
t. 

A
 P

ro
cu

re
m

en
t S

tr
at

eg
y 

ha
s 

be
en

 d
ev

el
op

ed
. A

s 
pa

rt
 o

f t
he

 
de

ve
lo

pm
en

t o
f t

he
 S

tr
at

eg
y 

th
e 

in
fo

rm
at

io
n 

an
d 

gu
id

an
ce

 to
 

O
ffi

ce
rs

 h
as

 b
ee

n 
re

vi
ew

ed
. T

he
 in

fo
rm

at
io

n 
in

cl
ud

es
 

bu
si

ne
ss

 a
dv

ic
e 

an
d 

st
an

da
rd

 te
rm

s 
an

d 
co

nd
iti

on
s 

fo
r 

th
os

e 
co

m
pa

ni
es

 w
ho

 d
o 

no
t h

av
e 

th
ei

r 
ow

n.
 T

ra
in

in
g 

w
ill

 b
e 

or
ga

ni
se

d 
in

 t
he

 f
irs

t 
qu

ar
te

r 
of

 2
01

4.
 

T
ar

ge
t m

et
. 

 

  A
IM

 (
4)

 :
 T

o
 r

ed
u

ce
 t

h
e 

ca
rb

o
n

 f
o

o
tp

ri
n

t 
o

f 
th

e 
co

u
n

ci
l  

 
 D

ev
el

op
 a

nd
 im

pl
em

en
t 

fu
rt

he
r 

ac
tio

ns
 to

 d
el

iv
er

 t
he

 C
ar

bo
n 

M
an

ag
em

en
t r

ed
uc

tio
n 

ta
rg

et
 fo

r 
th

e 
C

ou
nc

il.
 

 
 

 In
d

ic
at

o
r 

Q
u

ar
te

r 
1 

- 
4 

Q
4 

A
ct

io
n

s/
co

m
m

en
t 

 Q
1 

R
ep

or
t 2

01
2/

13
 d

at
a 

 
Q

2 
R

ep
or

t o
n 

an
y 

ac
tio

ns
 

Q
3 

R
ep

or
t p

ro
je

ct
ed

 p
ro

fil
e 

to
 e

nd
 o

f 
ye

ar
 

Q
4 

R
ep

or
t a

ny
 s

ig
ni

fic
an

t 
is

su
es

/a
ct

io
ns

 a
nd

 p
ro

je
ct

 a
ct

ua
l o

ut
 

tu
rn

s.
 

 B
as

ed
 o

n 
pr

ev
io

us
 y

ea
r’s

 f
ig

ur
es

 a
nd

 a
ct

io
ns

, 
th

e 
in

di
ca

to
r 

se
t 

fo
r 

20
13

-1
4 

is
 f

or
 a

 f
ur

th
er

 4
%

 r
ed

uc
tio

n 
fr

om
 2

01
2/

13
, 

w
hi

ch
 

w
ill

 
pr

im
ar

ily
 

co
m

e 
fr

om
 

th
e 

C
om

bi
ne

d 
H

ea
t 

an
d 

P
ow

er
 b

oi
le

rs
 in

st
al

le
d 

in
 H

am
bl

et
on

 le
is

ur
e 

ce
nt

re
s.

 
 

A
n 

as
se

ss
m

en
t 

of
 c

ur
re

nt
 c

ar
bo

n 
re

du
ct

io
n,

 s
us

ta
in

ab
ili

ty
 

an
d 

en
er

gy
 

sa
vi

ng
 

m
et

ho
ds

 
ut

ili
se

d 
w

ith
in

 
th

e 
C

ou
nc

il 
pr

em
is

es
 h

as
 b

ee
n 

co
m

pl
et

ed
.  

 

 T
ar

ge
t m

et
. 

 A
 C

ab
in

et
 r

ep
or

t 
re

co
m

m
en

di
ng

 p
os

si
bl

e 
ac

tio
ns

 t
ha

t 
co

ul
d 

be
 t

ak
en

 t
o 

 i
m

pr
ov

e 
en

er
gy

 s
av

in
g 

w
a

s 
be

in
g 

pr
ep

ar
ed

. 
A

ny
 p

ro
je

ct
s 

to
 b

e 
in

cl
ud

ed
 o

n 
th

e 
C

ap
ita

l 
P

ro
gr

am
m

e
 w

ou
ld

 h
av

e 
a 

 b
us

in
es

s 
ca

se
 p

re
pa

re
d 

to
 

en
su

re
 r

et
ur

n 
on

 i
nv

es
tm

en
t 

w
as

 a
cc

ep
ta

bl
e 

an
d 

an
y 

ne
w

 t
ec

hn
ol

og
y 

w
as

 n
o

t 
im

m
in

en
t 

 e
.g

. 
th

e 
C

om
bi

ne
d 

H
ea

t 
an

d 
P

ow
er

 u
ni

t 
at

 t
he

 H
am

bl
et

on
 L

ei
su

re
 C

en
tr

e
 

ha
d 

no
t 

be
en

 
in

st
al

le
d 

as
 

th
e 

re
tu

rn
 

fo
r 

in
ve

st
m

en
t 

pe
rio

d 
ex

ce
ed

ed
 9

 y
ea

rs
, 

w
hi

ls
t 

th
e 

4 
ye

ar
 r

e
tu

rn
 o

n 
in

ve
st

m
en

t 
at

 L
ei

su
re

 C
en

tr
es

  
in

 T
hi

rs
k,

 B
ed

al
e 

an
d 

S
to

ke
sl

ey
 w

as
 fe

lt 
to

 r
ep

re
se

nt
 g

oo
d 

va
lu

e 
fo

r 
m

o
ne

y.
 

C
o

u
n

ci
l’s

 c
ar

b
o

n
 e

m
is

si
o

n
s 

in
 t

o
n

n
es

 
20

08
/0

9 
20

09
/1

0 
20

10
/1

1 
20

11
/1

2 
20

12
/1

3 
20

13
/1

4 

S
co

pe
 1

: B
ui

ld
in

gs
 g

as
 &

 v
eh

ic
le

 fu
el

 
2,

18
7 

2,
20

3 
2,

07
8 

1,
94

8 
2,

08
0*

 
2,

20
0*

*

S
co

pe
 2

: B
ui

ld
in

gs
 a

nd
 p

ub
lic

 li
gh

tin
g 

el
ec

tr
ic

ity
 

(p
ub

lic
 li

gh
tin

g 
on

 g
re

en
 ta

rif
f)

 
2,

13
3 

2,
02

7 
1,

98
9 

1,
91

8 
1,

73
5*

 
1,

58
4^

 

S
co

pe
 3

: B
us

in
es

s 
m

ile
ag

e 
(n

ot
 fu

lly
 m

on
ito

re
d)

 
10

4 
10

7 
95

 
87

 
71

* 
71

^

T
o

ta
l g

ro
ss

 C
O

2 
em

is
si

o
n

s 
4,

42
4 

4,
33

7 
4,

16
2 

3,
95

3 
3,

88
6*

 
3,

85
5^

 

%
 r

ed
uc

tio
n 

fr
om

 2
00

8/
9 

 
2.

0 
5.

9 
10

.6
 

1.
7 

3.
0%

^ 
 

   

Page 15



A
nn

ex
 1

 
 

 
 

 
Q

4 
C

ou
nc

il 
P

la
n 

P
er

fo
rm

an
ce

 2
01

3/
14

 
 

   
   

   
   

  
    O

th
er

 a
ct

iv
it

y 
R

ep
o

rt
ed

 t
o

 t
h

e 
C

u
st

o
m

er
 S

er
vi

ce
s 

an
d

 A
ss

et
 M

an
ag

em
en

t 
R

ev
ie

w
 B

o
ar

d
 in

 q
u

ar
te

r 
4:

 

 
A

s 
of

 th
e 

12
 M

ar
ch

 2
01

4 
th

e 
D

is
tr

ic
t C

ou
nc

il 
w

ill
 o

nl
y 

us
e 

“0
16

09
 7

79
97

7”
 a

s 
th

e 
pu

bl
is

he
d 

co
nt

ac
t n

um
be

r.
  

 
In

gl
eb

y 
A

rn
cl

iff
e 

an
d 

In
gl

eb
y 

C
ro

ss
 w

er
e 

ab
le

 t
o 

m
ak

e 
en

ha
nc

em
en

ts
 b

y 
de

si
gn

in
g 

an
d 

in
st

al
lin

g 
si

gn
s 

an
d 

in
fo

rm
at

io
n 

bo
ar

ds
 t

ha
nk

s 
to

 g
ra

nt
s 

fr
om

 
th

e 
C

ou
nc

il 
an

d 
th

e 
LE

A
D

E
R

 fu
nd

in
g 

pr
og

ra
m

m
e.

  

 
T

hi
rs

k 
an

d 
D

is
tr

ic
t 

M
in

ib
us

es
 w

er
e 

ab
le

 t
o 

pu
rc

ha
se

 a
nd

 i
ns

ta
ll 

a 
ne

w
 c

om
pu

te
r 

sy
st

em
 t

o 
he

lp
 p

la
n 

ro
ut

es
 m

or
e 

ef
fic

ie
nt

ly
 t

ha
nk

s 
to

 t
he

 c
om

m
un

ity
 

gr
an

ts
 f

un
d 

aw
ar

de
d 

by
 t

he
 C

ou
nc

il.
 I

n 
ad

di
tio

n 
T

hi
rs

k 
an

d 
S

ow
er

by
 M

ea
ls

 o
n 

W
he

el
s 

S
ch

em
e 

w
as

 a
bl

e 
to

 e
m

pl
oy

 a
 c

oo
rd

in
at

or
 t

o 
he

lp
 e

ns
ur

e 
m

or
e 

of
 th

os
e 

in
 n

ee
d 

co
ul

d 
be

ne
fit

 fr
om

 th
e 

se
rv

ic
e.

 

 
C

ra
sh

 B
an

g 
W

al
lo

p 
Y

ou
th

 T
he

at
re

 f
ro

m
 S

to
ke

sl
ey

 r
ec

ei
ve

d 
o

ve
r 

£4
,0

00
 in

 g
ra

nt
 f

un
di

ng
 t

o 
he

lp
 im

pr
ov

e 
fa

ci
lit

ie
s 

to
 e

na
bl

e 
th

em
 t

o 
co

nt
in

ue
 t

o 
pr

ov
id

e
 

th
e 

fa
ci

lit
ie

s 
an

d 
ho

ld
 p

ro
du

ct
io

ns
 in

 th
e 

fu
tu

re
. 

  

 
A

 c
om

m
un

ity
 g

ra
nt

 f
or

 t
he

 D
al

es
 C

ar
e 

C
en

tr
e 

in
 B

ed
al

e 
en

ab
le

d 
a 

pr
og

ra
m

m
e

 o
f 

ac
tiv

iti
es

 t
o 

be
 c

om
pl

em
en

te
d 

by
 h

o
ld

in
g 

liv
e 

m
us

ic
 e

ve
nt

s 
at

 t
he

 
ce

nt
re

 e
ve

ry
 w

ee
k.

 

 
H

am
bl

et
on

 F
oo

d 
S

ha
re

 s
ch

em
e 

ap
po

in
te

d 
a 

pr
oj

ec
t 

co
or

di
na

to
r 

to
 h

el
p 

m
an

ag
e 

th
e 

vo
lu

nt
ee

r 
te

am
 a

nd
 d

on
at

io
ns

 t
o 

en
su

re
 t

ho
se

 m
o

st
 in

 n
ee

d 
in

 t
he

 
D

is
tr

ic
t c

an
 b

e 
su

pp
or

te
d 

by
 th

e 
sc

he
m

e.
 

 
In

 a
 jo

in
t 

pr
oj

ec
t 

by
 N

or
th

al
le

rt
on

 R
et

ai
l &

 B
us

in
es

s 
F

or
um

, 
N

or
th

al
le

rt
on

 T
ow

n 
C

ou
nc

il 
an

d 
H

am
bl

et
on

 D
is

tr
ic

t 
C

ou
nc

il 
sh

op
pe

rs
 a

nd
 v

is
ito

rs
 c

an
 n

ow
 

be
ne

fit
 fr

om
 fr

ee
 a

cc
es

s 
to

 w
i-f

i i
n 

N
or

th
al

le
rt

on
 H

ig
h 

S
tr

ee
t  

 

Page 16



A
nn

ex
 1

 
 

 
 

 
Q

4 
C

ou
nc

il 
P

la
n 

P
er

fo
rm

an
ce

 2
01

3/
14

 
 

   
   

   
   

  
 H
ou

si
ng

 P
la
nn

in
g 
&
 W

as
te
 M

an
ag
em

en
t 

 

 A
im

 (
1)

 :
  M

ee
ti

n
g

 L
o

ca
l H

o
u

si
n

g
 N

ee
d

s 
 T

o 
m

ee
t 

th
e 

ho
us

in
g 

ne
ed

s 
of

 a
ll 

se
ct

io
ns

 o
f 

th
e 

lo
ca

l c
om

m
un

ity
 b

y 
pr

o
vi

di
ng

 a
n 

ad
eq

ua
te

 a
m

ou
nt

 a
nd

 r
an

ge
 o

f h
ou

si
ng

, i
nc

lu
di

ng
 a

ff
or

da
bl

e 
ho

us
in

g 

 In
d

ic
at

o
r 

Q
u

ar
te

r 
1 

- 
4 

Q
4 

A
ct

io
n

s/
co

m
m

en
t 

 N
ew

 
D

w
el

lin
gs

 
- 

42
0 

in
 2

01
3/

14
 

 

 

In
 

Q
4 

49
 

dw
el

lin
gs

 
ha

ve
 

be
en

 
co

m
pl

et
ed

 
gi

vi
ng

 
a 

cu
m

ul
at

iv
e 

pe
rf

or
m

an
ce

 
fo

r 
20

13
/1

4 
of

 
16

6 
ne

w
 

ho
m

es
 

co
m

pl
et

ed
. 

 
 

T
hi

s 
fa

lls
 

si
gn

ifi
ca

nt
ly

 
be

lo
w

 
th

e 
in

cr
ea

se
d 

ta
rg

et
 b

ut
 s

ho
w

s 
a 

sl
ig

ht
 im

pr
ov

em
e

nt
 o

n 
la

st
 y

ea
r 

(1
51

 n
ew

 
dw

el
lin

gs
) 

w
hi

ch
 is

 th
e 

lo
w

es
t 

ra
te

 in
 2

0 
ye

ar
s.

 
 T

he
re

 a
re

 s
ig

ns
 o

f 
an

 i
nc

re
as

e 
in

 h
ou

se
-b

ui
ld

in
g,

 w
ith

 6
4 

si
te

s 
un

de
r 

co
ns

tr
uc

tio
n 

at
 t

he
 e

nd
 o

f 
M

ar
ch

 2
01

4 
w

hi
ch

 w
ill

 
pr

ov
id

e 
ab

ou
t 1

,4
00

 d
w

el
lin

gs
. 

   

  T
ar

ge
t n

ot
 m

et
. 

 C
ou

nc
il 

on
 1

0 
D

ec
em

be
r 

20
13

 a
pp

ro
ve

d 
a 

re
la

xa
tio

n 
of

 th
e 

LD
F

 p
ha

si
ng

 
to

 e
na

bl
e 

th
e 

C
ou

nc
il 

to
 b

e 
ab

le
 to

 d
em

on
st

ra
te

 a
 r

ob
us

t 5
 y

ea
r 

su
pp

ly
 o

f 
de

liv
er

ab
le

 h
ou

si
ng

 s
ite

s,
 (

a 
re

qu
ire

m
en

t o
f t

he
 N

at
io

na
l P

la
nn

in
g 

P
ol

ic
y 

F
ra

m
ew

or
k)

. 
 T

hi
s 

sh
ou

ld
 b

oo
st

 h
ou

si
ng

 c
on

st
ru

ct
io

n 
bu

t 
it 

w
ill

 t
ak

e 
so

m
e 

tim
e 

be
fo

re
 th

e 
im

pa
ct

 is
 s

ee
n.

 

 

 A
ffo

rd
ab

le
 

H
om

es
 

– 
13

0 
in

 2
01

3/
14

 

 

 
 

In
 Q

4 
10

 a
ffo

rd
ab

le
 h

om
es

 h
av

e
 b

ee
n 

co
m

pl
et

ed
 –

 6
 a

t 
E

as
in

gw
ol

d 
an

d 
4 

ru
ra

l 
af

fo
rd

ab
le

 
ho

m
es

 
at

 
A

is
ke

w
. 

In
 

20
13

/1
4 

60
 a

ffo
rd

ab
le

 h
om

es
 h

av
e 

be
en

 d
el

iv
er

ed
 in

cl
ud

in
g 

51
 r

ur
al

 a
ffo

rd
ab

le
 h

om
es

.  
 

 
T

ar
ge

t n
ot

 m
et

. 

 A
im

 (
2)

 :
  H

o
m

el
es

sn
es

s 
P

re
ve

n
ti

o
n

s 
T

o
 r

ed
uc

e 
ho

m
el

es
sn

es
s 

by
 p

ro
vi

di
ng

 d
ire

ct
 s

up
po

rt
 to

 D
is

tr
ic

t r
es

id
en

ts
 in

 n
ee

d.
 

 In
d

ic
at

o
r 

Q
u

ar
te

r 
1 

– 
Q

4
 

Q
4 

A
ct

io
n

s/
co

m
m

en
t 

 12
0 

pr
ev

en
tio

ns
 b

y 
C

ou
nc

il 
in

te
rv

en
tio

n 
in

 
20

13
/1

4 

 

T
he

 n
um

be
r 

of
 C

ou
nc

il 
ho

m
el

es
s 

pr
ev

en
tio

ns
 f

or
 Q

4 
is

 8
6,

 
gi

vi
ng

 a
 to

ta
l o

f 3
80

 fo
r 

th
e 

ye
ar

.  
 

 

 

T
ar

ge
t e

xc
ee

de
d.

  
 

Page 17



A
nn

ex
 1

 
 

 
 

 
Q

4 
C

ou
nc

il 
P

la
n 

P
er

fo
rm

an
ce

 2
01

3/
14

 
 

   
   

   
   

  
 A

im
 (

3)
 :

  C
o

ll
ec

ti
n

g
 H

o
u

se
h

o
ld

 W
as

te
 a

n
d

 R
ec

yc
lin

g
   

 
T

o 
m

in
im

is
e 

th
e 

im
pa

ct
 o

f w
as

te
 o

n 
th

e 
en

vi
ro

nm
en

t b
y 

in
cr

ea
si

ng
 th

e 
am

ou
nt

 o
f h

ou
se

ho
ld

 w
as

te
 th

at
 is

 r
ec

yc
le

d.
 

 In
d

ic
at

o
r 

Q
u

ar
te

r 
1 

– 
Q

4
 

Q
4 

A
ct

io
n

s/
co

m
m

en
t 

 48
%

 b
y 

M
ar

ch
 

20
14

 
 

T
he

 e
st

im
at

ed
 r

ec
yc

lin
g 

ra
te

 f
or

 2
01

3/
14

 i
s 

45
.3

%
; 

at
 t

hi
s 

po
in

t 
no

t 
al

l t
he

 r
ec

yc
lin

g 
to

nn
ag

es
 h

av
e 

be
en

 c
on

fir
m

ed
 s

o 
th

is
 fi

gu
re

 w
ill

 c
ha

ng
e.

 
 

 

T
ar

ge
t 

no
t 

m
et

, 
ho

w
ev

er
 t

hi
s 

is
 b

as
ed

 o
n 

es
tim

at
es

 a
nd

 i
s 

su
bj

ec
t 

to
 

ch
an

ge
. 

 T
he

re
 h

as
 b

ee
n 

an
 in

cr
ea

se
 in

 k
er

bs
id

e 
to

nn
ag

es
 c

om
pa

re
d 

w
ith

 Q
4 

fo
r 

la
st

 y
ea

r;
 t

hi
s 

is
 d

ue
 a

ga
in

 t
o 

th
e 

en
ha

nc
ed

 p
ap

er
 c

ol
le

ct
io

n 
w

hi
ch

 h
as

 
ex

ce
ed

ed
 

ex
pe

ct
at

io
ns

. 
 

W
or

k 
is

 
be

in
g 

un
de

rt
ak

en
 

to
 

in
cr

ea
se

 
th

e 
to

nn
ag

es
 fu

rt
he

r.
  

 A
im

 (
4)

 :
  S

u
p

p
o

rt
in

g
 D

ev
el

o
p

m
en

t 
 T

o 
en

su
re

 th
at

 th
e 

P
la

nn
in

g 
S

er
vi

ce
 s

up
po

rt
s 

th
e 

su
st

ai
na

bl
e 

ec
on

om
ic

 g
ro

w
th

 a
nd

 d
ev

el
op

m
en

t o
f t

he
 D

is
tr

ic
t.

 
 In

d
ic

at
o

r 
Q

u
ar

te
r 

1
 

Q
u

ar
te

r 
2

 
Qu

ar
te

r 3
 

Qu
ar

te
r 4

 
Q

4 
A

ct
io

n
s/

co
m

m
en

t 
 M

aj
or

 a
pp

lic
at

io
ns

 d
et

er
m

in
ed

 in
 

13
 w

ee
ks

 –
 6

0%
 in

 2
01

3/
14

 
 

 

80
%

 
 

 

16
%

 
 

67
%

 
 

86
%

  
 

 T
ar

ge
t m

et
 w

ith
 a

n 
av

er
ag

e 
fo

r 
th

e 
ye

ar
 o

f 6
2%

 
 

 O
th

er
 a

ct
iv

it
y 

in
 Q

u
a

rt
e

r 
4:

 

 
A

 n
ew

 d
ro

p-
in

 h
ou

si
ng

 a
dv

ic
e 

se
rv

ic
e 

ai
m

ed
 a

t h
om

el
es

s 
pr

ev
en

tio
n 

op
en

ed
 in

 T
hi

rs
k.

  

 
R

es
id

en
ts

 w
er

e 
as

ke
d 

to
 g

iv
e 

th
ei

r 
vi

ew
s 

on
 a

 p
ro

po
se

d 
ho

us
in

g 
an

d 
he

al
th

 s
ch

em
e 

w
hi

ch
 id

en
tif

ie
s 

so
m

e 
of

 t
he

 im
pa

ct
s 

on
 t

he
 h

ea
lth

 o
f 

re
si

de
nt

s 
an

d 
ho

w
 E

nv
iro

n
m

en
ta

l H
ea

lth
 S

er
vi

ce
s 

ca
n 

he
lp

 to
 im

pr
ov

e 
th

e 
si

tu
at

io
n 

w
he

re
 it

 is
 n

ee
de

d 
m

os
t. 

 

 
C

on
su

lta
tio

n 
w

as
 h

el
d 

on
 th

e 
pr

op
os

ed
 C

om
m

un
ity

 In
fr

as
tr

uc
tu

re
 L

ev
y 

C
ha

rg
es

 (
C

IL
) 

th
at

 w
ou

ld
 b

e 
ch

ar
ge

d 
on

 n
ew

 d
ev

el
op

m
en

ts
. 

 
H

ub
y 

re
si

de
nt

s 
w

er
e 

as
ke

d 
to

 r
eg

is
te

r 
th

ei
r 

cu
rr

en
t 

an
d 

fu
tu

re
 h

ou
si

ng
 n

ee
ds

 t
o 

he
lp

 t
he

 C
ou

nc
il 

as
se

ss
 th

e 
ne

ed
 f

or
 lo

ca
l h

om
es

 fo
r 

lo
ca

l p
eo

pl
e.

 

 
P

la
ns

 f
or

 C
en

tr
al

 N
or

th
al

le
rt

on
 w

er
e 

pu
t 

on
 s

ho
w

 a
s 

pa
rt

 o
f t

he
 c

on
su

lta
tio

n 
fo

r 
pr

op
os

al
s 

fo
r 

th
e 

ne
w

 m
as

te
r 

pl
an

 f
or

 N
or

th
al

le
rt

o
n

. 
T

hi
s 

se
ek

s 
vi

ew
s 

o
n

 
pr

op
os

al
s 

fo
r 

th
e 

re
de

ve
lo

pm
en

t o
f t

he
 fo

rm
er

 p
ris

on
 a

nd
 R

ur
al

 P
ay

m
en

ts
 A

ge
nc

y.
 

 
D

ev
el

op
er

s 
fo

r 
th

e 
90

0 
ne

w
 h

om
es

 in
 S

ow
er

by
 a

re
 r

ec
ru

iti
ng

 a
pp

re
nt

ic
es

 to
 h

el
p 

bu
ild

 th
ei

r 
w

or
kf

or
ce

 fr
om

 th
e 

lo
ca

l c
om

m
un

ity
. 

 

 
A

 c
om

pe
tit

io
n 

fo
r 

an
y 

ch
ild

 a
t 

sc
ho

ol
 in

 t
he

 H
am

bl
et

on
 a

re
a 

w
as

 r
un

 b
y 

Y
or

W
as

te
 t

o 
he

lp
 in

cr
ea

se
 t

he
 a

m
ou

nt
 o

f 
re

cy
cl

in
g 

w
e 

do
. 

T
he

 w
in

ni
ng

 p
ic

tu
re

 
w

ill
 b

e 
di

sp
la

ye
d 

on
 o

ne
 o

f 
th

e 
D

is
tr

ic
t’s

 w
as

te
 lo

rr
ie

s.
 

 
F

ol
lo

w
in

g 
th

e 
su

cc
es

s 
in

 H
am

bl
et

on
’s

 m
ar

ke
t 

to
w

ns
, 

R
ec

yc
lin

g 
O

ffi
ce

rs
 h

av
e 

no
w

 p
ut

 in
 p

la
ce

 n
ew

 r
ec

yc
lin

g 
bi

ns
 -

 f
or

 c
an

s 
an

d 
pl

as
tic

 b
ot

tle
s,

 o
ut

si
de

 
th

e 
Le

is
ur

e 
C

en
tr

es
 in

 N
or

th
al

le
rt

on
, B

ed
al

e,
 T

hi
rs

k 
an

d 
S

to
ke

sl
ey

. 
 

Page 18



A
nn

ex
 1

 
 

 
 

 
Q

4 
C

ou
nc

il 
P

la
n 

P
er

fo
rm

an
ce

 2
01

3/
14

 
 

   
   

   
   

  
  Le
is
ur
e 
an

d 
H
ea
lth

 
  A

im
 (

1)
 :

  P
ro

m
o

te
 h

ea
lt

h
y 

lif
es

ty
le

s 
b

y 
p

ro
m

o
ti

n
g

 C
o

u
n

ci
l l

ei
su

re
 f

ac
ili

ti
es

 s
o

 t
h

at
 m

o
re

 p
eo

p
le

 a
re

 p
ar

ti
ci

p
at

in
g

 in
 p

h
ys

ic
al

 a
ct

iv
it

y 
an

d
 w

h
o

 
   

   
   

   
   

fe
el

 t
h

e
y 

ar
e 

in
 g

o
o

d
 h

ea
lt

h
 

 P
ro

m
ot

e 
th

e
 C

ou
nc

il 
le

is
ur

e 
fa

ci
lit

ie
s 

to
 e

nc
ou

ra
ge

 a
tt

en
da

nc
e 

fr
om

 a
ll 

ag
e 

gr
ou

ps
 s

uc
h 

th
at

 a
tt

en
da

nc
e 

m
at

ch
es

 t
he

 d
em

og
ra

ph
ic

 p
ro

fil
e 

of
 th

e 
D

is
tr

ic
t. 

 In
di

ca
to

r 
Qu

ar
te

r  
1 

Qu
ar

te
r  

2 
Qu

ar
te

r  
3 

Qu
ar

te
r  

4 
Q

4 
A

ct
io

n
s/

co
m

m
en

t 
 U

sa
ge

 a
ga

in
st

 d
em

og
ra

ph
ic

 
pr

of
ile

 (
fr

om
 2

01
1 

C
en

su
s)

: 

 
 

 
 

 

  

 

P
er

fo
rm

an
ce

 w
as

 w
ith

in
 to

le
ra

nc
e.

 
 P

ar
tic

ip
at

io
n 

am
on

gs
t 

th
e 

hi
gh

er
 

ag
e 

b
an

d 
is

 
im

pr
ov

in
g 

an
d 

ac
tio

ns
 a

re
 b

ei
ng

 t
ak

en
 t

o 
en

co
ur

ag
e 

gr
ea

te
r 

pa
rt

ic
ip

at
io

n 
e.

g.
 

C
ap

ita
l 

Im
pr

ov
em

en
t 

S
ch

em
e 

pl
an

ne
d 

at
 N

or
th

al
le

rt
on

 t
o 

cr
ea

te
 a

 s
tu

di
o 

to
 

en
ab

le
 

lo
w

 
in

te
ns

ity
 

se
ss

io
ns

 
to

 
be

 
sc

he
du

le
d,

 
in

 
ad

di
tio

n 
a 

pr
og

ra
m

m
e 

of
 

ev
en

ts
 

to
 

en
co

ur
ag

e 
ex

er
ci

se
 h

as
 b

ee
n 

im
pl

em
en

te
d 

an
d 

is
 r

ev
ie

w
ed

 o
n

 
an

 o
n-

go
in

g 
ba

si
s.

 

 9
.9

%
  o

f a
ll 

vi
si

ts
 b

y 
 0

-1
0y

rs
 

 

23
.8

3%
   

26
.2

1%
 

27
.1

%
 

23
.5

%
 

11
.6

%
 o

f a
ll 

vi
si

ts
 b

y 
10

-1
9y

rs
 

 

12
.9

%
 

10
.5

%
 

 9
.7

%
 

 8
.2

%
 

19
.4

%
 o

f a
ll 

vi
si

ts
 b

y 
60

-7
4y

rs
 

 

14
.1

5%
 

15
.2

2%
 

14
.8

%
 

16
.1

%
 

  A
im

 (
2)

 :
  S

u
p

p
o

rt
in

g
 t

h
e 

co
m

m
u

n
it

y 
to

 p
ar

ti
ci

p
at

e 
in

 s
p

o
rt

 a
n

d
 a

ct
iv

e 
re

cr
ea

ti
o

n
 

  

In
di

ca
to

r 
Qu

ar
te

r 1
 

Qu
ar

te
r 2

 
Qu

ar
te

r 3
 

Qu
ar

te
r 4

 
Ac

tio
ns

/co
m

m
en

t 
 A

llo
ca

tio
n 

an
d 

re
le

as
e 

of
 

£1
00

,0
00

 
of

 
de

ve
lo

pe
r 

co
nt

rib
ut

io
n 

m
on

ey
 

to
 

pu
bl

ic
 

op
en

 s
pa

ce
, s

po
rt

 a
nd

 r
ec

re
at

io
n 

pr
oj

ec
ts

. 
 

 £8
,4

10
 

al
lo

ca
te

d 
in

 
Q

1.
 

 

 
£2

2,
59

1 
al

lo
ca

te
d 

(c
um

ul
at

iv
e)

  
£7

6,
33

0 
re

le
as

ed
 

(c
um

ul
at

iv
e)

 

 
£5

3,
76

5 
al

lo
ca

te
d 

(c
um

ul
at

iv
e)

  
£7

6,
33

0 
re

le
as

ed
 

(c
um

ul
at

iv
e)

 

 
£1

93
,7

04
.3

3 
al

lo
ca

te
d 

(c
um

ul
at

iv
e 

£1
06

,2
27

  r
el

ea
se

d 
(c

um
ul

at
iv

e)
 

 
T

ar
ge

t e
xc

ee
de

d.
 

  

 S
up

po
rt

 t
he

 c
om

m
un

ity
/v

ol
un

ta
ry

 s
ec

to
r 

to
 

se
cu

re
 

£5
0,

00
0 

of
 

ex
te

rn
al

 
fu

nd
in

g 
fo

r 
pu

bl
ic

 o
pe

n 
sp

ac
e,

 s
po

rt
 a

nd
 r

ec
re

at
io

n 
pr

oj
ec

ts
. 

 £1
5,

00
0 

se
cu

re
d 

in
 

Q
1

 

 £4
1,

58
0 

se
cu

re
d 

(c
um

ul
at

iv
e)

 
 

 £1
05

,5
00

 s
ec

ur
ed

 
(c

um
ul

at
iv

e)
 

 

 £1
14

,7
36

 s
ec

ur
ed

 
(c

um
ul

at
iv

e)
 

 

 
T

ar
ge

t e
xc

ee
de

d.
 

        

Page 19



A
nn

ex
 1

 
 

 
 

 
Q

4 
C

ou
nc

il 
P

la
n 

P
er

fo
rm

an
ce

 2
01

3/
14

 
 

   
   

   
   

  
 A

im
 (

3)
 :

  T
o

 im
p

ro
ve

 t
h

e 
w

ay
 w

e 
co

m
m

u
n

ic
at

e 
 

In
di

ca
to

r 
Qu

ar
te

r 1
 

Qu
ar

te
r 2

 
Qu

ar
te

r 3
 

Qu
ar

te
r 4

 
Q4

 A
ct

io
ns

/co
m

m
en

t 
 D

ev
el

op
 

an
d 

im
pl

em
e

nt
 

an
 

ex
te

rn
al

 
co

m
m

un
ic

at
io

ns
 

st
ra

te
gy

 
fo

r 
th

e
 

C
ou

nc
il.

 
 

 T
he

 d
ra

ft 
st

ra
te

gy
 is

 d
ue

 
fo

r 
co

ns
id

er
at

io
n 

by
 C

ab
in

et
. 

 R
ep

or
t t

o 
be

 
ta

bl
ed

 a
t 

C
ab

in
et

 t
hi

s 
ye

ar
. 

 A
w

ai
tin

g 
re

po
rt

 

 

R
ep

or
t t

ab
le

d 
fo

r 
C

ab
in

et
 to

 c
on

si
de

r 
06

 M
ay

 2
01

4.
  

 
T

ar
ge

t n
ot

 m
et

. 

  O
th

er
 a

ct
iv

it
y 

in
 L

ei
su

re
 a

n
d

 H
ea

lt
h

 S
er

vi
ce

s 
P

o
rt

fo
lio

 d
u

ri
n

g
 Q

u
ar

te
r 

4:
 

 
T

ou
r 

de
 F

ra
nc

e 
pr

ep
ar

at
io

ns
 f

or
 t

he
 H

am
bl

et
on

 s
ec

tio
n 

of
 t

he
 r

ou
te

 a
re

 w
el

l 
u

nd
er

-w
ay

 a
nd

 t
he

 v
ill

ag
e 

of
 W

es
t 

T
an

fie
ld

 i
s 

pr
ep

ar
in

g 
to

 h
os

t 
ap

pr
ox

im
at

e
ly

 1
2,

00
0 

vi
si

to
rs

. T
he

 c
al

l f
or

 v
ol

un
te

er
s 

to
 h

el
p 

ha
s 

be
en

 s
en

t o
ut

 to
 h

el
p 

on
 th

e 
05

 J
ul

y 
w

he
n 

th
e 

ev
en

t c
om

e
s 

to
 W

es
t 

T
an

fie
ld

. 

 
Le

is
ur

e 
C

en
tr

es
 m

ar
ke

d 
15

0 
da

ys
 t

o 
th

e 
G

ra
nd

 D
ep

ar
t 

w
ith

 a
 1

2 
ho

ur
 s

po
ns

or
ed

 s
pi

nn
in

g 
ev

en
t 

an
d 

a 
T

ou
r 

de
 F

ra
nc

e 
4.

5 
km

 r
ac

e 
(o

n 
gy

m
 b

ik
es

) 
in

 
ea

ch
 C

en
tr

e.
   

P
eo

pl
e 

vi
si

tin
g 

T
ow

n 
C

en
tr

es
 w

er
e 

be
 g

iv
en

 th
e 

ch
an

ce
 to

 s
ho

w
 o

ff 
th

ei
r 

cy
cl

in
g 

sk
ill

s 
by

 s
pi

nn
in

g 
as

 fa
r 

as
 th

e
y 

co
ul

d 
in

 3
0 

m
in

ut
es

. 

 
T

he
 L

ei
su

re
 C

en
tr

es
 h

av
e 

be
en

 a
w

ar
de

d 
fu

nd
s 

w
hi

ch
 h

av
e 

be
en

 s
up

po
rt

ed
 b

y 
ad

di
tio

na
l f

un
di

ng
 f

ro
m

 S
po

rt
 E

ng
la

nd
 t

o 
up

gr
ad

e 
fa

ci
lit

ie
s.

 

 
T

w
o 

lif
es

av
er

s 
fr

om
 B

ed
al

e 
Le

is
ur

e 
C

en
tr

e 
ha

ve
 q

ua
lif

ie
d 

to
 c

om
pe

te
 in

 th
e 

Li
fe

sa
vi

ng
 W

or
ld

 C
ha

m
pi

on
sh

ip
s 

in
 M

on
tp

el
lie

r,
 F

ra
n

ce
.  

 
A

 n
ew

 c
la

ss
 fo

r 
co

m
pe

tit
iv

e 
sw

im
m

er
s 

w
as

 in
tr

od
uc

ed
. “

R
ac

e 
P

ac
e”

 is
 a

 tw
el

ve
 w

ee
k 

co
ur

se
 to

 m
ak

e 
th

em
 m

or
e 

ef
fe

ct
iv

e 
in

 th
ei

r 
te

ch
ni

qu
e.

 

 
P

rim
ar

y 
sc

h
oo

ls
 f

ro
m

 a
ro

un
d 

N
or

th
al

le
rt

on
 a

nd
 T

hi
rs

k 
ba

ttl
ed

 it
 o

ut
 f

or
 t

he
 f

irs
t 

tim
e 

in
 tw

o 
sw

im
m

in
g 

ga
la

s.
 T

he
 “

to
w

n 
ev

e
nt

” 
ha

s 
no

w
 b

ee
n 

re
na

m
ed

 
th

e 
“W

hi
te

 H
or

se
 L

ea
gu

e”
 w

he
re

 n
in

e 
sc

ho
ol

s 
co

m
pe

te
 a

ga
in

st
 e

ac
h 

ot
he

r.
  

 
H

am
bl

et
on

 u
ns

un
g 

he
ro

es
 h

av
e 

be
en

 r
ec

og
ni

se
d 

in
 a

 s
pe

ci
al

 a
w

ar
ds

 c
er

em
on

y.
 T

en
 a

w
ar

ds
 w

er
e 

m
ad

e 
in

 t
he

 D
is

tr
ic

t 
C

ou
nc

il’
s 

‘H
am

bl
et

o
n

 
C

om
m

un
ity

 A
w

ar
ds

’ n
ig

ht
 (

M
ar

ch
 2

7)
 c

om
pe

re
d 

by
 R

us
se

ll 
W

al
ke

r 
fr

om
 R

ad
io

 Y
or

k.
 

 
In

ce
nt

iv
es

 to
 g

et
 f

it 
an

d 
jo

in
 t

he
 Z

es
t F

re
ed

om
 m

em
be

rs
hi

p 
be

fo
re

 t
he

 c
lo

ck
s 

ch
an

ge
d 

w
er

e 
pr

om
ot

ed
 a

t 
th

e 
le

is
ur

e 
ce

nt
re

s.
  

 
T

he
 S

ai
ns

bu
ry

’s
 S

po
rt

 R
el

ie
f 

M
ile

 t
oo

k 
pl

ac
e 

at
 H

am
bl

et
on

 L
ei

su
re

 C
en

tr
e 

hu
nd

re
ds

 o
f 

pe
op

le
 p

ar
tic

ip
at

ed
 in

 t
he

 f
un

dr
ai

si
ng

 e
ve

nt
, 

ta
ki

ng
 in

 o
ne

 o
f 

th
re

e 
ro

ut
es

 o
f o

ne
, t

hr
ee

 o
r 

si
x 

m
ile

s.
 

 
         

Page 20



A
nn

ex
 1

 
 

 
 

 
Q

4 
C

ou
nc

il 
P

la
n 

P
er

fo
rm

an
ce

 2
01

3/
14

 
 

   
   

   
   

  

Su
pp

or
t S

er
vi
ce
s 
&
 E
co
no

m
ic
 D
ev
el
op

m
en

t 
 A

im
 (

1)
 :

  T
o

 p
ro

vi
d

e 
fi

n
an

ci
al

 s
u

st
ai

n
ab

ili
ty

. 
 W

e 
w

ill
 m

ee
t 

th
is

 a
im

 b
y 

im
pl

em
en

tin
g 

ar
ra

ng
em

en
ts

 t
o 

en
su

re
 t

he
 C

ou
nc

il’
s 

fin
an

ci
al

 s
us

ta
in

ab
ili

ty
 t

hr
ou

gh
ou

t 
th

e 
pe

rio
d 

of
 t

h
e 

cu
rr

en
t 

sp
en

di
ng

 r
ev

ie
w

 
an

d 
be

yo
nd

. 
 In

di
ca

to
r 

Qu
ar

te
r 1

 
Qu

ar
te

r 2
 

Qu
ar

te
r 3

 
Qu

ar
te

r 4
 

Q4
 

Ac
tio

ns
/co

m
m

en
t 

C
ol

le
ct

io
n 

of
 B

us
in

es
s 

R
at

es
 

36
.5

5%
 c

ol
le

ct
ed

 
co

m
pa

re
d 

to
 3

7.
25

%
 in

  

Q
1 

fo
r 

20
12

/1
3.

 

62
.5

6%
 c

ol
le

ct
ed

 
co

m
pa

re
d 

to
 6

3.
34

%
 in

 
Q

2 
fo

r 
20

12
/1

3 

81
.2

8%
 c

ol
le

ct
ed

 
co

m
pa

re
d 

to
 8

1.
33

%
 

in
 Q

3 
fo

r 
20

12
/1

3.
 

98
.4

7%
 c

ol
le

ct
ed

 
co

m
pa

re
d 

to
 9

1.
59

%
 in

 
Q

4 
fo

r 
20

12
/1

3.
 

T
ar

ge
t m

et
 

C
ou

nc
il 

T
ax

 C
ol

le
ct

io
n 

 

30
.8

6%
  c

ol
le

ct
ed

 
co

m
pa

re
d 

to
  

30
.8

7%
 in

 Q
1 

20
12

/1
3.

 

59
.2

4%
 c

ol
le

ct
ed

 
co

m
pa

re
d 

to
 

59
.4

9%
 in

 Q
2 

20
12

/1
3.

 

78
.2

4%
 c

ol
le

ct
ed

 
co

m
pa

re
d 

to
 

78
.6

4%
 in

 Q
3 

20
12

/1
3.

 

98
.6

8%
 c

ol
le

ct
ed

 
co

m
pa

re
d 

to
 9

8.
46

%
 in

 
Q

4 
20

12
/1

3.
 

T
ar

ge
t m

et
  

 

C
ap

ita
l P

ro
gr

am
m

e
 

 

10
0%

 o
f t

he
 in

 y
ea

r 
ca

pi
ta

l p
ro

gr
am

m
e 

ha
s 

be
en

 a
pp

ro
ve

d.
   

T
ar

ge
t m

et
  

T
ar

ge
t m

et
  

T
ar

ge
t m

et
  

T
ar

ge
t m

et
  

Page 21



A
nn

ex
 1

 
 

 
 

 
Q

4 
C

ou
nc

il 
P

la
n 

P
er

fo
rm

an
ce

 2
01

3/
14

 
 

   
   

   
   

  
 A

im
 (

2)
 :

  T
o

 m
in

im
is

e 
th

e 
im

p
ac

t 
to

 t
h

e 
C

o
u

n
ci

l a
n

d
 c

o
m

m
u

n
it

y 
o

f 
th

e 
ch

an
g

es
 t

o
 W

el
fa

re
 R

ef
o

rm
.  

 T
he

 c
ha

ng
es

 w
ill

 b
e 

si
gn

ifi
ca

nt
 a

nd
 p

os
e 

si
gn

ifi
ca

nt
 r

is
ks

 t
o 

th
e 

C
ou

nc
il 

an
d 

th
e 

C
om

m
un

ity
. 

 I
n 

or
de

r 
to

 m
on

ito
r 

an
d 

m
an

ag
e 

th
is

 i
m

pa
ct

 p
er

fo
rm

an
ce

 
ag

ai
ns

t t
he

 fo
llo

w
in

g 
w

ill
 b

e 
m

on
ito

re
d 

an
d 

m
an

ag
ed

. 
 In

d
ic

at
o

r 
Q

u
ar

te
r 

1 
– 

4 
 

Q
4 

A
ct

io
n

s/
co

m
m

en
t 

 

T
o 

en
su

re
 

w
e 

de
liv

e
r 

a 
hi

gh
 

qu
al

ity
 s

er
vi

ce
 t

o 
ou

r 
ci

tiz
en

s 
w

e 
w

ill
 i

m
pr

ov
e 

pr
oc

es
si

ng
 t

im
es

 i
n 

lin
e 

w
ith

 
N

or
th

 
Y

or
ks

hi
re

 
A

ut
ho

rit
ie

s.
  

    M
on

th
ly

 p
ro

ce
ss

in
g 

tim
e 

ta
rg

et
s:

 
 

16
 d

ay
s 

fo
r 

ne
w

 c
la

im
s 

 
 

7 
da

ys
 f

or
 c

ha
ng

es
 in

 
ci

rc
um

st
an

ce
s 

 C
om

pa
re

 
w

ith
 

ot
he

r 
D

is
tr

ic
ts

 
in

 
N

or
th

 Y
or

ks
hi

re
 

  

 In
 Q

1 
pr

oc
es

si
ng

 ti
m

e 
(m

on
th

ly
) 

 
N

ew
 c

la
im

s 
33

.3
7 

da
ys

  
 

C
ha

ng
es

 in
 c

irc
um

st
an

ce
s 

14
.3

4 
da

ys
.  

 
 In

 Q
2 

pr
oc

es
si

ng
 ti

m
e 

(m
on

th
ly

) 
 

N
ew

 c
la

im
s 

33
.5

5 
da

ys
  

 
C

ha
ng

es
 in

 c
irc

um
st

an
ce

s 
18

.9
0 

da
ys

.  
 

  In
 Q

3 
th

e 
nu

m
be

r 
of

 c
la

im
s 

an
d 

ch
an

ge
s 

in
 c

irc
um

st
an

ce
s 

w
as

 r
ep

or
te

d
 

to
 s

ho
w

 th
e 

ba
ck

lo
g 

be
in

g 
m

an
ag

ed
 th

ro
ug

h 
ou

t-
so

ur
ci

ng
 o

f s
om

e 
w

or
k:

  
 

N
ew

 c
la

im
s 

ba
ck

lo
g 

5 
 

C
ha

ng
es

 in
 c

irc
um

st
an

ce
s 

ba
ck

lo
g 

29
8 

  
  In

 Q
4 

pr
oc

es
si

ng
 ti

m
e 

(m
on

th
ly

) 
 

N
ew

 c
la

im
s 

22
.3

 d
ay

s 
(3

rd
 b

el
ow

 S
el

by
 t

op
 a

t 
17

.7
4)

, 
co

nt
in

ui
ng

 t
he

 
im

pr
ov

in
g 

tr
en

d.
 

 
C

ha
ng

e 
in

 c
irc

um
st

an
ce

s 
6.

39
 d

ay
s 

(4
th

 b
eh

in
d 

S
el

by
 to

 a
t 2

.4
8)

. 
 

 

P
er

fo
rm

an
ce

 
di

d 
no

t 
m

ee
t 

ta
rg

et
 

fo
r 

pr
oc

es
si

ng
 n

ew
 c

la
im

s.
 

 P
er

fo
rm

an
ce

 
di

d 
no

t 
m

ee
t 

ta
rg

et
 

fo
r 

pr
oc

es
si

ng
 c

ha
ng

es
 in

 c
irc

um
st

an
ce

s.
 

 
20

13
-1

4 
ha

s 
se

en
 a

 v
as

t 
am

ou
nt

 o
f 

ch
an

ge
. 

W
el

fa
re

 R
ef

or
m

 r
eq

ui
re

d 
re

as
se

ss
m

en
t 

of
 

cu
st

om
er

s 
en

tit
le

m
en

t 
w

hi
ch

 
le

d 
to

 
in

cr
ea

se
s 

in
 

en
qu

ire
s 

an
d 

a 
de

m
an

d 
fo

r 
m

or
e 

su
pp

or
t 

as
 

w
el

l 
as

 
a 

co
nt

in
ui

ng
 

in
cr

ea
se

 in
 n

ew
 c

us
to

m
er

s.
  

 R
eq

ue
st

s 
fo

r 
D

is
cr

et
io

na
ry

 
H

ou
si

ng
 

pa
ym

en
ts

 i
n

cr
ea

se
d 

th
re

ef
ol

d 
co

m
pa

re
d 

to
 

pr
ev

io
us

 y
e

ar
s.

 I
n 

ad
di

tio
n 

th
e 

se
rv

ic
e 

w
as

 
af

fe
ct

ed
 b

y 
va

ca
nc

ie
s 

an
d 

th
e 

sp
lit

tin
g 

of
  

sh
ar

ed
 s

er
vi

ce
s.

  
 

 T
o 

m
ax

im
is

e 
th

e 
op

po
rt

un
iti

es
 t

o 
de

te
ct

 a
nd

 p
re

ve
nt

 fr
au

d 
 

 Q
1 

£3
8,

00
0 

of
 fr

au
d 

w
as

 id
en

tif
ie

d.
   

 Q
2 

£6
2,

03
7 

id
en

tif
ie

d 
(c

um
ul

at
iv

e)
. 

 Q
3 

£8
5,

86
7 

id
en

tif
ie

d 
to

 3
0 

N
ov

’1
3 

(c
um

ul
at

iv
e)

. 
 Q

4 
£8

2,
97

3 
id

en
tif

ie
d 

in
 Q

4.
  

 T
ot

al
 fo

r 
20

13
-1

4 
 £

16
8,

64
0 

 

 

T
ar

ge
t m

et
. 

 
 

                

Page 22



A
nn

ex
 1

 
 

 
 

 
Q

4 
C

ou
nc

il 
P

la
n 

P
er

fo
rm

an
ce

 2
01

3/
14

 
 

   
   

   
   

  
A

im
 (

3)
 :

  T
o

 im
p

le
m

en
t 

th
e 

L
o

ca
l T

ax
 s

ch
em

e 
an

d
 e

n
su

re
 a

ll
 p

ro
p

er
ti

es
 a

re
 t

ax
ed

 t
o

 m
in

im
is

e 
im

p
ac

t 
to

 t
h

e 
co

m
m

u
n

it
y 

a
n

d
 C

o
u

n
ci

l. 
 T

o 
en

su
re

 th
e 

be
st

 f
in

an
ci

al
 o

ut
co

m
e 

fo
r 

th
e 

C
ou

nc
il 

in
 th

is
 a

nd
 f

ol
lo

w
in

g 
ye

ar
s 

th
e 

fo
llo

w
in

g 
m

ea
su

re
s 

w
ill

 b
e 

ta
ke

n:
- 

 In
d

ic
at

o
r 

Q
u

ar
te

r 
1-

 4
 

Q
4 

A
ct

io
n

s/
co

m
m

en
t 

W
e 

w
ill

 
m

on
ito

r 
th

e 
am

ou
nt

 
of

 
C

ou
nc

il 
T

ax
 

R
ed

uc
tio

n 
w

e 
pa

y 
ou

t 
ve

rs
us

 t
he

 a
m

ou
nt

 e
st

im
at

ed
 

fo
r 

th
e 

ye
a

r 
to

 
en

su
re

 
th

e 
be

st
 

po
ss

ib
le

 o
ut

co
m

e 
in

 fu
tu

re
 y

ea
rs

.  

 

T
he

 e
nd

 o
f 

ye
ar

 b
ud

g
et

 f
ig

ur
e 

(a
nn

ua
l) 

is
 £

4,
46

6,
00

0.
  

T
he

 f
ig

ur
e 

fo
r 

C
ou

nc
il 

T
ax

 
R

ed
uc

tio
n 

(C
T

R
) 

o
n 

01
 

A
pr

il 
20

13
 

(a
nn

ua
l 

bi
lli

ng
) 

is
 

£4
,2

68
,2

65
. 

 
V

ar
ia

tio
n 

fr
om

 
C

ou
nc

il 
T

ax
 

R
ed

uc
tio

n 
fig

ur
e 

a
t 

01
 A

pr
il 

20
13

 (
m

on
th

ly
) 

=
 Q

1 
£4

,3
23

,7
58

. 

Q
2 

T
he

 a
m

ou
nt

 o
f 

C
T

R
 a

w
ar

de
d 

le
ve

lle
d 

of
f 

as
 t

he
 b

ac
kl

og
 o

f 
cl

ai
m

s 
w

as
 a

dd
re

ss
ed

. 
B

as
ed

 o
n 

th
e 

in
iti

al
 p

ro
fil

in
g 

th
er

e 
w

as
 £

20
4,

07
4

 
th

at
 c

ou
ld

 b
e 

al
lo

ca
te

d.
  

Q
3 

 P
er

fo
rm

an
ce

 t
o 

30
 N

ov
em

be
r 

20
13

: 
T

he
 a

m
ou

nt
 o

f 
C

T
R

 a
w

ar
d

ed
 

re
du

ce
d.

 T
hi

s 
m

ay
 s

til
l 

be
 t

he
 e

ff
ec

t 
of

 s
ea

so
na

l 
w

or
k.

 D
ec

em
be

r 
no

rm
al

ly
 s

h
ow

s 
an

 i
nc

re
as

e 
in

 t
he

 l
ev

el
 o

f 
be

ne
fit

 a
w

ar
de

d 
so

 t
he

 
fig

ur
e 

of
 £

4,
46

6,
00

0.
00

 n
ee

ds
 t

o 
be

 s
ee

n 
w

ith
 a

 w
or

d 
of

 c
au

tio
n 

as
 

D
ec

em
be

r 
is

 n
ot

 in
cl

ud
ed

 in
 th

is
 fi

gu
re

. 

Q
4 

 th
e

 a
m

o
un

t p
ai

d 
ou

t 
in

 C
ou

nc
il 

T
ax

 R
ed

uc
tio

n 
ha

s 
re

du
ce

d 
by

 fu
rt

he
r 

£1
7,

80
0.

 
H

ow
ev

er
 

so
m

e 
aw

ar
ds

 
an

d 
ch

an
ge

s 
w

ill
 

be
 

a 
ca

rr
ie

d 
fo

rw
ar

d 
in

to
 2

01
4-

15
.  

T
ar

ge
t m

et
. 

  

W
e 

w
ill

 m
on

ito
r 

th
e 

ra
tio

 b
et

w
ee

n 
th

e 
to

ta
l 

ra
te

ab
le

 v
al

ue
 a

nd
 t

he
 

nu
m

be
r 

of
 b

us
in

es
se

s 
in

 t
he

 a
re

a 
to

 e
ns

ur
e 

th
at

 a
ny

 c
ha

n
ge

s 
to

 t
hi

s 
ar

e 
re

fle
ct

ed
 i

n 
th

e 
ta

rg
et

 s
et

 b
y 

G
ov

er
n

m
en

t 
fo

r 
fu

tu
re

 y
ea

rs
. 

 

T
he

 t
ot

al
 r

at
ea

bl
e 

va
lu

e 
(m

on
th

ly
) 

as
 a

t 
31

 M
ar

ch
 2

01
3 

w
as

 £
66

,2
74

,9
34

 
co

m
pa

re
d 

to
 th

e 
Q

1 
fig

ur
e 

of
 £

66
,2

67
,6

19
.  

 

Q
2 

 
ha

s 
se

en
 

a 
re

du
ct

io
n 

in
 

th
e 

to
ta

l 
R

at
e

ab
le

 
V

al
ue

 
of

 
£1

10
,4

25
 

(0
.1

66
%

).
 D

ue
 to

 2
 p

ro
pe

rt
ie

s:
 

• 
on

e 
re

du
ce

d 
by

 £
47

,5
00

 

• 
on

e 
fr

o
m

 £
67

,0
00

 r
ed

uc
ed

 t
o 

£0
 –

 p
ro

pe
rt

y 
un

de
rg

oi
ng

 m
aj

or
 

 
re

no
va

tio
ns

. 

Q
3 

 T
he

 a
ct

ua
l 

nu
m

be
r 

of
 p

ro
pe

rt
ie

s 
in

 r
at

in
g 

ha
s 

in
cr

ea
se

d 
sl

ig
ht

ly
. 

P
er

fo
rm

an
ce

 to
 3

0 
N

ov
em

be
r 

20
13

:  

   
   

 T
he

 t
ot

al
 R

at
ea

bl
e 

V
al

ue
 i

nc
re

as
ed

 b
y 

£
17

0,
00

0 
ov

er
 t

he
 l

as
t 

2 
m

on
th

s 
an

d
 i

s 
no

w
 £

6
7,

00
0 

hi
gh

er
 t

ha
n 

th
e 

ba
se

 f
ig

ur
e 

as
 a

t 
01

 
A

pr
il 

20
13

.T
he

 
in

cr
ea

se
 

re
la

te
s 

to
 

a 
nu

m
be

r 
of

 
pr

op
er

tie
s.

 
T

he
 

ac
tu

al
 n

um
be

r 
of

 p
ro

pe
rt

ie
s 

in
 r

at
in

g 
ha

s 
in

cr
ea

se
d 

sl
ig

ht
ly

. 
 

 

T
ar

ge
t m

et
. 

Page 23



A
nn

ex
 1

 
 

 
 

 
Q

4 
C

ou
nc

il 
P

la
n 

P
er

fo
rm

an
ce

 2
01

3/
14

 
 

   
   

   
   

  

Q
4 

 T
he

 t
o

ta
l 

ra
te

ab
le

 v
al

ue
 h

as
 d

ec
re

as
ed

 s
in

ce
 t

he
 l

as
t 

qu
ar

te
r 

by
 

£1
84

K
 

du
e 

to
 

ch
an

ge
s 

in
 

pr
op

er
ty

 
va

lu
at

io
ns

. 
 

H
ow

ev
er

, 
th

e
 

nu
m

be
r 

of
 p

ro
pe

rt
ie

s 
ha

s 
in

cr
ea

se
d 

by
 2

6.
 

 A
im

 (
4)

 :
  T

o
 s

u
p

p
o

rt
 lo

ca
l e

co
n

o
m

ic
 g

ro
w

th
. 

 T
o 

su
pp

or
t 

lo
ca

l e
co

no
m

ic
 g

ro
w

th
 b

y:
- 

In
d

ic
at

o
r 

Q
u

ar
te

r 
1 

- 
4 

Q
4 

A
ct

io
n

s/
co

m
m

en
t 

 T
hr

ou
gh

 
th

e 
lo

ca
l 

pl
an

ni
ng

 
pr

oc
es

se
s 

ap
pr

ov
in

g 
40

 h
ec

ta
re

s 
of

 
em

pl
oy

m
en

t 
la

nd
 

by
 

M
ar

ch
 

20
15

 
m

ai
nl

y 
in

 
th

e 
fiv

e 
M

ar
ke

t 
T

ow
ns

 
to

 
fa

ci
lit

at
e 

op
po

rt
un

iti
es

 
fo

r 
lo

ca
l e

co
no

m
ic

 g
ro

w
th

. 
 

 Q
1 

   
0.

11
3 

of
 a

 h
ec

ta
re

 a
pp

ro
ve

d.
 . 

 
  Q

2 
 

ov
er

 
2 

he
ct

ar
es

 
of

 
ad

di
tio

na
l 

em
pl

oy
m

en
t 

la
nd

 
w

as
 

ap
pr

ov
ed

 
(2

0,
36

9 
m

2)
. 

T
hi

s 
w

as
 m

ai
nl

y 
fr

om
 a

n 
ex

pa
ns

io
n 

of
 S

to
ke

sl
ey

 
B

us
in

es
s 

P
ar

k 
(1

9,
67

4 
m

2)
, 

a 
si

te
 w

hi
ch

 i
s 

al
lo

ca
te

d 
in

 t
he

 L
oc

al
 

D
ev

el
op

m
e

nt
 F

ra
m

ew
o

rk
. 

A
 t

ot
al

 o
f 

54
1 

m
2

 h
ow

ev
er

 w
ill

 b
e 

lo
st

 a
t 

Le
em

in
g 

B
ar

 
as

 
pa

rt
 

of
 

th
e 

vi
lla

ge
 

ce
nt

re
 

re
ge

ne
ra

tio
n 

un
de

r 
al

lo
ca

tio
n 

B
M

4.
 T

hi
s 

re
su

lts
 i

n 
a 

D
is

tr
ic

t 
w

id
e 

ne
t 

ga
in

 f
ig

ur
e 

of
 

19
,8

28
 m

2.
 

 Q
3 

  
th

e 
ne

t 
ad

di
tio

na
l 

flo
or

 s
pa

ce
 p

ro
vi

de
d,

 b
et

w
ee

n 
01

/1
0/

20
13

 a
nd

 
18

/1
2/

20
13

 i
s 

1,
43

9.
2 

sq
u

ar
e 

m
et

re
s.

 T
hi

s 
in

cl
ud

es
 a

n 
ex

te
ns

io
n 

to
 a

 w
or

ks
ho

p 
at

 S
ut

to
n

 o
n 

th
e 

F
or

e
st

, 
co

ns
tr

uc
tio

n 
of

 a
n 

in
du

st
ria

l 
bu

ild
in

g 
at

 A
is

ke
w

 a
nd

 c
on

st
ru

ct
io

n 
of

 a
 w

ar
e

ho
us

e 
ex

te
ns

io
n 

in
 

T
op

cl
iff

e.
 

 Q
4 

  
 t

he
 a

m
ou

nt
 o

f 
ad

di
tio

na
l l

an
d 

ap
pr

ov
ed

 in
 Q

4 
is

 1
.3

97
2 

ha
. 

gi
vi

ng
 a

 
to

ta
l o

f 3
.6

31
7 

ha
. f

or
 th

e 
ye

ar
. 

 

 

P
er

fo
rm

an
ce

 r
em

ai
ns

 b
el

ow
 ta

rg
et

. 
 T

he
 a

pp
ro

va
l 

of
 e

m
pl

oy
m

en
t 

la
nd

 f
el

l 
be

lo
w

 
ta

rg
et

. 
T

he
 a

ct
io

ns
 t

o 
in

cr
ea

se
 e

m
pl

oy
m

en
t 

in
 t

he
 D

is
tr

ic
t 

fo
rm

s 
pa

rt
 o

f 
th

e 
E

co
no

m
ic

 
S

tr
at

eg
y 

an
d 

w
ill

 b
e 

in
co

rp
or

at
ed

 i
nt

o 
th

e 
ac

tio
n 

pl
an

 th
at

 is
 b

ei
ng

 d
ev

el
op

ed
. 

 

 P
ro

vi
di

ng
 

w
or

ks
pa

ce
s 

an
d 

im
pr

ov
in

g 
th

e 
av

er
ag

e 
o

cc
up

an
cy

 
le

ve
ls

 
in

 
th

e 
in

du
st

ria
l 

an
d 

m
an

ag
ed

 w
or

ks
pa

ce
s.

 
 

 Q
1 

90
.5

%
 o

cc
up

an
cy

 r
at

es
 o

n 
in

du
st

ria
l 

pr
em

is
es

 h
as

 b
ee

n 
ac

hi
ev

ed
 

ag
ai

ns
t 

th
e 

ta
rg

et
 

of
 

95
%

 
an

d 
fo

r 
M

an
ag

ed
 

W
or

ks
pa

ce
s 

77
%

 
ag

ai
ns

t 
th

e 
ta

rg
et

 o
f 

75
%

. 
 Q

2 
92

.9
%

 o
cc

up
an

cy
 r

at
es

 o
n 

in
du

st
ria

l 
pr

em
is

es
 h

as
 b

ee
n 

ac
hi

ev
ed

 
ag

ai
ns

t 
th

e 
ta

rg
et

 o
f 

95
%

 a
nd

 M
an

ag
ed

 W
or

ks
pa

ce
s 

ac
hi

ev
ed

 7
7%

 
oc

cu
pa

nc
y 

ag
ai

ns
t t

he
 ta

rg
et

 o
f 7

5%
. 

 

Q
3 

 o
cc

up
an

cy
 r

at
es

 o
n 

in
du

st
ria

l p
re

m
is

es
 w

as
 8

8.
6%

 (
ta

rg
et

 9
5%

) 
 

     

 P
er

fo
rm

an
ce

 w
as

 w
ith

in
 a

cc
ep

te
d 

to
le

ra
nc

e.
 

 

T
he

 o
cc

up
an

cy
 l

ev
el

s 
fo

r 
w

or
k 

sp
ac

es
 w

as
 

w
ith

in
 

ac
ce

pt
ed

 
to

le
ra

nc
e 

of
 

m
ee

tin
g 

th
e 

ta
rg

et
 

fo
r 

th
e 

ye
ar

. 
T

he
 

m
an

ag
ed

 
w

or
ks

pa
ce

 
at

 
th

e 
E

vo
lu

tio
n 

pr
em

is
es

 
is

 
un

de
r 

on
-g

oi
ng

 
re

vi
ew

, 
ad

di
tio

na
l 

ca
r 

pa
rk

in
g 

ha
s 

be
en

 
se

cu
re

d 
fo

r 
a 

2 
ye

ar
 

pe
rio

d 
to

 h
el

p 
en

co
ur

ag
e 

te
na

nt
s.

 T
hi

s 
w

ill
 

re
m

ai
n 

un
de

r 
re

vi
ew

 t
o

 a
sc

er
ta

in
 v

ia
bi

lit
y 

of
 

m
ai

nt
ai

ni
ng

 
th

e 
pr

em
is

es
 

as
 

a 
C

ou
nc

il 
as

se
t. 

 

Page 24



A
nn

ex
 1

 
 

 
 

 
Q

4 
C

ou
nc

il 
P

la
n 

P
er

fo
rm

an
ce

 2
01

3/
14

 
 

   
   

   
   

  
Q

3 
 o

cc
up

an
cy

 in
 M

an
ag

ed
 W

or
ks

pa
ce

 w
as

 7
6.

7%
  (

ta
rg

et
 7

5%
) 

 A
 s

lig
ht

 d
ro

p 
on

 t
he

 p
re

vi
ou

s 
qu

ar
te

r 
du

e 
to

 3
 s

ui
te

s 
be

in
g 

va
ca

te
d 

at
 E

vo
lu

tio
n 

– 
in

co
m

e 
co

nt
in

ue
s 

to
 b

e 
su

pp
or

te
d 

by
 r

oo
m

 b
oo

ki
ng

s.
 

U
nf

or
tu

na
te

ly
 2

 s
ui

te
s 

w
ill

 b
ec

om
e 

va
ca

nt
 a

t 
M

o
m

en
tu

m
 in

 F
eb

ru
ar

y 
w

hi
ch

 w
ill

 c
on

tr
ib

ut
e 

to
 a

 fu
rt

he
r 

do
w

nw
ar

d 
tr

en
d.

 
 Q

4 
 C

ou
nc

il 
(I

nd
us

tr
ia

l) 
w

or
ks

pa
ce

s 
Q

4 
=

 9
2.

9%
 (

ta
rg

et
 9

5%
) 

   
   

 M
an

ag
ed

 w
or

ks
pa

ce
s 

Q
4 

=
 7

2.
4%

 (
ta

rg
et

 7
5%

) 

 
 

E
na

bl
in

g 
yo

un
g 

pe
op

le
 t

o 
ge

t 
in

to
 

w
or

k 
by

 
pr

ov
id

in
g 

ap
pr

en
tic

es
hi

ps
 

w
ith

in
 

th
e 

C
ou

nc
il.

 
P

ro
vi

di
ng

 
su

pp
or

t 
to

 
sm

al
l 

bu
si

ne
ss

es
, 

in
 

pa
rt

ic
ul

ar
 

m
ic

ro
 

bu
si

ne
ss

es
, 

fo
r 

ap
pr

en
tic

es
hi

ps
. 

 

 Q
2 

th
er

e 
ar

e 
15

 a
pp

re
nt

ic
es

 w
ith

in
 t

he
 C

ou
nc

il 
an

d 
7 

ap
pr

en
tic

es
 in

 lo
ca

l 
sm

al
l 

bu
si

ne
ss

es
. 

7 
bu

si
ne

ss
es

 
ha

ve
 

be
en

 
ap

pr
ov

ed
 

fo
r 

gr
an

t 
as

si
st

an
ce

 a
nd

 a
re

 s
ea

rc
hi

ng
 f

or
 a

pp
re

nt
ic

es
.  

 Q
3 

15
 

w
ith

in
 

th
e 

C
ou

nc
il;

 
12

 
B

us
in

es
s 

A
pp

re
nt

ic
es

 
in

 
pl

ac
e;

 
an

d 
6

 
bu

si
ne

ss
es

 a
pp

ro
ve

d 
gr

an
ts

 s
ea

rc
hi

ng
 f

or
 a

pp
re

nt
ic

es
. 

 Q
4 

15
 C

ou
nc

il 
an

d 
14

 B
us

in
es

s 
ap

pr
en

tic
es

 i
n 

pl
ac

e;
 1

0 
bu

si
ne

ss
es

 
ap

pr
ov

ed
 a

nd
 s

ea
rc

hi
ng

 fo
r 

ap
pr

en
tic

es
 

 

 
T

ar
ge

t e
xc

ee
de

d.
 

 T
he

 
on

-g
oi

ng
 

su
pp

or
t 

fo
r 

ap
pr

en
tic

es
hi

ps
 

re
ce

iv
ed

 
ad

di
tio

na
l 

fu
nd

in
g 

fo
r 

20
14

-1
5.

 
In

cr
ea

se
d 

su
pp

or
t 

fo
r 

ap
pr

en
tic

es
hi

ps
 

by
 

lo
ca

l 
bu

si
ne

ss
es

 c
on

tin
ue

s 
to

 s
ho

w
 p

os
iti

ve
 

re
su

lts
.  

 
     A

im
 (

5)
 :

  T
o

 b
ec

o
m

e 
m

o
re

 ‘b
u

si
n

es
s 

fr
ie

n
d

ly
’ a

s 
a 

C
o

u
n

ci
l a

n
d

 h
el

p
 b

u
si

n
es

se
s 

to
 lo

ca
te

, s
ta

y 
an

d
 g

ro
w

 in
 H

am
b

le
to

n
. 

T
o 

ac
hi

ev
e 

th
is

 a
im

 th
e 

fo
llo

w
in

g 
m

ea
su

re
s 

w
ill

 b
e 

ta
ke

n:
- 

In
d

ic
at

o
r 

Q
u

ar
te

r 
1 

- 
4 

Q
4 

A
ct

io
n

s/
co

m
m

en
t 

Im
pr

ov
e

 
co

m
m

un
ic

at
io

n 
an

d 
en

ga
ge

m
en

t 
w

ith
 

bu
si

ne
ss

es
 

th
ro

ug
h 

lo
ca

l 
bu

si
ne

ss
 

fo
ru

m
s,

 
ne

tw
or

ki
ng

 a
nd

 u
si

ng
 a

 r
an

ge
 o

f 
co

m
m

un
ic

at
io

n 
m

et
ho

ds
. 

 

Q
1 

ba
se

lin
e 

po
si

tio
n 

fo
r 

th
e 

C
ou

nc
il 

in
 

re
la

tio
n 

to
 

en
ga

ge
m

en
t 

w
ith

 
bu

si
ne

ss
 a

cr
os

s 
th

e 
D

is
tr

ic
t h

as
 b

ee
n 

co
m

pl
et

ed
.  

 Q
2 

 s
ee

 a
ct

io
ns

 ta
ke

n 
in

 “
N

et
w

or
ks

 a
nd

 F
or

um
s”

 b
el

ow
 

 

Q
3 

 T
he

 b
u

si
ne

ss
 e

ng
ag

em
en

t 
st

ra
te

gy
 h

as
 b

e
en

 c
om

pl
et

ed
 a

nd
 

fo
llo

w
in

g 
co

ns
ul

ta
tio

n 
w

ith
 o

th
er

 C
ou

nc
il 

te
am

s 
an

d 
a 

sm
al

l g
ro

up
 o

f 
bu

si
ne

ss
es

 f
or

 t
he

ir 
in

pu
t,

 t
he

 s
tr

at
eg

y 
is

 n
ow

  
to

 b
e 

di
sc

us
se

d 
by

 
M

an
ag

em
en

t T
ea

m
. 

 E
ng

ag
ed

 w
ith

 1
0 

la
rg

er
 c

om
pa

ni
es

 (
ke

y 
ac

co
un

ts
) 

an
d 

88
 in

di
vi

du
al

 
co

m
pa

ni
es

. 
S

ee
 ta

rg
et

 b
) 

fo
r 

ex
am

pl
es

 o
f e

ng
ag

em
en

t. 
 T

he
 B

us
in

es
s 

E
ng

ag
em

en
t 

O
ff

ic
er

 h
as

 c
on

ta
ct

ed
 t

ea
m

s 
w

ith
 s

pe
ci

fic
 

bu
si

ne
ss

 q
ue

rie
s 

to
 b

e 
re

so
lv

ed
.  

 

 P
er

fo
rm

an
ce

 i
s 

on
 t

ar
ge

t 
ag

ai
ns

t 
th

e 
ac

tio
n 

pl
an

. 
 F

ee
db

ac
k 

fr
om

 
bu

si
ne

ss
es

 
an

d 
th

e 
LE

P
 

re
ga

rd
in

g 
th

e 
ro

le
 

of
 

th
e 

C
ou

nc
il 

in
 

su
pp

or
tin

g 
th

e 
lo

ca
l e

co
no

m
y 

is
 p

os
iti

ve
 a

nd
 

th
e 

of
fic

er
 e

ng
ag

em
en

t 
w

ith
 b

us
in

es
s 

is
 w

el
l 

re
ce

iv
ed

. 
M

ee
tin

gs
 w

ith
 t

he
 F

ed
er

at
io

n 
of

 
S

m
al

l 
B

us
in

es
se

s 
ar

e 
po

si
tiv

e 
an

d 
th

e
 

C
ou

nc
il 

ha
s 

re
ce

iv
ed

 p
os

iti
ve

 f
ee

db
ac

k 
on

 
th

e 
de

ve
lo

pm
en

t 
of

 a
 c

om
m

er
ci

al
 p

ro
pe

rt
ie

s 
lis

t. 

Page 25



A
nn

ex
 1

 
 

 
 

 
Q

4 
C

ou
nc

il 
P

la
n 

P
er

fo
rm

an
ce

 2
01

3/
14

 
 

   
   

   
   

  
Q

4 
T

he
 

B
us

in
es

s 
E

ng
ag

em
en

t 
S

tr
at

eg
y 

ha
s 

be
en

 
co

m
pl

et
ed

 
an

d
 

ap
pr

ov
ed

 
b

y 
M

an
ag

em
en

t 
T

ea
m

 
an

d 
fo

llo
w

in
g 

co
ns

ul
ta

tio
n 

w
ith

 
ot

he
r 

C
ou

nc
il 

te
am

s 
an

d 
a 

sm
al

l g
ro

up
 o

f 
bu

si
ne

ss
es

 f
or

 t
he

ir 
in

pu
t, 

th
e 

st
ra

te
gy

 i
s 

no
w

 in
 p

la
ce

. 
N

ew
 t

ar
ge

ts
 f

or
 2

01
4-

15
 b

ei
ng

 a
gr

ee
d 

an
d 

w
ill

 b
e 

av
ai

la
bl

e 
on

 w
eb

si
te

 &
 c

irc
ul

at
ed

 t
o 

al
l 

se
rv

ic
es

 d
ur

in
g 

Q
1 

20
14

/1
5 

  
E

ng
ag

ed
 w

ith
 7

 l
ar

ge
r 

co
m

pa
ni

es
 (

ke
y 

ac
co

un
ts

) 
an

d 
60

 i
nd

iv
id

ua
l 

co
m

pa
ni

es
 (

se
e 

ta
rg

et
 b

) 
fo

r 
ex

am
pl

es
 o

f 
en

ga
ge

m
en

t.
 I

n 
ad

di
tio

n 
a 

fu
rt

he
r 

77
 w

er
e 

co
nt

ac
te

d 
to

 j
oi

n 
th

e 
ne

w
 T

hi
rs

k 
In

du
st

ria
l 

P
ar

k 
B

us
in

es
s 

G
ro

up
. 

 

 
T

he
 B

us
in

es
s 

E
ng

ag
em

en
t 

O
ff

ic
er

 h
as

 c
on

ta
ct

ed
 t

ea
m

s 
w

ith
 s

pe
ci

fic
 

bu
si

ne
ss

 q
ue

rie
s 

to
 b

e 
re

so
lv

ed
.  

 
  

D
ev

el
op

m
e

nt
 o

f 
a 

ra
ng

e 
of

 m
ea

su
re

s 
to

 s
up

po
rt

 t
he

 s
us

ta
in

ab
ili

ty
 o

f 
m

ic
ro

-b
us

in
es

se
s 

in
 t

he
 D

is
tr

ic
t.

   
 N

et
w

o
rk

s 
an

d
 F

o
ru

m
s:

 
In

 t
hi

s 
pe

rio
d 

9 
bu

si
ne

ss
 n

et
w

or
ks

 h
av

e 
be

en
 s

up
po

rt
ed

 i
nc

lu
di

ng
 t

he
 

es
ta

bl
is

hm
en

t 
of

 t
he

 T
hi

rs
k 

In
du

st
ria

l P
ar

k 
B

us
in

es
s 

G
ro

up
 w

hi
ch

 h
el

d 
its

 
fir

st
 m

ee
tin

g 
in

 J
an

ua
ry

 h
os

te
d 

by
 H

D
C

 a
nd

 a
 k

ey
 a

cc
ou

nt
 b

us
in

es
s.

 
 

F
iv

e 
T

ou
r 

de
 F

ra
nc

e 
ro

ad
sh

ow
s 

ar
e 

be
in

g 
de

liv
er

ed
 a

cr
os

s 
th

e 
M

ar
ke

t 
T

ow
ns

, 
w

ith
 t

he
 f

irs
t 

de
liv

er
ed

 i
n 

M
ar

ch
. 

A
im

ed
 a

t 
m

ic
ro

-b
us

in
es

se
s 

to
 

en
su

re
 t

he
y 

ar
e 

pr
ep

ar
ed

 a
nd

 c
an

 b
en

ef
it 

fr
om

 t
he

 G
ra

n
d 

D
ep

ar
t, 

th
ey

 
bu

ild
 o

n 
th

e 
fir

st
 r

oa
ds

ho
w

s 
in

 2
01

3.
  

 

T
he

 H
am

bl
et

on
 S

tr
at

eg
ic

 B
us

in
es

s 
F

or
um

 S
pr

in
g 

C
on

fe
re

nc
e 

ha
s 

be
en

 
la

un
ch

ed
 a

nd
 m

ar
ke

te
d 

ac
ro

ss
 t

he
 a

re
a.

  
 

In
d

iv
id

u
al

 b
u

si
n

es
s 

su
p

p
o

rt
: 

E
ng

ag
ed

 w
ith

 6
0 

in
di

vi
du

al
 c

om
pa

ni
es

, 
w

ith
 a

n 
ad

di
tio

na
l 7

7 
bu

si
ne

ss
es

 
co

nt
ac

te
d 

pe
rs

on
al

ly
 

to
 

jo
in

 
ne

w
 

T
hi

rs
k 

gr
ou

p.
 

 
E

ng
ag

ed
 

w
ith

 
al

l 
bu

si
ne

ss
es

 
in

 
S

to
ke

sl
ey

 
to

 
di

sc
us

s 
th

ei
r 

en
ga

ge
m

en
t 

w
ith

 
th

e 
W

iF
i 

pr
oj

ec
t. 

           

Page 26



A
nn

ex
 1

 
 

 
 

 
Q

4 
C

ou
nc

il 
P

la
n 

P
er

fo
rm

an
ce

 2
01

3/
14

 
 

   
   

   
   

  
 A

ct
io

n 
w

ill
 

be
 

ta
ke

n 
ac

ro
ss

 
th

e 
C

ou
nc

il 
to

 
en

su
re

 
th

at
 

w
e 

un
de

rs
ta

nd
 a

nd
 a

re
 r

es
po

ns
iv

e 
to

 
bu

si
ne

ss
 

ne
ed

s 
by

 
de

ve
lo

pi
ng

 
an

d 
im

pl
em

en
tin

g 
a

 
bu

si
ne

ss
 

en
ga

ge
m

en
t 

st
ra

te
gy

 
b

y 
S

ep
te

m
be

r 
20

13
. 

 Q
2 

T
he

 
b

us
in

es
s 

en
ga

ge
m

en
t 

st
ra

te
gy

 
ha

s 
be

en
 

co
m

pl
et

ed
 

an
d

 
m

ee
tin

gs
 a

re
 b

ei
ng

 s
et

 u
p 

w
ith

 o
th

er
 C

ou
nc

il 
te

am
s 

to
 s

ha
re

 t
hi

s 
fo

r 
in

pu
t 

an
d 

co
m

m
en

ts
. 

A
t 

th
e 

sa
m

e 
tim

e 
th

e 
st

ra
te

gy
 w

ill
 b

e 
sh

ar
ed

 
w

ith
 a

 s
m

al
l g

ro
up

 o
f 

bu
si

ne
ss

es
 fo

r 
th

ei
r 

in
pu

t. 
 Q

3 
 C

on
su

lta
tio

n 
on

 th
e 

st
ra

te
gy

 c
om

pl
et

ed
.  

 
 Q

4 
 S

tr
at

eg
y 

ap
pr

ov
ed

 b
y 

M
an

ag
em

en
t 

T
ea

m
 a

nd
 w

ill
 b

e 
av

ai
la

bl
e 

on
 

th
e 

w
eb

 s
ite

 a
nd

 c
irc

ul
at

ed
 t

o 
al

l s
er

vi
ce

s 
du

rin
g 

Q
1 

20
14

/1
5.

 
 

 
T

ar
ge

t 
di

d 
no

t 
m

ee
t 

sc
he

du
le

d 
de

ad
lin

e,
 

ho
w

ev
er

 t
h

e 
st

ra
te

gy
 i

s 
co

m
pl

et
e 

an
d 

du
e

 
fo

r 
di

st
rib

ut
io

n.
 

 

D
ev

el
op

m
e

nt
 

of
 

a 
ra

ng
e 

of
 

m
ea

su
re

s 
to

 
su

pp
or

t 
th

e 
su

st
ai

na
bi

lit
y 

of
 m

ic
ro

-b
us

in
es

se
s 

in
 th

e 
D

is
tr

ic
t. 

  
 

N
et

w
o

rk
s 

an
d

 F
o

ru
m

s:
 

F
iv

e 
m

in
i 

T
ou

r 
de

 F
ra

nc
e 

ro
ad

 s
ho

w
s 

ha
ve

 b
ee

n 
de

liv
er

ed
 a

cr
os

s 
th

e 
m

ar
ke

t 
to

w
ns

 w
ith

 o
ve

r 
15

0 
bu

si
ne

ss
es

 
at

te
nd

in
g.

 A
im

ed
 a

t 
m

ic
ro

bu
si

ne
ss

es
 t

o 
en

su
re

 t
he

y 
ar

e 
pr

ep
ar

ed
 a

nd
 c

an
 b

en
ef

it 
fr

om
 t

he
 G

ra
nd

 D
ep

ar
t. 

A
 f

ur
th

er
 5

 
ro

ad
 s

ho
w

s 
w

ill
 b

e 
de

liv
er

ed
 in

 t
he

 S
pr

in
g 

of
 2

01
4.

 
 

H
am

bl
et

on
 W

om
en

’s
 B

us
in

es
s 

Z
on

e 
ha

s 
be

en
 e

st
ab

lis
he

d;
 t

he
 f

irs
t 

m
ee

tin
g 

w
as

 a
t 

E
vo

lu
tio

n 
B

us
in

es
s 

C
en

tr
e 

in
 

N
or

th
al

le
rt

on
 o

n 
9

th
 O

ct
ob

er
. 

 

T
he

 N
or

th
 N

or
th

al
le

rt
on

 B
us

in
es

s 
gr

ou
p 

ha
s 

no
w

 h
el

d 
2 

m
ee

tin
gs

 w
he

re
 8

0 
bu

si
ne

ss
es

 a
tt

en
de

d;
 t

hi
s 

co
m

pl
em

en
ts

 t
he

 
N

or
th

al
le

rt
on

 R
et

ai
l a

nd
 B

us
in

es
s 

F
or

um
, 

w
hi

ch
 f

oc
us

se
s 

on
 t

he
 t

ow
n 

ce
nt

re
. 

 

T
he

 H
am

bl
et

on
 S

tr
at

eg
ic

 B
us

in
es

s 
F

or
um

 h
os

te
d 

a 
m

ee
tin

g 
in

 N
ov

em
be

r 
20

13
 w

hi
ch

 w
as

 a
tte

nd
ed

 b
y 

25
 b

us
in

es
se

s 
(t

hi
s 

w
as

 m
ax

im
u

m
 c

ap
ac

ity
 fo

r 
th

e 
ro

om
 a

va
ila

bl
e)

.  
 

In
d

iv
id

u
al

 b
u

si
n

es
s 

su
p

p
o

rt
: 

E
ng

ag
ed

 w
ith

 8
8 

in
di

vi
du

al
 c

om
pa

ni
es

; r
et

ai
l d

is
pl

ay
 w

or
ks

ho
ps

 s
uc

ce
ss

fu
lly

 in
vo

lv
e

d 
Le

w
is

 a
nd

 C
oo

pe
r,

 t
he

 S
av

e 
th

e 
C

hi
ld

re
n 

sh
op

 i
n 

N
or

th
al

le
rt

on
, 

R
ur

al
 A

rt
s 

N
o

rt
h 

Y
or

ks
hi

re
, 

H
ou

se
 a

nd
 H

om
e,

 
C

ha
pm

an
’s

 P
et

s 
an

d 
A

rt
y 

P
ar

ty
; 1

4 
at

te
nd

ee
s 

at
 E

vo
lu

tio
n 

w
or

ks
ho

p.
 

 

S
up

po
rt

 
w

ill
 

be
 

pr
ov

id
ed

 
to

 
bu

si
ne

ss
es

 
w

ith
 

te
nd

er
in

g 
an

d 
pr

oc
ur

em
en

t 
op

po
rt

un
iti

es
 

w
ith

in
 

th
e 

C
ou

nc
il 

an
d 

lo
ca

lly
 a

nd
 a

 lo
ca

l 
co

nt
ra

ct
s 

re
gi

st
er

 w
ill

 b
e 

de
liv

er
ed

 

 T
o 

ad
ve

rt
is

e 
op

po
rt

un
iti

es
 to

 d
o 

bu
si

ne
ss

 w
ith

 th
e 

C
ou

nc
il 

th
e 

C
on

tr
ac

ts
 R

eg
is

te
r 

ha
s 

be
en

 p
ub

lis
he

d.
  A

s 
co

nt
ra

ct
s 

ar
e 

re
vi

ew
ed

, t
he

 r
eg

is
te

r 
is

 u
pd

at
ed

 to
 r

ef
le

ct
 c

le
ar

ly
 th

e 
go

od
s 

an
d 

se
rv

ic
es

 th
at

 a
re

 r
eq

ui
re

d 
an

d 
w

he
n 

in
fo

rm
at

io
n 

on
 

th
es

e 
w

ill
 b

e 
av

ai
la

bl
e 

fo
r 

po
te

nt
ia

l s
up

pl
ie

rs
 to

 b
e 

ab
le

 to
 q

uo
te

. 
 

T
he

 In
fo

rm
at

io
n 

fo
r 

B
us

in
es

se
s 

se
ct

io
n 

of
 th

e 
w

eb
 s

ite
 is

 b
ei

ng
 e

xp
an

de
d 

an
d 

up
da

te
d 

to
 p

ro
vi

de
 li

nk
s 

to
 fu

rt
he

r 
op

po
rt

un
iti

es
 w

ith
in

 t
he

 p
ub

lic
 s

ec
to

r.
 

 Q
4 

T
o 

ad
ve

rt
is

e 
op

po
rt

un
iti

es
 to

 d
o 

bu
si

ne
ss

 w
ith

 th
e 

C
ou

nc
il 

th
e 

C
on

tr
ac

ts
 R

eg
is

te
r 

ha
s 

be
en

 p
ub

lis
he

d.
  A

s 
co

nt
ra

ct
s 

ar
e 

re
vi

ew
e

d,
 th

e 
re

gi
st

er
 is

 u
pd

at
ed

 to
 r

ef
le

ct
 c

le
ar

ly
 th

e 
go

od
s 

an
d 

se
rv

ic
es

 th
at

 a
re

 r
eq

ui
re

d 
an

d 
w

he
n 

in
fo

rm
at

io
n 

on
 

th
es

e 
w

ill
 b

e 
av

ai
la

bl
e 

fo
r 

po
te

nt
ia

l s
up

pl
ie

rs
 to

 b
e 

ab
le

 to
 q

uo
te

. 
 

T
he

 I
nf

or
m

at
io

n 
fo

r 
th

e 
B

us
in

es
se

s 
se

ct
io

n 
of

 t
he

 w
eb

si
te

 is
 b

ei
ng

 e
xp

an
de

d 
an

d 
up

da
te

d 
to

 p
ro

vi
de

 li
nk

s 
to

 fu
rt

he
r 

op
po

rt
un

iti
es

 w
ith

in
 t

he
 p

ub
lic

 s
ec

to
r.

 

Page 27



A
nn

ex
 1

 
 

 
 

 
Q

4 
C

ou
nc

il 
P

la
n 

P
er

fo
rm

an
ce

 2
01

3/
14

 
 

   
   

   
   

  
  O

th
er

 a
ct

iv
it

y 
in

 q
u

ar
te

r 
4:

 

 
C

ou
nc

il 
T

ax
 w

as
 a

gr
ee

d 
to

 b
e 

fr
oz

en
 fo

r 
20

14
-1

5.
 

 
A

 te
na

nc
y 

fr
au

d 
aw

ar
en

es
s 

w
ee

k 
w

as
 o

rg
an

is
ed

 to
 m

ak
e 

pe
op

le
 a

w
ar

e 
of

 th
e 

bu
rd

en
s 

fr
au

ds
te

rs
 c

au
se

 a
nd

 to
 e

nc
ou

ra
ge

 r
ep

or
tin

g 
o

f 
th

is
 c

rim
e.

 

 
H

am
bl

et
on

 r
es

id
en

ts
 w

er
e 

gi
ve

n 
th

e 
op

po
rt

un
ity

 to
 h

av
e 

th
ei

r 
sa

y 
on

 th
e 

C
ou

nc
il’

s 
bu

dg
et

 a
nd

 h
ow

 it
 is

 s
pe

nt
. 

 

 
T

he
 C

ou
nc

il 
is

 s
ee

ki
ng

 v
ie

w
s 

on
 t

he
 c

ur
re

nt
 p

ol
lin

g 
di

st
ric

ts
 a

nd
 p

ol
lin

g 
pl

ac
es

 in
 it

s 
ar

ea
. 

 
C

ou
nc

ill
or

s 
ag

re
ed

 a
 g

ra
nt

 fo
r 

£9
2,

00
0 

to
 b

e 
pa

ss
ed

 to
 p

ar
is

he
s 

m
os

t a
ffe

ct
ed

 b
y 

ch
an

ge
s 

to
 th

e 
W

el
fa

re
 R

ef
or

m
 B

ill
. 

 
 

Page 28



  
HAMBLETON DISTRICT COUNCIL 
 
Report To: Cabinet 
  10 June 2014 
 
Subject: WASTE SERVICES COMPREHENSIVE REVIEW 

All Wards 
Portfolio Holder for Environmental and Planning Services: Councillor B Phillips 

 
 
1.0 PURPOSE AND BACKGROUND:     
 
1.1 This report seeks Cabinet approval for a comprehensive review of the Council’s waste 

services to inform future delivery. The preparation of a new Waste Management Strategy is 
an action in the Council’s Business Plan.   

 
1.2 Expenditure on waste management by the Council forms a significant proportion of the 

Council’s overall budget.  The net costs of waste collection currently amount to £1.68M pa 
(refuse plus garden waste) and recycling (dry recycling) £265K pa.  In perception surveys 
waste collection frequently scores as a key service that the public associates with Councils 
and they often treat the reliability of their refuse and recycling collection as an indicator of 
the overall performance of their Council.   

 
1.3 Approval is sought to procure external technical expert support as the Council does not 

have the internal technical expertise or resources for this work.   
 

1.4 The benefits of carrying out the review are as follows: 
 
- Building on the work already done to improve recycling tonnages and therefore 

environmental outcomes; options will include modelling of materials that could be 
collected.  
 

- Improve the efficiency of collections, through the procurement of appropriate vehicles 
and examining collection methodologies to reduce the collection time per property. 
 

- To improve customer satisfaction. 
 

- To ensure that Health and Safety is a core consideration in any future proposed service 
operation for both residents and the Council’s operatives.  
 

- To identify possible cost efficiencies that will be realised through having a joined up 
strategic approach for the delivery of waste management services by the Council. 

 
2.0 THE PROCESS 

 
2.1 A new Waste Management Strategy will be the overarching document resulting from this 

work.  The strategy will set out the aims, objectives and targets for the delivery of waste 
management services by the Council over the period of the plan.  
 

2.2 The process and timescales are set out in Annex ‘A’.  The project will run from June 2014 
and be completed by January 2016, at which time a new contract for the sale of dry 
recyclate will need to be in place.  The existing recycling contract finishes in January 2016 
and a new contract will need to be procured during 2015.  In addition, the existing recycling 
vehicles are nearing the end of their life and will need to be replaced.  The proposed 
comprehensive review of waste services will explore all options that link recycling and 
disposal/treatment of refuse to arrive at the best solution.  

Page 29

Agenda Item 5



 
2.3 The development of the Strategy will build on work already done and in close consultation 

with Members through a series of workshops and public consultation with residents. 
 

2.4 The review of recycling services will involve detailed scenario modelling looking at the scope 
of material types and methodologies for collection of dry recyclables at kerbside.  This will 
include identifying all necessary infrastructure and a costs/benefits appraisal of the various 
options. The scenarios selected for modelling will be informed through consultation with 
Members at the start of the project. 

 
2.5 The procurements shown in Annex ‘A’ cover a new contract for the collection and treatment 

of dry recyclables and the purchase of waste service collection vehicles.  Both 
procurements will be informed by the new Waste Strategy.   

 
2.6 It is anticipated that the project will result in comparative cost efficiencies compared to a 

‘business as usual’ approach.  These cost efficiencies will be calculated through the 
proposed review for recycling and refuse services and associated modelling.  It is not 
possible to comment on the likely costs/benefits outcome of the recycling contract 
procurement because this will be determined in part by the market prices at the time of the 
procurement in 2015.  It is proposed to report back to the Cabinet on these aspects when 
this information comes to light. 
 

2.7 The review will enable plans to be made for the increase in the number of homes built over 
the next few years ensuring that these are fed into the overall modelling and options 
appraisal.  There are 2,735 new dwellings planned by 2020. 

 
2.8 The review will also consider the likely impacts of the County Council’s proposed Allerton 

Waste Recovery Park facility and any planned work by the County on increasing Waste 
Transfer Stations.  The Allerton Waste Recovery Park project is to be operational in 
2017/18. 

 
2.9 In respect of the planned procurements, officers will seek to bring partners on board in order 

to make savings through sharing procurement costs and getting best value for money for 
goods and services through ‘economies of scale’.  This approach has worked successfully 
in the past and the possible financial benefits are shown in Section 5.0. 
 

2.10 The comprehensive review of waste services will take account of the latest regulatory 
requirements and in particular the Waste Regulations for England and Wales 2011 
(amended 2012) affecting the collection of dry recyclate, which comes into effect on 
1 January 2015.  This requires entirely separate collection of paper, metal, plastic and glass 
unless it is not technically, environmentally or economically practicable to do so. This is 
known as ‘TEEP’ criteria.  The Council will need to demonstrate compliance with respect to 
its existing system and/or any possible service redesign e.g. the collection and downstream 
processing of materials is of high quality.  It is important to note that this is a new 
requirement that previous work in this area has not covered and is vital to ensure that 
recycling services are compliant and robust in respect of the latest national regulations and 
policy.  

 
3.0 LINK TO COUNCIL PRIORITIES:    
 
3.1 The proposal links to the Council Priorities by supporting the following aims and objectives 

of the Council’s Business Plan: 
 

 To put our customers first and provide access to high quality, value for money 
services that meet the needs of our communities. 

 

Page 30



 To minimise the impact of waste on the environment by increasing the amount of 
household waste that is recycled. 

 
4.0 RISK ASSESSMENT: 
 
4.1 Risk in approving the recommendation. 
 

Risk Implication Prob* Imp* Total Preventative action
Full costs of the 
project 
procurement 
elements fall to 
the Council due to 
lack of partner 
participation. 

Procurement costs will be 
higher for the Council than if a 
partnership approach was 
taken; cost benefits due to 
economies of scale from 
putting higher relative 
tonnages of dry recyclates on 
to the market place at the 
same time would not be 
realised. 

3 
 

4 12 Head of 
Environmental 
Services to take an 
early lead and 
advocate the 
benefits of a joint 
procurement 
approach through 
the regular Waste 
Partnership 
meetings. 

 
4.2 The key risks in not approving the recommendation are as shown below:- 
  

Risk Implication Prob* Imp* Total Preventative action
The operation of 
waste 
management does 
not support 
opportunities for 
an improved 
service.  
 

The anticipated benefits of 
improved recycling; improved 
customer satisfaction; 
improved Health and Safety; 
and to achieve cost 
efficiencies will not be 
realised. 
 

4 5 20 Engage technical 
expert support to 
undertake detailed 
modelling and 
options appraisal for 
the Council so that 
decisions taken on 
future service design 
are in the best 
interests of the 
Council and Council 
Tax payers. 
 

The Council is not 
prepared for future 
developments that 
will impact on 
waste 
management, such 
as: increased 
dwelling stock, 
changes to the 
Waste Regulations 
and Allerton Waste 
Recovery Park. 
 

The Council is potentially 
exposed to higher costs for its 
waste management services. 
Failure to follow a process that 
demonstrates regulatory 
compliance puts the Council at 
risk of challenge. 

3 5 15 These aspects will 
form part of the 
project brief to 
mitigate as far as 
possible these risks 
to the Council. 

Prob = Probability, Imp = Impact, Score range is Low = 1, High = 5 
 
4.3  Overall the risk of agreeing with the recommendations outweighs the risks of not agreeing 

them and is considered acceptable. 
 

Page 31



5.0 FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS: 
 
5.1 Overall the revenue effects of the comprehensive review of Waste Services are as 

described below. 
 

Revenue Effects 2014/15 
£ 

2015/16 
£ 

 Total  
Cost 

Total 
Cost 

1 
Partners 

4 
Partners 

Cost of: 
- Review of recycling 

services 
 
- Review of refuse services 
 
- Consultation (technical 

support costs are not 
factored in for the 
proposed public 
consultation as it is 
assumed that Council will 
organise this element). 

 
- Preparation of the Waste 

Strategy 
 
- OJEU level procurements 
 
- Contingency 

 
Total approx. costs 
 

 
10,000 

 
 

7,500 
 

10,000 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

7,500 
 
 
 
 
 
 

35,000 

 
 
 
 
 
 

5,000 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

48,000 
 

10,000 
 

63,000 

 
 
 
 
 
 

5,000 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

24,000 
 

10,000 
 

39,000 

 
 
 
 
 
 

5,000 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

9,600 
 

10,000 
 

24,600 

Financed by: 
 
One-Off Fund 
 

    

 35,000 63,000 39,000 24,600 
 
5.2  Another partner Council has expressed an interest in reviewing its own recycling services 

(including TEEP compliance). If this does proceed there could be a slight discount (5%) in 
respect of the total cost for the review of recycling services package.  One area of 
opportunity to significantly reduce costs would be through joint (OJEU level) procurements 
with other partner Councils. This is a likely and realistic outcome as in 2012 the Council 
undertook a joint procurement with Harrogate, Craven and Richmondshire Councils to 
secure the present recycling contract, realising significant efficiencies. Preliminary talks with 
partner authorities have shown an appetite for further shared procurements and hence 
reduced costs are shown in the table above for one partner or four partners.  

 
6.0 LEGAL IMPLICATIONS:  
 
6.1 There are no legal implications as a result of this proposal. 
 
7.0 EQUALITY/DIVERSITY ISSUES:  
 
7.1 There are no significant equality issues associated with this proposal.  
 

Page 32



8.0 HEALTH AND SAFETY ISSUES: 
 
8.1 The review will examine the potential to mitigate possible health and safety issues 

surrounding different collection methodologies. Under the present arrangement each 
Recycling Loader can expect to lift around 400 boxes per day and sort the material at the 
kerbside, some boxes can weigh up to 20kg. In 2013/14 there were 72 working days lost to 
musculo-skeletal/back issues in the recycling service, there were also incidents of cuts due 
to broken glass being deposited in boxes. Whilst risk assessments and personal protective 
equipment can mitigate these risks to a degree, the potential to eliminate these risks should 
be considered first. 
 

9.0 RECOMMENDATIONS:      
 
9.1 It is recommended that:-  

 
(1) Cabinet approve the recommendation to undertake a comprehensive review of waste 

services and the production of a Waste Management Strategy for the Council and 
agree the funding to facilitate this process; 

 
(2) provision be made for £98,000 from the Council’s One-Off Fund.  
 

 
 
MICK JEWITT 
 
Background papers: Annex A Draft Project Plan for the Comprehensive Review of Waste 

Services. 
 
Author ref:   PS 
 
Contact:   Paul Staines 
    Head of Environmental Services 
    01609 788103 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
100614 Waste Services Review  

Page 33



D
ra
ft
 P
ro
je
ct
 P
la
n 
fo
r R

ev
ie
w
 o
f R

ef
us
e 
an

d 
Re

cy
cl
in
g 
Se
rv
ic
es
 a
nd

 P
re
pa

ra
tio

n 
of
 a
 W

as
te
 M

an
ag
em

en
t S

tr
at
eg
y

AN
N
EX

  '
A'

St
ag
e

D
es
cr
ip
tio

n

June 2014

July 2014

August 2014

September 2014

October 2014

November 2014

December 2014

January 2015

February 2015

March 2015

April 2015

May 2015

June 2015

July 2015

August 2015

September 2015

October 2015

November 2015

December 2015

January 2016

Ca
bi
ne

t r
ep

or
t ‐
 p
ro
je
ct
 a
pp

ro
va
l f
or
 c
om

pr
eh

en
siv

e 
w
as
te
 se

rv
ic
es
 re

vi
ew

Fi
rs
t M

em
be

rs
 w
or
ks
ho

p
Se
co
nd

 M
em

be
rs
 w
or
ks
ho

p
G
en

er
at
e 
ba
ck
gr
ou

nd
 in
fo
rm

at
io
n 
in
 a
n 
ea
sy
‐t
o‐
re
ad

 fo
rm

at
 to

 a
ss
ist
 w
ith

 p
ub

lic
 c
on

su
lta

tio
n

As
sim

ila
te
 d
ec
isi
on

s f
or
 th

e 
fu
tu
re
 w
as
te
 m

an
ag
em

en
t s
er
vi
ce
s

Ag
re
e 
ta
rg
et
s t
o 
m
ea
su
re
 th

e 
su
cc
es
s o

r o
th
er
w
ise

 o
f t
he

 W
as
te
 M

an
ag
em

en
t S

tr
at
eg
y 
(p
la
n)

Ag
re
e 
le
ng
th
 o
f W

as
te
 M

an
ag
em

en
t S

tr
at
eg
y 
an
d 
re
vi
ew

 d
at
es
 / 
tr
ig
ge
rs

Pr
ep

ar
e 
fir
st
 d
ra
ft
 H
ea
dl
in
e 
W
as
te
 M

an
ag
em

en
t S

tr
at
eg
y 
(p
la
n)
 (h

ig
h 
le
ve
l t
ar
ge
ts
)

Ap
pr
ai
se
 fi
t o

f d
ra
ft
 p
la
n 
w
ith

 su
b‐
re
gi
on

al
 W

as
te
 S
tr
at
eg
y 
(Y
N
YW

P)
Pu

bl
ic
 c
on

su
lta

tio
n 
(a
llo
w
 1
2 
w
ee
ks
).

Po
st
 c
on

su
lta

tio
n 
re
vi
ew

 to
 in
fo
rm

 H
ea
dl
in
e 
W
as
te
 M

an
ag
em

en
t S

tr
at
eg
y

Pr
od

uc
e 
fin

al
 d
ra
ft
 H
ea
dl
in
e 
W
as
te
 M

an
ag
em

en
t S

tr
at
eg
y 
un

de
rp
in
ne

d 
w
ith

 a
 d
et
ai
le
d 
Ac
tio

n 
Pl
an

M
em

be
rs
 se

m
in
ar
 ‐ 
Fe
ed

ba
ck
 o
n 
pu

bl
ic
 c
on

su
lta

tio
n 
&
 p
re
se
nt
 p
ro
po

se
d 
dr
af
t H

ea
dl
in
e 
W
as
te
 M

an
ag
em

en
t S

tr
at
eg
y

Ca
bi
ne

t r
ep

or
t ‐
 a
do

pt
io
n 
of
 W

as
te
 M

an
ag
em

en
t S

tr
at
eg
y 
fo
r H

am
bl
et
on

 D
ist
ric
t C

ou
nc
il

M
em

be
rs
 se

m
in
ar
 ‐ 
fe
ed

ba
ck
 o
n 
pr
oj
ec
t p

ro
gr
es
s a

nd
 n
ex
t s
te
ps

M
em

be
rs
 se

m
in
ar
 ‐ 
fe
ed

ba
ck
 o
n 
ac
tio

ns
 c
om

pl
et
ed

 fr
om

 p
re
vi
ou

s M
em

be
rs
 se

m
in
ar
; l
ea
d‐
in
 to

 n
ew

 re
cy
cl
in
g 
co
nt
ra
ct

M
od

el
lin
g 
w
or
k 
‐ h

ow
 w
as
te
 is
 / 
co
ul
d 
be

 c
ol
le
ct
ed

W
as
te
 R
eg
ul
at
io
ns
 ‐ 
TE
EP

 C
om

pl
ia
nc
e

O
pe

ra
tio

na
l r
eq

ui
re
m
en

ts
 (s
ce
na
rio

s a
na
ly
sis
)

Co
lle
ct
io
n 
se
rv
ic
e 
co
st
s

Ri
sk
s A

na
ly
sis

Ti
m
in
g 
of
 a
ny

 se
rv
ic
e 
de

sig
n 
ch
an
ge
(s
)

Sa
le
 o
f d

ry
 re

cy
cl
at
es
 ‐ 
re
vi
ew

 o
f r
ec
yc
la
te
s v

al
ue

s a
nd

 c
ur
re
nt
 v
ie
w
 o
f t
he

 m
ar
ke
t

O
pe

ra
tio

na
l r
eq

ui
re
m
en

ts
Re

vi
ew

 d
el
iv
er
y 
po

in
ts
 (p

os
sib

le
 e
ffe

ct
s o

f A
lle
rt
on

 W
as
te
 R
ec
ov
er
y 
Pa
rk
 c
om

in
g 
on

‐li
ne

)
Co

lle
ct
io
n 
se
rv
ic
e 
co
st
s (
in
‐h
ou

se
)

Ri
sk
s A

na
ly
sis

De
ci
sio

n 
on

 ti
m
in
g 
of
 a
ny

 se
rv
ic
e 
de

sig
n 
ch
an
ge
(s
)

Es
ta
bl
ish

 P
ro
je
ct
 T
ea
m

Sc
op

in
g 
an
d 
dr
af
tin

g 
O
JE
U
 n
ot
ic
e

Pr
ep

ar
at
io
n 
of
 c
on

tr
ac
t d

oc
um

en
ta
tio

n 
in
cl
ud

in
g 
ev
al
ua
tio

n 
m
od

el
G
o 
to
 T
en

de
r /
 T
ed

er
er
s p

re
pa
re
 a
nd

 su
bm

it 
th
ei
r b

id
s

Te
nd

er
 e
va
lu
at
io
n

M
od

er
at
io
n

Co
nt
ra
ct
 a
w
ar
d

Ve
hi
cl
es
 d
el
iv
er
y 
le
ad

‐in
Ve

hi
cl
es
 d
el
iv
er
y

Es
ta
bl
ish

 P
ro
je
ct
 T
ea
m

Sc
op

in
g 
an
d 
dr
af
tin

g 
O
JE
U
 n
ot
ic
e

Pr
ep

ar
at
io
n 
of
 c
on

tr
ac
t d

oc
um

en
ta
tio

n 
in
cl
ud

in
g 
ev
al
ua
tio

n 
m
od

el
G
o 
to
 T
en

de
r /
 T
ed

er
er
s p

re
pa
re
 a
nd

 su
bm

it 
th
ei
r b

id
s

Te
nd

er
 e
va
lu
at
io
n

M
od

er
at
io
n

Co
nt
ra
ct
 a
w
ar
d

Co
nt
ra
ct
 le
ad

‐in
 (m

ob
ili
sa
tio

n)
Co

nt
ra
ct
 c
om

m
en

ce
s

Pr
oc
ur
em

en
t ‐
 S
al
e 
of
 

Dr
y 
Re

cy
cl
at
es
 (O

JE
U
 

'R
es
tr
ic
te
d'
 

pr
oc
ed

ur
e)

Re
vi
ew

 o
f R

ec
yc
lin
g 

Se
rv
ic
es

Re
vi
ew

 o
f R

ef
us
e 

Co
lle
ct
io
n 
Se
rv
ic
es

Co
ns
ul
ta
tio

n 
an
d 

pr
ep

ar
at
io
n 
of
 W

as
te
 

M
an
ag
em

en
t 

St
ra
te
gy

Pr
oc
ur
em

en
t ‐
 w
as
te
 

co
lle
ct
io
n 
ve
hi
cl
es
 

(O
JE
U
 'R
es
tr
ic
te
d'
 

pr
oc
ed

ur
e)

Page 34



 
HAMBLETON DISTRICT COUNCIL 
 
Report To: Cabinet 
  10 June 2014 
 
Subject: ESTABLISHMENT OF LOCAL AUTHORITY ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT 

COMPANY 
 

 All Wards 
Portfolio Holder for Economic Development and Finance: Councillor P Wilkinson 

 
 
1.0 PURPOSE AND BACKGROUND 
 
1.1 This report seeks Cabinet approval to investigate the potential establishment of a Council 

controlled company for the purpose of economic development. 
 
1.2 The Local Government Act 2003 provided the power for Local Authorities to trade and 

generate profit through the establishment of local authority owned companies.   
 
1.3 There are a number of forms that such companies can take but they all fall into two 

categories a Local Authority Trading Company (LATC) or a Local Asset Backed Vehicle. 
 
1.4 Local Authority Trading Companies are established to enable Councils to trade services 

beyond both their sector and their geographic boundaries.  Their relevance in an economic 
development context would be limited.  A more suitable vehicle would be a Local Asset 
Backed Vehicle.   

 
2.0 LOCAL ASSET BACKED VEHICLES (LOCAL ASSET BACKED VEHICLE)  
 
2.1 A Local Asset Backed Vehicle is a medium to long term joint venture equity partnership 

between a Local Authority (or a number of public sector bodies) and a private sector 
investment partner, who may or may not be a building or development contractor.  A Local 
Asset Backed Vehicle can also be set up as a Public/Public partnership procuring private 
sector expertise as and when required in order to deliver specific projects. 

 
2.2 There is no prescribed or standardised model for Local Asset Backed Vehicles.  Each 

solution requires bespoke configuration in order to ensure that each public body’s 
outcomes are delivered in accordance with their local economic requirements. See Annex 
‘A’ for potential Hambleton District Council model. 

 
2.3 The Council or possibly with its Public Sector Partners contribute land/assets.  The 

investment partner contributes capacity to deliver skills, experience and funds to develop 
projects.  Projects could include residential, operational public buildings, retail, community, 
office and/or industrial and commercial property. 

 
Outcomes are agreed between the Council and the investment partner through a robust 
business plan, budget and approval procedure.  The financing of projects can be structured 
to ensure that both parties receive an acceptable level of capital and revenue return. 
 

Page 35

Agenda Item 6



2.4 There are a number of reasons why Local Authorities use Local Asset Backed Vehicles, 
some of which would not be appropriate to Hambleton.  These include: 

 
 In times of attrition, using a Local Asset Backed Vehicle structure to get the maximum 

return from the asset portfolio through a strategic medium to long term partnership. 
 
 Rationalising the asset portfolio to ensure that the Council’s accommodation is fit for 

purpose. 
 

However, what is appropriate to Hambleton is the use of a Local Asset Backed Vehicle to 
deliver economic regeneration.  If structured correctly, the Council could incentivise the 
private sector to create local job opportunities and unlock regeneration by delivering 
developments that have previously been passed over by the private sector.  The Council, 
as an equal participant in a Local Asset Backed Vehicle, can control the pace, location, 
timing and type of development.   

 
Local Asset Backed Vehicles should not be seen as ‘selling the family silver’, they create a 
development portfolio of assets which are fit for purpose ensuring that the Council receive 
maximum, financial, regeneration and economic returns from any disposal or revenue 
income. 
 

2.5 The principle advantages of setting up Local Asset Backed Vehicles include: 
 

 Economic Leadership – maximise financial returns, generate and sustain local jobs 
construction and enhance local economies. 

 
 Flexibility – Local Asset Backed Vehicles can react to the market to allow proposals to 

be developed between the public bodies and investment partner to deliver optimal 
financial and regeneration outcomes. 

 
 Investment partner revenue support – capacity and skills to deliver master plans, LDF’s 

and viability studies at no or minimal cost to the Council. 
 

 Significant procurement cost and time savings – procure once to deliver multiple sites 
over the medium to long term.  This delivers sustainable cost and time savings to both 
the Council and the private sector partner. 

 
2.6 Some of the issues the Council would need to consider in setting up a Local Asset Backed 

Vehicle include: 
 

 Ensure that procurement is scoped carefully. 
 
 Understand the commercial objectives of the Local Asset Backed Vehicle. 

 
 Ensure that Members fully understand their role and the joint venture relationship. 

 
 Ensure that the structure of the Local Asset Backed Vehicle provides accountability 

back to the Council. 
 

 Agree a communication strategy between all parties and the public. 
 

 Protect the position of the Council as planning authority and its other statutory 
functions. 
 

Page 36



 Ensure that property and corporation tax have been fully considered. 
 

 Ensure that exit strategies are inserted into the contracts. 
 

 Director appointments and mandates. 
 
3.0 LINK TO CORPORATE PRIORITIES 
 
3.1 Improving the economy of Hambleton is a key corporate priority. 
 
4.0 LEGAL IMPLICATIONS 
 
4.1 As stated in paragraph 1.2, the Local Government Act 2003 provided the power for Local 

Authorities to trade and generate profit through the establishment of Local Authority owned 
companies. 

 
5.0 FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS 
 
5.2 The Council will need to procure specialist legal, financial and taxation advice in respect of 

producing a robust business case for the establishment of a Local Asset Backed Vehicle.  It 
is estimated that this will cost around £25,000. 

 
6.0 RISK ASSESMENT 
 
6.1 There are no significant risks associated with this report. 
 
7.0 RECOMMENDATION 
 
7.1 It is recommended that Cabinet approve an investigation into the establishment of a Local 

Asset Backed Vehicle and that £25,000 for this purpose be allocated from the One-Off 
Fund. 

 
 
JUSTIN IVES 
 
 
Background Papers:  None 
 
Author Ref:   JI 
 
Contact:  Justin Ives 
   Director of Support Services and Deputy Chief Executive 
   Direct Line No: 767022 
 
 
 
 
 
 
100614 Local Auth Econ Dev Company 

Page 37



ANNEX  ‘A’ 
 
 

 
 
Possible Structure for a Hambleton Local Asset Backed Vehicle  

Local Asset 

Backed Vehicle

Hambleton 

District Council

Private Sector 

Partner

Property Assets and Equity

Development 

Projects
REGENERATION

 

Page 38



   
 
HAMBLETON DISTRICT COUNCIL 
 
Report To: Cabinet 
  10 June 2014 
 
Subject: REVIEW OF POLLING DISTRICTS AND POLLING PLACES – RESULT OF 

CONSULTATION  
All Wards 

Portfolio Holder for Support Services: Councillor N Knapton 
 
 
1.0 PURPOSE AND BACKGROUND:     
 
1.1 The Council currently designates polling districts and polling places for use at all elections 

taking place within its area, i.e., Parliamentary, County and Parish elections.  
 
1.2 The Electoral Administration Act 2006 introduced a requirement to review polling districts 

and polling places used for Parliamentary elections.  The next review must take place by 
31 January 2015.  Following the decision of the Boundary Commission for Local 
Government to reduce the number of District Wards from 2015 there is a need to review 
electoral arrangements.   

 
2.0 THE REVIEW:  
 
2.1 The review process and details of representations received are outlined in Annex ‘A’.  
 
2.2 The representations received do not raise any significant points which would suggest the 

need to change the list of polling districts and polling places shown in Annex ‘C’.  
 
3.0 RISK ASSESSMENT:  
 
3.1 There are no significant risks relating to this report.   
 
4.0 SUSTAINABILITY IMPLICATIONS:  
 
4.1 None.  
 
5.0 FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS AND EFFICIENCIES:  
 
5.1 There are no significant financial implications or efficiencies.   
 
6.0 LEGAL IMPLICATIONS:  
 
6.1 The Council has a legal duty under the Electoral Administration Act 2006 to conduct this 

review and to hold regular reviews within four years of the completion of the previous 
review. 

 
7.0 SECTION 17 CRIME AND DISORDER ACT 1998:  
 
7.1 None.  
 
 

Page 39

Agenda Item 7



8.0 EQUALITY/DIVERSITY ISSUES 
 
8.1 The designation of polling places which are accessible to electors who are disabled will 

enhance their participation in the democratic process. 
 
9.0 RECOMMENDATION:      
 
9.1 That Cabinet approves and recommends to Council that the polling districts and polling 

places as shown in Annex ‘C’ be confirmed for the purpose of Parliamentary elections. 
 
 
JUSTIN IVES 
 
 
Background papers: Correspondence from Parliamentary Acting Returning Officers and 

the public. 
 
Author ref:   JI  
 
Contact:   Justin Ives 
    Director of Support Services & Deputy Chief Executive  
    Direct Line No: (01609) 767022 
 
 

 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
100614 Rev of Polling Districts and Places  

Page 40



 
 

ANNEX ‘A’ 
 

REVIEW PROCESS AND REPRESENTATIONS RECEIVED 
 

 
1.1 The relevant legislation requires polling districts to be agreed for the Council’s area.  These 

have to be based on parish boundaries unless there is a good reason to depart from this 
rule.   The polling districts are combined for the purposes of elections – Parish, District, 
County, Parliamentary, European, etc. A plan showing current Parliamentary and parish 
boundaries within the district is attached as Annex ‘B’.   
 

1.2 The legislation also requires a polling place to be designated for each polling district and 
the polling place should normally be within that district.  This does not apply if the size or 
other circumstances of a polling district are such that the situation of the polling place does 
not materially affect the convenience of the electors or any body of them. In addition:- 

 
a)  all electors must have such reasonable facilities for voting as are practicable in the 

circumstances 
 

b)  so far as is reasonable and practicable, every polling place must be accessible to 
electors who are disabled 

 

c)   accessibility to disabled electors must be taken into account when designating a 
polling place 

 
1.3 The reduction in the number and the change of names of district wards with effect from 

2015 has prompted a re-think of the structure of the polling districts in Hambleton.  Revised 
polling districts are shown in Annex ‘C’.  They are largely based on parishes and 
combinations of parishes.  

 
1.4 There are currently 79 buildings within Hambleton which are designated as polling places. 

Several of these buildings are used for more than one polling station (ballot box). These 
buildings were inspected prior to the review in 2007 in relation to access and facilities for 
voters and election staff. In addition, the appropriateness of polling places has been 
considered after each subsequent election using feedback from election staff.   

 
1.5 The key issues in relation to the identification of polling places are:- 
 

(a)  physical access to the building; and 
 

(b) the convenience of the building for the majority of electors.  
 
1.6 There have been a small number of changes since the last review in 2011 due to the fact 

that existing polling places are no longer available or more suitable ones have been found.  
Replacements which have been identified are included within the list in Annex ‘C’. 

 
1.7 Officers are of the opinion that the polling districts and polling places in Annex ‘C’ meet the 

requirements of the Parliamentary Constituencies and the District.   
  
1.8 This review is required in relation to a duty to designate polling places for Parliamentary 

elections. However, it is good practice to adopt the same polling places for all other 
elections. If the recommendations in Annex ‘C’ are approved this will mean that the 
proposed polling places will be used for all elections.  The proposals in relation to polling 
places for Parliamentary elections are subject to public consultation and, potentially, a right 
of objection to the Electoral Commission (which can make changes). 

 
 
 
 
 
 Page 41



 
 
1.9 Following approval in principle by the Council, public notice has been given of the review 

and the draft proposals.  The representations received can be summarised as follows:-  
 

Richmond Liberal Democrats - support the suggested polling districts 
and polling station 
 

Acting Returning Officer for Thirsk and Malton 
Constituency  

- no objection to proposals. 
 
 

Acting Returning Officer for Richmond (Yorks) 
Constituency  

- no objection to proposals. 
 
 

Sutton-under-Whitestonecliffe Parish Council - no objection to proposals, but 
unhappy with name of new District 
Ward 
 

Timothy Kirkhope MEP - no objection to proposals.  
 

Royal National Institute for the Blind  - No objection to proposals.  General 
comments on accessibility to polling 
stations.  
 

 

Page 42



Page 43



N
ew

 W
ar

d
 2

01
5

P
ar

is
h

P
ro

p
o

se
d

 P
o

lli
n

g
 D

is
tr

ic
t 

N
am

e
P

ro
p

o
se

d
 P

o
lli

n
g

 P
la

ce

A
pp

le
to

n 
W

is
ke

 a
nd

 S
m

ea
to

ns
A

pp
le

to
n 

W
is

ke
A

pp
le

to
n 

W
is

ke
A

pp
le

to
n 

W
is

ke
 V

ill
ag

e 
H

al
l

A
pp

le
to

n 
W

is
ke

 a
nd

 S
m

ea
to

ns
P

ic
to

n
A

pp
le

to
n 

W
is

ke
* 

A
pp

le
to

n 
W

is
ke

 V
ill

ag
e 

H
al

l

A
pp

le
to

n 
W

is
ke

 a
nd

 S
m

ea
to

ns
B

irk
by

E
as

t C
ow

to
n

E
as

t C
ow

to
n 

V
ill

ag
e 

H
al

l

A
pp

le
to

n 
W

is
ke

 a
nd

 S
m

ea
to

ns
E

as
t C

ow
to

n
E

as
t C

ow
to

n
E

as
t C

ow
to

n 
V

ill
ag

e 
H

al
l

A
pp

le
to

n 
W

is
ke

 a
nd

 S
m

ea
to

ns
S

ou
th

 C
ow

to
n

E
as

t C
ow

to
n

E
as

t C
ow

to
n 

V
ill

ag
e 

H
al

l

A
pp

le
to

n 
W

is
ke

 a
nd

 S
m

ea
to

ns
E

as
t R

ou
nt

on
E

as
t R

ou
nt

on
R

ou
nt

on
 V

ill
ag

e 
H

al
l

A
pp

le
to

n 
W

is
ke

 a
nd

 S
m

ea
to

ns
W

es
t R

ou
nt

on
E

as
t R

ou
nt

on
R

ou
nt

on
 V

ill
ag

e 
H

al
l

A
pp

le
to

n 
W

is
ke

 a
nd

 S
m

ea
to

ns
D

ei
gh

to
n

G
re

at
 S

m
ea

to
n

G
re

at
 S

m
ea

to
n 

V
ill

ag
e 

H
al

l

A
pp

le
to

n 
W

is
ke

 a
nd

 S
m

ea
to

ns
G

irs
by

G
re

at
 S

m
ea

to
n

G
re

at
 S

m
ea

to
n 

V
ill

ag
e 

H
al

l

A
pp

le
to

n 
W

is
ke

 a
nd

 S
m

ea
to

ns
G

re
at

 S
m

ea
to

n
G

re
at

 S
m

ea
to

n
G

re
at

 S
m

ea
to

n 
V

ill
ag

e 
H

al
l

A
pp

le
to

n 
W

is
ke

 a
nd

 S
m

ea
to

ns
H

or
nb

y
G

re
at

 S
m

ea
to

n
G

re
at

 S
m

ea
to

n 
V

ill
ag

e 
H

al
l

A
pp

le
to

n 
W

is
ke

 a
nd

 S
m

ea
to

ns
H

ut
to

n 
B

on
vi

lle
G

re
at

 S
m

ea
to

n
* 

G
re

at
 S

m
ea

to
n 

V
ill

ag
e 

H
al

l

A
pp

le
to

n 
W

is
ke

 a
nd

 S
m

ea
to

ns
Li

ttl
e 

S
m

ea
to

n
G

re
at

 S
m

ea
to

n
G

re
at

 S
m

ea
to

n 
V

ill
ag

e 
H

al
l

A
pp

le
to

n 
W

is
ke

 a
nd

 S
m

ea
to

ns
O

ve
r 

D
in

sd
al

e
G

re
at

 S
m

ea
to

n
G

re
at

 S
m

ea
to

n 
V

ill
ag

e 
H

al
l

A
pp

le
to

n 
W

is
ke

 a
nd

 S
m

ea
to

ns
W

el
bu

ry
W

el
bu

ry
W

el
bu

ry
 V

ill
ag

e 
H

al
l

A
pp

le
to

n 
W

is
ke

 a
nd

 S
m

ea
to

ns
H

ig
h 

W
or

sa
ll

W
or

sa
ll

W
or

sa
ll 

V
ill

ag
e 

H
al

l

A
pp

le
to

n 
W

is
ke

 a
nd

 S
m

ea
to

ns
Lo

w
 W

or
sa

ll
W

or
sa

ll
W

or
sa

ll 
V

ill
ag

e 
H

al
l

29

ANNEX 'C'

Page 44



N
ew

 W
ar

d
 2

01
5

P
ar

is
h

P
ro

p
o

se
d

 P
o

lli
n

g
 D

is
tr

ic
t 

N
am

e
P

ro
p

o
se

d
 P

o
lli

n
g

 P
la

ce

B
ag

by
 a

nd
 T

ho
rn

to
ns

B
ag

by
B

ag
by

B
ag

by
 C

hu
rc

h 
H

al
l

B
ag

by
 a

nd
 T

ho
rn

to
ns

B
al

k
B

ag
by

B
ag

by
 C

hu
rc

h 
H

al
l

B
ag

by
 a

nd
 T

ho
rn

to
ns

B
or

ro
w

by
B

or
ro

w
by

B
or

ro
w

by
 V

ill
ag

e 
H

al
l I

ns
tit

ut
e

B
ag

by
 a

nd
 T

ho
rn

to
ns

Le
ak

e
B

or
ro

w
by

B
or

ro
w

by
 V

ill
ag

e 
H

al
l I

ns
tit

ut
e

B
ag

by
 a

nd
 T

ho
rn

to
ns

C
ow

es
by

K
na

yt
on

K
na

yt
on

 V
ill

ag
e 

In
st

itu
te

B
ag

by
 a

nd
 T

ho
rn

to
ns

K
na

yt
on

 w
ith

 B
ra

w
ith

K
na

yt
on

K
na

yt
on

 V
ill

ag
e 

In
st

itu
te

B
ag

by
 a

nd
 T

ho
rn

to
ns

U
ps

al
l

K
na

yt
on

K
na

yt
on

 V
ill

ag
e 

In
st

itu
te

B
ag

by
 a

nd
 T

ho
rn

to
ns

K
ep

w
ic

k
N

et
he

r 
S

ilt
on

N
et

he
r 

S
ilt

on
 V

ill
ag

e 
H

al
l

B
ag

by
 a

nd
 T

ho
rn

to
ns

La
nd

m
ot

h-
cu

m
-C

at
to

N
et

he
r 

S
ilt

on
* 

N
et

he
r 

S
ilt

on
 V

ill
ag

e 
H

al
l

B
ag

by
 a

nd
 T

ho
rn

to
ns

N
et

he
r 

S
ilt

on
N

et
he

r 
S

ilt
on

N
et

he
r 

S
ilt

on
 V

ill
ag

e 
H

al
l

B
ag

by
 a

nd
 T

ho
rn

to
ns

O
ve

r 
S

ilt
on

N
et

he
r 

S
ilt

on
N

et
he

r 
S

ilt
on

 V
ill

ag
e 

H
al

l

B
ag

by
 a

nd
 T

ho
rn

to
ns

N
or

th
 K

ilv
in

gt
on

S
ou

th
 K

ilv
in

gt
on

**
 S

ou
th

 K
ilv

in
gt

on
 -

 O
ld

 O
ak

 T
re

e

B
ag

by
 a

nd
 T

ho
rn

to
ns

S
ou

th
 K

ilv
in

gt
on

S
ou

th
 K

ilv
in

gt
on

**
 S

ou
th

 K
ilv

in
gt

on
 -

 O
ld

 O
ak

 T
re

e

B
ag

by
 a

nd
 T

ho
rn

to
ns

T
ho

rn
br

ou
gh

S
ou

th
 K

ilv
in

gt
on

**
 S

ou
th

 K
ilv

in
gt

on
 -

 O
ld

 O
ak

 T
re

e

B
ag

by
 a

nd
 T

ho
rn

to
ns

B
ol

tb
y

S
ut

to
n

S
ut

to
n 

N
ew

 V
ill

ag
e 

H
al

l

B
ag

by
 a

nd
 T

ho
rn

to
ns

F
el

ix
ki

rk
S

ut
to

n
S

ut
to

n 
N

ew
 V

ill
ag

e 
H

al
l

B
ag

by
 a

nd
 T

ho
rn

to
ns

H
oo

d 
G

ra
ng

e
S

ut
to

n
S

ut
to

n 
N

ew
 V

ill
ag

e 
H

al
l

B
ag

by
 a

nd
 T

ho
rn

to
ns

K
irb

y 
K

no
w

le
S

ut
to

n
S

ut
to

n 
N

ew
 V

ill
ag

e 
H

al
l

B
ag

by
 a

nd
 T

ho
rn

to
ns

S
ut

to
n-

un
de

r-
W

hi
te

st
on

ec
lif

fe
S

ut
to

n
S

ut
to

n 
N

ew
 V

ill
ag

e 
H

al
l

B
ag

by
 a

nd
 T

ho
rn

to
ns

T
hi

rlb
y

S
ut

to
n

S
ut

to
n 

N
ew

 V
ill

ag
e 

H
al

l

B
ag

by
 a

nd
 T

ho
rn

to
ns

C
ot

cl
iff

e 
&

 C
ro

sb
y

T
ho

rn
to

n-
Le

-B
ea

ns
T

ho
rn

to
n-

le
-B

ea
ns

 V
ill

ag
e 

H
al

l

B
ag

by
 a

nd
 T

ho
rn

to
ns

C
ot

cl
iff

e 
&

 C
ro

sb
y

T
ho

rn
to

n-
Le

-B
ea

ns
T

ho
rn

to
n-

le
-B

ea
ns

 V
ill

ag
e 

H
al

l

B
ag

by
 a

nd
 T

ho
rn

to
ns

T
ho

rn
to

n-
Le

-B
ea

ns
T

ho
rn

to
n-

Le
-B

ea
ns

T
ho

rn
to

n-
le

-B
ea

ns
 V

ill
ag

e 
H

al
l

B
ag

by
 a

nd
 T

ho
rn

to
ns

T
ho

rn
to

n-
Le

-M
oo

r
T

ho
rn

to
n-

Le
-B

ea
ns

T
ho

rn
to

n-
le

-B
ea

ns
 V

ill
ag

e 
H

al
l

B
ag

by
 a

nd
 T

ho
rn

to
ns

T
ho

rn
to

n-
Le

-S
tr

ee
t

T
ho

rn
to

n-
Le

-B
ea

ns
T

ho
rn

to
n-

le
-B

ea
ns

 V
ill

ag
e 

H
al

l

30
Page 45



N
ew

 W
ar

d
 2

01
5

P
ar

is
h

P
ro

p
o

se
d

 P
o

lli
n

g
 D

is
tr

ic
t 

N
am

e
P

ro
p

o
se

d
 P

o
lli

n
g

 P
la

ce

B
ed

al
e

A
is

ke
w

 (
A

is
ke

w
 W

ar
d)

A
is

ke
w

A
is

ke
w

 M
et

ho
di

st
 H

al
l

B
ed

al
e

A
is

ke
w

 L
ee

m
in

g 
B

ar
A

is
ke

w
 L

ee
m

in
g 

B
ar

Le
em

in
g 

G
ar

th
 C

ar
e 

H
om

e

B
ed

al
e

B
ed

al
e

B
ed

al
e

B
ed

al
e 

H
al

l

B
ed

al
e

B
ur

ne
st

on
B

ur
ne

st
on

B
ur

ne
st

on
 C

.E
 S

ch
oo

l

B
ed

al
e

S
w

ai
nb

y 
w

ith
 A

lle
rt

ho
rp

e
B

ur
ne

st
on

B
ur

ne
st

on
 C

.E
 S

ch
oo

l

B
ed

al
e

T
he

ak
st

on
B

ur
ne

st
on

B
ur

ne
st

on
 C

.E
 S

ch
oo

l

B
ed

al
e

A
in

de
rb

y 
M

ire
s 

w
ith

 H
ol

tb
y

C
ra

ke
ha

ll
C

ra
ke

ha
ll 

V
ill

ag
e 

H
al

l

B
ed

al
e

C
ra

ke
ha

ll
C

ra
ke

ha
ll

C
ra

ke
ha

ll 
V

ill
ag

e 
H

al
l

B
ed

al
e

H
ac

kf
or

th
C

ra
ke

ha
ll

C
ra

ke
ha

ll 
V

ill
ag

e 
H

al
l

B
ed

al
e

La
ng

th
or

ne
C

ra
ke

ha
ll

C
ra

ke
ha

ll 
V

ill
ag

e 
H

al
l

B
ed

al
e

R
an

d 
G

ra
ng

e
C

ra
ke

ha
ll

C
ra

ke
ha

ll 
V

ill
ag

e 
H

al
l

B
ed

al
e

E
xe

lb
y,

 L
ee

m
in

g 
&

 N
ew

to
n

E
xe

lb
y,

 L
ee

m
in

g 
A

nd
 N

ew
to

n
E

xe
lb

y 
Le

em
in

g 
V

ill
ag

e 
H

al
l

B
ed

al
e

G
at

en
by

E
xe

lb
y,

 L
ee

m
in

g 
A

nd
 N

ew
to

n
E

xe
lb

y 
Le

em
in

g 
V

ill
ag

e 
H

al
l

E
as

in
gw

ol
d

A
ld

w
ar

k
A

ln
e

A
ln

e 
V

ill
ag

e 
H

al
l

E
as

in
gw

ol
d

A
ln

e
A

ln
e

A
ln

e 
V

ill
ag

e 
H

al
l

E
as

in
gw

ol
d

F
la

w
ith

A
ln

e
A

ln
e 

V
ill

ag
e 

H
al

l

E
as

in
gw

ol
d

Y
ou

lto
n

A
ln

e
A

ln
e 

V
ill

ag
e 

H
al

l

E
as

in
gw

ol
d

C
ra

yk
e

C
ra

yk
e

C
ra

yk
e 

S
po

rt
s 

C
lu

b

E
as

in
gw

ol
d

E
as

in
gw

ol
d

E
as

in
gw

ol
d

E
as

in
gw

ol
d 

M
et

ho
di

st
 S

ch
oo

lro
om

s

E
as

in
gw

ol
d

Li
nt

on
 o

n 
O

us
e

Li
nt

on
-O

n-
O

us
e

Li
nt

on
-o

n-
O

us
e 

V
ill

ag
e 

H
al

l

E
as

in
gw

ol
d

N
ew

to
n 

on
 O

us
e

N
ew

to
n-

O
n-

O
us

e
N

ew
to

n-
on

-O
us

e 
P

ar
is

h 
H

al
l

E
as

in
gw

ol
d

B
en

in
gb

ro
ug

h
S

hi
pt

on
S

hi
pt

on
 M

et
ho

di
st

 S
ch

oo
lro

om

E
as

in
gw

ol
d

O
ve

rt
on

S
hi

pt
on

S
hi

pt
on

 M
et

ho
di

st
 S

ch
oo

lro
om

E
as

in
gw

ol
d

S
hi

pt
on

S
hi

pt
on

S
hi

pt
on

 M
et

ho
di

st
 S

ch
oo

lro
om

E
as

in
gw

ol
d

T
ol

le
rt

on
T

ol
le

rt
on

T
ol

le
rt

on
 W

ar
 M

em
or

ia
l I

ns
tit

ut
e

31
Page 46



N
ew

 W
ar

d
 2

01
5

P
ar

is
h

P
ro

p
o

se
d

 P
o

lli
n

g
 D

is
tr

ic
t 

N
am

e
P

ro
p

o
se

d
 P

o
lli

n
g

 P
la

ce

G
re

at
 A

yt
on

B
ils

da
le

 M
id

ca
bl

e
B

ils
da

le
 M

id
ca

bl
e

C
ho

pg
at

e 
V

ill
ag

e 
H

al
l

G
re

at
 A

yt
on

G
re

at
 A

yt
on

G
re

at
 A

yt
on

 (
M

ar
w

oo
d)

G
re

at
 A

yt
on

 P
ar

oc
hi

al
 C

hu
rc

h 
H

al
l

G
re

at
 A

yt
on

G
re

at
 A

yt
on

G
re

at
 A

yt
on

 (
R

os
eb

er
ry

)
G

re
at

 A
yt

on
 W

I H
al

l

G
re

at
 A

yt
on

Li
ttl

e 
A

yt
on

G
re

at
 A

yt
on

 (
R

os
eb

er
ry

)
G

re
at

 A
yt

on
 W

I H
al

l

G
re

at
 A

yt
on

In
gl

eb
y 

G
re

en
ho

w
In

gl
eb

y 
G

re
en

ho
w

In
gl

eb
y 

G
re

en
ho

w
 a

nd
 E

as
by

 V
ill

ag
e 

H
al

l

G
re

at
 A

yt
on

E
as

by
K

ild
al

e
K

ild
al

e 
V

ill
ag

e 
H

al
l

G
re

at
 A

yt
on

K
ild

al
e

K
ild

al
e

K
ild

al
e 

V
ill

ag
e 

H
al

l

H
ub

y
B

ra
nd

sb
y-

C
um

-S
te

ar
sb

y
B

ra
nd

sb
y

B
ra

nd
sb

y 
C

ho
lm

el
ey

 H
al

l

H
ub

y
D

al
by

-C
um

-S
ke

w
sb

y
B

ra
nd

sb
y

B
ra

nd
sb

y 
C

ho
lm

el
ey

 H
al

l

H
ub

y
W

he
nb

y
B

ra
nd

sb
y

B
ra

nd
sb

y 
C

ho
lm

el
ey

 H
al

l

H
ub

y
Y

ea
rs

le
y

B
ra

nd
sb

y
B

ra
nd

sb
y 

C
ho

lm
el

ey
 H

al
l

H
ub

y
H

ub
y

H
ub

y
H

ub
y 

M
et

ho
di

st
 C

hu
rc

h

H
ub

y
F

ar
lin

gt
on

S
til

lin
gt

on
S

til
lin

gt
on

 V
ill

ag
e 

H
al

l

H
ub

y
M

ar
to

n-
C

um
-M

ox
by

S
til

lin
gt

on
S

til
lin

gt
on

 V
ill

ag
e 

H
al

l

H
ub

y
S

til
lin

gt
on

S
til

lin
gt

on
S

til
lin

gt
on

 V
ill

ag
e 

H
al

l

H
ub

y
S

ut
to

n-
on

-t
he

-F
or

es
t

S
ut

to
n-

on
-t

he
-F

or
es

t
S

ut
to

n 
G

re
y 

V
ill

ag
e 

H
al

l

32
Page 47



N
ew

 W
ar

d
 2

01
5

P
ar

is
h

P
ro

p
o

se
d

 P
o

lli
n

g
 D

is
tr

ic
t 

N
am

e
P

ro
p

o
se

d
 P

o
lli

n
g

 P
la

ce

H
ut

to
n 

R
ud

by
C

ra
th

or
ne

C
ra

th
or

ne
  

C
ra

th
or

ne
 R

ea
di

ng
 R

oo
m

H
ut

to
n 

R
ud

by
H

ut
to

n 
R

ud
by

H
ut

to
n 

R
ud

by
* 

H
ut

to
n 

R
ud

by
 V

ill
ag

e 
H

al
l

H
ut

to
n 

R
ud

by
M

id
dl

et
on

-o
n-

Le
ve

n
H

ut
to

n 
R

ud
by

* 
H

ut
to

n 
R

ud
by

 V
ill

ag
e 

H
al

l

H
ut

to
n 

R
ud

by
R

ud
by

H
ut

to
n 

R
ud

by
* 

H
ut

to
n 

R
ud

by
 V

ill
ag

e 
H

al
l

H
ut

to
n 

R
ud

by
S

ex
ho

w
H

ut
to

n 
R

ud
by

* 
H

ut
to

n 
R

ud
by

 V
ill

ag
e 

H
al

l

H
ut

to
n 

R
ud

by
S

ku
tte

rs
ke

lfe
H

ut
to

n 
R

ud
by

* 
H

ut
to

n 
R

ud
by

 V
ill

ag
e 

H
al

l

H
ut

to
n 

R
ud

by
N

ew
by

S
ea

m
er

S
ea

m
er

 V
ill

ag
e 

H
al

l

H
ut

to
n 

R
ud

by
S

ea
m

er
S

ea
m

er
S

ea
m

er
 V

ill
ag

e 
H

al
l

M
or

to
n-

on
-S

w
al

e
D

an
by

 W
is

ke
 w

ith
 L

az
en

by
D

an
by

 W
is

ke
D

an
by

 W
is

ke
 V

ill
ag

e 
H

al
l

M
or

to
n-

on
-S

w
al

e
G

re
at

 L
an

gt
on

G
re

at
 L

an
gt

on
G

re
at

 L
an

gt
on

 -
 T

he
 O

ld
 S

ch
oo

l

M
or

to
n-

on
-S

w
al

e
K

ip
lin

G
re

at
 L

an
gt

on
G

re
at

 L
an

gt
on

 -
 T

he
 O

ld
 S

ch
oo

l

M
or

to
n-

on
-S

w
al

e
Li

ttl
e 

La
ng

to
n

G
re

at
 L

an
gt

on
G

re
at

 L
an

gt
on

 -
 T

he
 O

ld
 S

ch
oo

l

M
or

to
n-

on
-S

w
al

e
W

hi
tw

el
l

G
re

at
 L

an
gt

on
G

re
at

 L
an

gt
on

 -
 T

he
 O

ld
 S

ch
oo

l

M
or

to
n-

on
-S

w
al

e
K

ill
er

by
K

irk
by

 F
le

et
ha

m
K

irk
by

 F
le

et
ha

m
 V

ill
ag

e 
H

al
l

M
or

to
n-

on
-S

w
al

e
K

irk
by

 F
le

et
ha

m
 w

ith
 F

en
co

te
K

irk
by

 F
le

et
ha

m
K

irk
by

 F
le

et
ha

m
 V

ill
ag

e 
H

al
l

M
or

to
n-

on
-S

w
al

e
A

in
de

rb
y 

S
te

ep
le

M
or

to
n-

O
n-

S
w

al
e

M
or

to
n-

on
-S

w
al

e 
V

ill
ag

e 
H

al
l

M
or

to
n-

on
-S

w
al

e
M

or
to

n-
on

-S
w

al
e

M
or

to
n-

O
n-

S
w

al
e

M
or

to
n-

on
-S

w
al

e 
V

ill
ag

e 
H

al
l

M
or

to
n-

on
-S

w
al

e
N

or
th

 O
tte

rin
gt

on
M

or
to

n-
O

n-
S

w
al

e
M

or
to

n-
on

-S
w

al
e 

V
ill

ag
e 

H
al

l

M
or

to
n-

on
-S

w
al

e
T

hr
in

to
ft

M
or

to
n-

O
n-

S
w

al
e

M
or

to
n-

on
-S

w
al

e 
V

ill
ag

e 
H

al
l

M
or

to
n-

on
-S

w
al

e
W

ar
la

by
M

or
to

n-
O

n-
S

w
al

e
M

or
to

n-
on

-S
w

al
e 

V
ill

ag
e 

H
al

l

M
or

to
n-

on
-S

w
al

e
Y

af
fo

rt
h

M
or

to
n-

O
n-

S
w

al
e

M
or

to
n-

on
-S

w
al

e 
V

ill
ag

e 
H

al
l

M
or

to
n-

on
-S

w
al

e
S

cr
ut

on
S

cr
ut

on
S

cr
ut

on
 C

oo
re

 M
em

or
ia

l H
al

l

M
or

to
n-

on
-S

w
al

e
M

au
nb

y
S

ou
th

 O
tte

rin
gt

on
S

ou
th

 O
tte

rin
gt

on
 V

ill
ag

e 
In

st
itu

te

M
or

to
n-

on
-S

w
al

e
N

ew
by

 W
is

ke
S

ou
th

 O
tte

rin
gt

on
S

ou
th

 O
tte

rin
gt

on
 V

ill
ag

e 
In

st
itu

te

M
or

to
n-

on
-S

w
al

e
S

ou
th

 O
tte

rin
gt

on
S

ou
th

 O
tte

rin
gt

on
S

ou
th

 O
tte

rin
gt

on
 V

ill
ag

e 
In

st
itu

te

33
Page 48



N
ew

 W
ar

d
 2

01
5

P
ar

is
h

P
ro

p
o

se
d

 P
o

lli
n

g
 D

is
tr

ic
t 

N
am

e
P

ro
p

o
se

d
 P

o
lli

n
g

 P
la

ce

N
or

th
al

le
rt

on
 N

or
th

 a
nd

 B
ro

m
pt

on
B

ro
m

pt
on

B
ro

m
pt

on
B

ro
m

pt
on

 M
et

ho
di

st
 C

hu
rc

h

N
or

th
al

le
rt

on
 N

or
th

 a
nd

 B
ro

m
pt

on
N

or
th

al
le

rt
on

 N
or

th
 E

as
t

N
or

th
al

le
rt

on
 N

or
th

 E
as

t
N

or
th

al
le

rt
on

 T
he

 F
or

um

N
or

th
al

le
rt

on
 N

or
th

 a
nd

 B
ro

m
pt

on
N

or
th

al
le

rt
on

 N
or

th
 W

es
t

N
or

th
al

le
rt

on
 N

or
th

 W
es

t
N

or
th

al
le

rt
on

 T
he

 F
or

um

N
or

th
al

le
rt

on
 S

ou
th

N
or

th
al

le
rt

on
 C

en
tr

al
N

or
th

al
le

rt
on

 C
en

tr
al

N
or

th
al

le
rt

on
 T

he
 F

or
um

N
or

th
al

le
rt

on
 S

ou
th

N
or

th
al

le
rt

on
 S

ou
th

N
or

th
al

le
rt

on
 S

ou
th

N
or

th
al

le
rt

on
 T

he
 F

or
um

O
sm

ot
he

rle
y 

an
d 

S
w

ai
nb

y
C

ar
lto

n
C

ar
lto

n
C

ar
lto

n 
V

ill
ag

e 
H

al
l

O
sm

ot
he

rle
y 

an
d 

S
w

ai
nb

y
F

ac
eb

y
C

ar
lto

n
C

ar
lto

n 
V

ill
ag

e 
H

al
l

O
sm

ot
he

rle
y 

an
d 

S
w

ai
nb

y
G

re
at

 B
us

by
C

ar
lto

n
C

ar
lto

n 
V

ill
ag

e 
H

al
l

O
sm

ot
he

rle
y 

an
d 

S
w

ai
nb

y
Li

ttl
e 

B
us

by
C

ar
lto

n
C

ar
lto

n 
V

ill
ag

e 
H

al
l

O
sm

ot
he

rle
y 

an
d 

S
w

ai
nb

y
E

as
t H

ar
ls

ey
E

as
t H

ar
ls

ey
E

as
t H

ar
ls

ey
 V

ill
ag

e 
H

al
l

O
sm

ot
he

rle
y 

an
d 

S
w

ai
nb

y
In

gl
eb

y 
A

rn
cl

iff
e

In
gl

eb
y 

A
rn

cl
iff

e
In

gl
eb

y 
C

ro
ss

 V
ill

ag
e 

H
al

l

O
sm

ot
he

rle
y 

an
d 

S
w

ai
nb

y
K

irb
y 

S
ig

st
on

K
irb

y 
S

ig
st

on
K

irb
y 

S
ig

st
on

 &
 D

is
tr

ic
t V

ill
ag

e 
H

al
l

O
sm

ot
he

rle
y 

an
d 

S
w

ai
nb

y
S

ow
er

by
-u

nd
er

-C
ot

cl
iff

e
K

irb
y 

S
ig

st
on

K
irb

y 
S

ig
st

on
 &

 D
is

tr
ic

t V
ill

ag
e 

H
al

l

O
sm

ot
he

rle
y 

an
d 

S
w

ai
nb

y
E

lle
rb

ec
k

O
sm

ot
he

rle
y

O
sm

ot
he

rle
y 

V
ill

ag
e 

H
al

l

O
sm

ot
he

rle
y 

an
d 

S
w

ai
nb

y
O

sm
ot

he
rle

y
O

sm
ot

he
rle

y
O

sm
ot

he
rle

y 
V

ill
ag

e 
H

al
l

O
sm

ot
he

rle
y 

an
d 

S
w

ai
nb

y
T

hi
m

bl
eb

y
O

sm
ot

he
rle

y
O

sm
ot

he
rle

y 
V

ill
ag

e 
H

al
l

O
sm

ot
he

rle
y 

an
d 

S
w

ai
nb

y
W

es
t H

ar
ls

ey
O

sm
ot

he
rle

y
O

sm
ot

he
rle

y 
V

ill
ag

e 
H

al
l

O
sm

ot
he

rle
y 

an
d 

S
w

ai
nb

y
W

in
to

n,
 S

ta
nk

 &
 H

al
lik

el
d

O
sm

ot
he

rle
y

O
sm

ot
he

rle
y 

V
ill

ag
e 

H
al

l

O
sm

ot
he

rle
y 

an
d 

S
w

ai
nb

y
P

ot
to

P
ot

to
P

ot
to

 V
ill

ag
e 

H
al

l

O
sm

ot
he

rle
y 

an
d 

S
w

ai
nb

y
W

ho
rlt

on
W

ho
rlt

on
S

w
ai

nb
y 

N
ew

 C
hu

rc
h 

H
al

l

34
Page 49



N
ew

 W
ar

d
 2

01
5

P
ar

is
h

P
ro

p
o

se
d

 P
o

lli
n

g
 D

is
tr

ic
t 

N
am

e
P

ro
p

o
se

d
 P

o
lli

n
g

 P
la

ce

R
as

ke
lf

 a
n

d
 W

h
it

e 
H

o
rs

e
A

n
g

ra
m

 G
ra

n
g

e
C

ar
lt

o
n

 H
u

st
h

w
ai

te
#C

ar
lt

o
n

 H
u

st
h

w
ai

te
 V

ill
ag

e 
H

al
l

R
as

ke
lf

 a
n

d
 W

h
it

e 
H

o
rs

e
C

ar
lt

o
n

 H
u

st
h

w
ai

te
C

ar
lt

o
n

 H
u

st
h

w
ai

te
#C

ar
lt

o
n

 H
u

st
h

w
ai

te
 V

ill
ag

e 
H

al
l

R
as

ke
lf 

an
d 

W
hi

te
 H

or
se

C
ox

w
ol

d
C

ox
w

ol
d

C
ox

w
ol

d 
V

ill
ag

e 
H

al
l

R
as

ke
lf

 a
n

d
 W

h
it

e 
H

o
rs

e
K

ilb
u

rn
 H

ig
h

 &
 L

o
w

C
o

xw
o

ld
#C

o
xw

o
ld

 V
ill

ag
e 

H
al

l

R
as

ke
lf 

an
d 

W
hi

te
 H

or
se

N
ew

bu
rg

h
C

ox
w

ol
d

C
ox

w
ol

d 
V

ill
ag

e 
H

al
l

R
as

ke
lf 

an
d 

W
hi

te
 H

or
se

O
ul

st
on

C
ox

w
ol

d
C

ox
w

ol
d 

V
ill

ag
e 

H
al

l

R
as

ke
lf

 a
n

d
 W

h
it

e 
H

o
rs

e
W

ild
o

n
 G

ra
n

g
e

C
o

xw
o

ld
#C

o
xw

o
ld

 V
ill

ag
e 

H
al

l

R
as

ke
lf 

an
d 

W
hi

te
 H

or
se

B
ra

ff
er

to
n

H
el

pe
rb

y
H

el
pe

rb
y 

M
ill

en
ni

um
 H

al
l

R
as

ke
lf 

an
d 

W
hi

te
 H

or
se

F
aw

di
ng

to
n

H
el

pe
rb

y
H

el
pe

rb
y 

M
ill

en
ni

um
 H

al
l

R
as

ke
lf 

an
d 

W
hi

te
 H

or
se

H
el

pe
rb

y
H

el
pe

rb
y

H
el

pe
rb

y 
M

ill
en

ni
um

 H
al

l

R
as

ke
lf 

an
d 

W
hi

te
 H

or
se

M
yt

on
-o

n-
S

w
al

e
H

el
pe

rb
y

H
el

pe
rb

y 
M

ill
en

ni
um

 H
al

l

R
as

ke
lf 

an
d 

W
hi

te
 H

or
se

H
us

th
w

ai
te

H
us

th
w

ai
te

H
us

th
w

ai
te

 V
ill

ag
e 

H
al

l

R
as

ke
lf 

an
d 

W
hi

te
 H

or
se

T
ho

rn
to

n-
on

-t
he

-H
ill

H
us

th
w

ai
te

H
us

th
w

ai
te

 V
ill

ag
e 

H
al

l

R
as

ke
lf 

an
d 

W
hi

te
 H

or
se

B
ird

fo
rt

h
R

as
ke

lf
R

as
ke

lf 
V

ill
ag

e 
H

al
l

R
as

ke
lf 

an
d 

W
hi

te
 H

or
se

R
as

ke
lf

R
as

ke
lf

R
as

ke
lf 

V
ill

ag
e 

H
al

l

R
as

ke
lf 

an
d 

W
hi

te
 H

or
se

T
ho

rm
an

by
R

as
ke

lf
R

as
ke

lf 
V

ill
ag

e 
H

al
l

R
as

ke
lf 

an
d 

W
hi

te
 H

or
se

T
hi

rk
le

by
 H

ig
h 

&
 L

ow
 w

ith
 O

sg
od

by
T

hi
rk

le
by

* 
T

hi
rk

le
by

 V
ill

ag
e 

H
al

l

R
as

ke
lf 

an
d 

W
hi

te
 H

or
se

T
ho

lth
or

pe
T

ho
lth

or
pe

T
ho

lth
or

pe
 V

ill
ag

e 
H

al
l

35
Page 50



N
ew

 W
ar

d
 2

01
5

P
ar

is
h

P
ro

p
o

se
d

 P
o

lli
n

g
 D

is
tr

ic
t 

N
am

e
P

ro
p

o
se

d
 P

o
lli

n
g

 P
la

ce

R
om

an
by

 
R

om
an

by
 B

ro
om

fie
ld

R
om

an
by

B
ro

om
fie

ld
 S

ac
re

d 
H

ea
rt

s 
R

C
 S

ch
oo

l

R
om

an
by

 
R

om
an

by
 R

om
an

by
R

om
an

by
R

om
an

by
 M

et
ho

di
st

 C
hu

rc
h 

H
al

l

S
ow

er
by

 a
nd

 T
op

cl
iff

e
D

al
to

n
D

al
to

n
D

al
to

n 
V

ill
ag

e 
H

al
l

S
ow

er
by

 a
nd

 T
op

cl
iff

e
E

ld
m

ire
 w

ith
 C

ra
ke

hi
ll

D
al

to
n

D
al

to
n 

V
ill

ag
e 

H
al

l

S
ow

er
by

 a
nd

 T
op

cl
iff

e
H

ut
to

n 
S

es
sa

y
S

es
sa

y
S

es
sa

y 
V

ill
ag

e 
H

al
l

S
ow

er
by

 a
nd

 T
op

cl
iff

e
S

es
sa

y
S

es
sa

y
S

es
sa

y 
V

ill
ag

e 
H

al
l

S
ow

er
by

 a
nd

 T
op

cl
iff

e
S

ow
er

by
S

ow
er

by
S

ow
er

by
 S

co
ut

 H
ut

S
ow

er
by

 a
nd

 T
op

cl
iff

e
T

op
cl

iff
e

T
op

cl
iff

e
T

op
cl

iff
e 

V
ill

ag
e 

H
al

l

S
to

ke
sl

ey
G

re
at

 &
 L

itt
le

 B
ro

ug
ht

on
G

re
at

 A
nd

 L
itt

le
 B

ro
ug

ht
on

G
re

at
 B

ro
ug

ht
on

 V
ill

ag
e 

H
al

l

S
to

ke
sl

ey
K

irk
by

G
re

at
 A

nd
 L

itt
le

 B
ro

ug
ht

on
G

re
at

 B
ro

ug
ht

on
 V

ill
ag

e 
H

al
l

S
to

ke
sl

ey
S

to
ke

sl
ey

S
to

ke
sl

ey
S

to
ke

sl
ey

 T
ow

n 
H

al
l

36
Page 51



N
ew

 W
ar

d
 2

01
5

P
ar

is
h

P
ro

p
o

se
d

 P
o

lli
n

g
 D

is
tr

ic
t 

N
am

e
P

ro
p

o
se

d
 P

o
lli

n
g

 P
la

ce

T
an

fie
ld

C
ar

th
or

pe
C

ar
th

or
pe

C
ar

th
or

pe
 C

om
m

un
ity

 H
al

l

T
an

fie
ld

H
ow

gr
av

e 
&

 S
ut

to
n 

w
ith

 H
ow

gr
av

e
K

irk
lin

gt
on

K
irk

lin
gt

on
 V

ill
ag

e 
H

al
l

T
an

fie
ld

H
ow

gr
av

e 
&

 S
ut

to
n 

w
ith

 H
ow

gr
av

e
K

irk
lin

gt
on

K
irk

lin
gt

on
 V

ill
ag

e 
H

al
l

T
an

fie
ld

K
irk

lin
gt

on
 C

um
 U

ps
la

nd
K

irk
lin

gt
on

K
irk

lin
gt

on
 V

ill
ag

e 
H

al
l

T
an

fie
ld

P
ic

kh
ill

 w
ith

 R
ox

by
P

ic
kh

ill
 W

ith
 R

ox
by

P
ic

kh
ill

 P
rim

ar
y 

S
ch

oo
l

T
an

fie
ld

A
in

de
rb

y 
Q

ue
rn

ho
w

S
in

de
rb

y
S

in
de

rb
y 

an
d 

D
is

tr
ic

t V
ill

ag
e 

H
al

l

T
an

fie
ld

H
ol

m
e

S
in

de
rb

y
S

in
de

rb
y 

an
d 

D
is

tr
ic

t V
ill

ag
e 

H
al

l

T
an

fie
ld

H
ow

e
S

in
de

rb
y

S
in

de
rb

y 
an

d 
D

is
tr

ic
t V

ill
ag

e 
H

al
l

T
an

fie
ld

S
in

de
rb

y
S

in
de

rb
y

S
in

de
rb

y 
an

d 
D

is
tr

ic
t V

ill
ag

e 
H

al
l

T
an

fie
ld

F
irb

y
S

na
pe

 W
ith

 T
ho

rp
S

na
pe

 V
ill

ag
e 

In
st

itu
te

T
an

fie
ld

S
na

pe
 w

ith
 T

ho
rp

S
na

pe
 W

ith
 T

ho
rp

S
na

pe
 V

ill
ag

e 
In

st
itu

te

T
an

fi
el

d
E

as
t 

T
an

fi
el

d
T

an
fi

el
d

#W
es

t 
T

an
fi

el
d

 M
em

o
ri

al
 H

al
l

T
an

fi
el

d
W

es
t 

T
an

fi
el

d
T

an
fi

el
d

#W
es

t 
T

an
fi

el
d

 M
em

o
ri

al
 H

al
l

T
an

fie
ld

B
ur

ril
l w

ith
 C

ow
lin

g
T

ho
rn

to
n 

W
at

la
ss

T
ho

rn
to

n 
W

at
la

ss
 V

ill
ag

e 
H

al
l

T
an

fie
ld

C
lif

to
n-

on
-Y

or
e

T
ho

rn
to

n 
W

at
la

ss
T

ho
rn

to
n 

W
at

la
ss

 V
ill

ag
e 

H
al

l

T
an

fie
ld

R
oo

kw
ith

T
ho

rn
to

n 
W

at
la

ss
T

ho
rn

to
n 

W
at

la
ss

 V
ill

ag
e 

H
al

l

T
an

fie
ld

T
hi

rn
T

ho
rn

to
n 

W
at

la
ss

T
ho

rn
to

n 
W

at
la

ss
 V

ill
ag

e 
H

al
l

T
an

fie
ld

T
ho

rn
to

n 
W

at
la

ss
T

ho
rn

to
n 

W
at

la
ss

T
ho

rn
to

n 
W

at
la

ss
 V

ill
ag

e 
H

al
l

T
an

fie
ld

W
el

l
W

el
l

W
el

l V
ill

ag
e 

In
st

itu
te

T
hi

rs
k

C
ar

lto
n 

M
in

io
tt

C
ar

lto
n 

M
in

io
tt

C
ar

lto
n 

M
in

io
tt 

- 
V

al
e 

of
 Y

or
k

T
hi

rs
k

C
at

to
n

S
an

dh
ut

to
n

* 
S

an
dh

ut
to

n 
V

ill
ag

e 
H

al
l

T
hi

rs
k

K
irb

y 
W

is
ke

S
an

dh
ut

to
n

S
an

dh
ut

to
n 

V
ill

ag
e 

H
al

l

T
hi

rs
k

N
ew

sh
am

 w
ith

 B
re

ck
en

br
ou

gh
S

an
dh

ut
to

n
S

an
dh

ut
to

n 
V

ill
ag

e 
H

al
l

T
hi

rs
k

S
an

dh
ut

to
n

S
an

dh
ut

to
n

S
an

dh
ut

to
n 

V
ill

ag
e 

H
al

l

T
hi

rs
k

S
ki

pt
on

 o
n 

S
w

al
e

S
an

dh
ut

to
n

* 
S

an
dh

ut
to

n 
V

ill
ag

e 
H

al
l

T
hi

rs
k

T
hi

rs
k

T
hi

rs
k 

(E
as

t O
f C

od
 B

ec
k)

E
as

t T
hi

rs
k 

C
om

m
un

ity
 H

al
l

T
hi

rs
k

T
hi

rs
k

T
hi

rs
k 

(W
es

t O
f C

od
 B

ec
k)

T
hi

rs
k 

F
rie

nd
s 

M
ee

tin
g 

H
ou

se

* 
P

ro
po

se
d 

ch
an

ge
s 

to
 P

ol
lin

g 
P

la
ce

s

**
 If

 th
e 

O
ld

 O
ak

 T
re

e 
is

 u
na

va
ila

bl
e 

S
ou

th
 K

ilv
in

gt
on

 S
ch

oo
l w

ill
 b

e 
us

ed
   

# 
P

ol
lin

g 
S

ta
tio

ns
 a

re
 c

or
re

ct
 (

no
t b

ei
ng

 c
ha

ng
ed

) 
er

ro
rs

 o
n 

pr
ev

io
us

 A
nn

ex
 C

37
Page 52



  
 
HAMBLETON DISTRICT COUNCIL 
 
Report To: Cabinet 
  10 June 2014 
 
Subject: POLICY FOR THE PROVISION OF SANITARY ACCOMMODATION FOR THE 

PUBLIC 
 

All Wards 
Portfolio Holder for Environmental and Planning Services: Councillor B Phillips 

 
 
1.0 PURPOSE AND BACKGROUND:     
 
1.1 To establish standards of sanitary accommodation provision in premises servicing food and 

drink to which the public resort. 
 
2.0 BACKGROUND 
 
2.1 Sanitary accommodation needs to be made available at premises to which the public resort. 

This is in order to  
a) protect the health and welfare of the public; 
b) protect and enhance the environmental quality of the area; and 
c) to enhance the experience of both residents and visitors to the area. 
 
Historically, the Environmental Health Service has applied various standards during 
scheduled inspections, in response to enquiries or complaints, when giving advice 
regarding new premises or during the planning consultation process. 

 
2.2 Legislation exists that requires suitable and sufficient sanitary accommodation for staff 

under the Workplace (Health, Safety and Welfare) Regulations 1992. In most 
circumstances this provision can also be used by the public too if the accommodation is 
accessible. 

 
2.3  Facilities for the public can be required by the Local Authority under section 20 of the Local 

Government (Miscellaneous Provisions) Act 1976. This may follow evidence of need or 
complaints from customers.  

 
2.4  Different standards can apply to new premises, premises undergoing conversion or 

alteration or existing premises. Standards can be applied more rigorously when planning 
applications are made whereas standards may be more difficult to achieve in existing 
premises, especially where space or the type of construction and layout prevents a 
desirable solution. The standards set out in British Standard BS 6465-1 – Sanitary 
Accommodation are not always applicable, particularly in relation to small catering 
businesses. 

 
2.5  Standards of temporary facilities should be applied to outdoor or temporary events 

according to a risk assessment of their needs. Chapter18 of the Purple Guide to Health and 
Safety and Welfare at Music and Other Events, which deals with issues relating to welfare 
and sanitary provision for those attending an event, will be relied upon to determine the 
suitability and sufficiency of sanitary and welfare facilities for workers and for the audience 

Page 53

Agenda Item 8



at outdoor events. The provision of welfare facilities for the audience has positive benefits in 
controlling health risks and contributing to audience wellbeing and behaviour. 

 
2.6  Account needs to be taken of the nature of many small businesses in buildings which are 

not readily suitable for alteration or addition of sanitary accommodation or where asking for 
extra facilities may jeopardise the viability of the business. 

 
2.7  Facilities for disabled people must be provided in new or altered premises under the 

provisions of the Equality Act 2010. These facilities are taken into account when 
determining the total provision. Facilities for the disabled should also be provided in other 
premises where this is reasonable or practicable. 

 
2.8  Facilities for staff should, where possible, only be used by them, especially in premises 

where they are handling open food. This need not apply to small premises with less than 20 
covers. 

 
2.9  Standards will be applied consistently. If a business or developer feels they have a justified 

reason why they cannot comply with the standards outlined in this Policy, they can apply in 
writing to the Environmental Health Manager for a waiver. This should be done before 
planning or building control permission is gained and before any works are undertaken or 
the application may be refused. In these cases, and those mentioned in paragraph 6 above, 
written agreements with neighbouring businesses may be taken into account. However, in 
the event that a sharing agreement ends then alternative arrangements may be required. 

 
2.10  Businesses providing sanitary accommodation for public use may be able to levy a 

reasonable charge for their use. 
 
3.0 LINK TO COUNCIL PRIORITIES:    
 
3.1 This Policy supports the Council Priorities by:- 
  

 Improving the performance and productivity of our services - by delivering high quality 
services through the implementation of reasonable standards in a transparent and 
consistent way. 

 
 Ensuring the Planning Service supports the sustainable economic growth and 

development of the District – by setting clear and consistent standards for new 
development. 

 
4.0 RISK ASSESSMENT:  
 
4.1 There are no significant risks associated with this Policy.  
 
5.0 FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS: 
 
5.1 There are no financial implications for the Council. 
 
6.0 LEGAL IMPLICATIONS:  
 
6.1 The Local Authority has the power to require suitable and sufficient sanitary 

accommodation in premises to which the public can resort. 
 

Page 54



7.0 RECOMMENDATION:      
 
7.1 That Cabinet approves and recommends to Council the Sanitary Accommodation 

Standards. 
 
 
MICK JEWITT 
 
 
Background papers: Local Government (Miscellaneous Provisions) Act 1976 
 British Standard BS 6465-1 – Sanitary Accommodation Equality Act 

2010 
  The Purple Guide. Events Industry Forum. 2014 
 
Author ref: PM 
 
Contact: Philip Mepham 
  Environmental Health Manager 
  Direct Line No  01609 767037 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
100614 sanitary accommodation 

Page 55



 
Appendix 

 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 

HAMBLETON DISTRICT COUNCIL 
 

ENVIRONMENTAL HEALTH SERVICE 
 
 

SANITARY ACCOMMODATION 
STANDARDS 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Date of Issue: July 2014 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Version Control 
 
Version No. Amended by Date 
1.0 Philip Mepham 2nd April 2014 
   
   
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 56



 

CONTENTS 
 
1. Introduction and background 
 
2.  Table 1 - Restaurants, cafes, canteens and catering premises (non-liquor licensed 

premises) – less than 20 covers 
 
3.  Table 2 – Restaurants, cafes, canteens and catering premises (non-liquor licensed 

premises) – 20 to 50 covers 
 
4.  Table 3– Restaurants, cafes, canteens and catering premises (non-liquor licensed 

premises) – 50 - 100 covers 
 
5. Table 4 – Restaurants, cafes, canteens and catering premises (non-liquor licensed 

premises) – over 100 covers 
 
6. Table 5 – Buildings used for public entertainment or similar (non-liquor licensed 

premises) 
 
7. Table 6 – Public houses and Licensed Bars 
 
8. Table 7 – Place of work – for staff 
 
9. Table 8 – Hotels 
 
10. Table 9 – Residential homes and Nursing Homes for elderly people 
 
11. Table 10 – Outdoor music and similar events 
 
12. Table 11 – Nursery Schools and Play Schools 
 
 
1.0 Introduction & Background 
 
1.1.  Sanitary accommodation needs to be made available at premises to which the 

public resort. This is in order to  
a) protect the health and welfare of the public; 
b) protect and enhance the environmental quality of the area; and 
c) enhance the experience of both residents and visitors to the area. 

 
1.2. Provisions exist in the Workplace (Health, Safety and Welfare) Regulations 1992 

that require suitable and sufficient sanitary accommodation for staff. In many 
circumstances this provision can also be used by the public if the accommodation is 
accessible. 

 
1.3.  Facilities for the public can be required by the Local Authority under section 20 of 

the Local Government (Miscellaneous Provisions) Act 1976. This may follow 
evidence of need or complaints from customers.  

 
1.4.  Different standards can apply to new premises, premises undergoing conversion or 

alteration or existing premises. Standards can be applied more rigorously when 
planning applications are made whereas standards may be more difficult to achieve 
in existing premises, especially where space or the type of construction and layout 

Page 57



 

prevents a desirable solution. The standards set out in British Standard BS 6465-1 
– Sanitary Accommodation are not always applicable, particularly in relation to small 
catering businesses or premises to which listed building consent or conservation 
area restrictions apply. 

 
1.5.  Standards of temporary facilities should be applied to outdoor or temporary events 

according to a risk assessment of their needs. Chapter 18 of the draft Purple Guide 
will be relied upon to determine the suitability and sufficiency of sanitary and welfare 
facilities for workers and for the audience at outdoor events. The provision of 
welfare facilities for the audience has positive benefits in controlling health risks and 
contributing to audience wellbeing and behaviour. 

 
1.6.  Account will be taken of the nature of many small businesses in buildings which are 

not readily suitable for alteration or addition of sanitary accommodation or where 
asking for extra facilities may jeopardise the viability of the business. 

 
1.7.  Facilities for staff should, where possible, only be used by them, especially in 

premises where they are handling open food. This need not apply to small premises 
with less than 20 covers. 

 
1.8.  Standards will be applied consistently. If a business or developer feels they have a 

justified reason why they cannot comply with the standards outlined in this Policy, 
they can apply in writing to the Environmental Health Manager for a waiver. This 
should be done before planning or building control permission is gained and before 
any works are undertaken or the application may be refused. In these cases, and 
those mentioned in paragraph 1.4 above, written agreements with neighbouring 
businesses may be taken into account. However, in the event that a sharing 
agreement ends then alternative arrangements may be required. 

 
1.9.  In the absence of more reliable information, it is assumed that 50% of customers 

are male and 50% female. 
 
1.10. Occupancy of licensed premises should be calculated at the rate of 4 people per 

3m2 of Effective Drinking Area (EDA). 
 
1.11.  Where unisex toilets are provided, W.Cs should be in self-contained toilets with full 

height walls and doors. 
 
1.12. Although BS6465-1:2006 contains standards for the provision of sanitary 

accommodation, it is considered excessive in relation to the standards required of 
small catering businesses. 

 
1.13.  Businesses providing sanitary accommodation for public use may be able to levy a 

reasonable charge for their use. 
 
2.0 Equality Act 2010 
 
2.1 Facilities for disabled people must be provided in new or altered premises under the 

provisions of the Equality Act 2010 and Building Regulations where reasonable and 
practicable. These facilities will be taken into account when determining the total 
provision. Facilities for the disabled should also be provided in other premises 
where this is reasonable and practicable. 

 

Page 58



 

2.2 The Equality Act 2010 applies to premises that supply goods or services by 
imposing a duty to make changes to overcome barriers created by the physical 
features of their premises. 

 
2.3 Where a physical feature, including toilets and washing facilities, puts disabled 

people using a service at substantial disadvantage, the business must take 
reasonable steps to:- 

 Remove the feature (this may not be an option if sanitary accommodation are 
required); 

 Alter it so that it no longer has that effect; 
 Provide a reasonable means of avoiding the feature; or 
 Provide a reasonable alternative method of making the service available to 

disabled people. 
 
2.4 The facilities themselves also need to be readily accessible as well as being 

adequately set out internally. These two aspects may require the landlord’s 
permission to alter rented premises. Planning and Building Control permission or 
consent may also be needed. 

 
2.5 The business must be aware that disabled people are a diverse group with different 

requirements. Businesses are not expected to anticipate the needs of every 
individual who may use their premises. However businesses are required to think 
about and take reasonable steps to overcome features that may create a 
disadvantage for people with particular kinds of impairment e.g. mobility. 

 
Tables 

 
Table 1 – Restaurants, cafes, canteens and catering premises  

(non-liquor licensed premises) – less than 20 covers 
Appliances For male customers For female customers 

WC 1  
Wash hand basin 1  
 
 

Table 2 – Restaurants, cafes, canteens and catering premises  
(non-liquor licensed premises) – 20 to 50 covers 

Appliances For male customers For female customers 
WC 1  1 
Wash hand basin 1 1 
 
 

Table 3– Restaurants, cafes, canteens and catering premises  
(non-liquor licensed premises) – 50 - 100 covers 

Appliances For male customers For female customers 
WC 1 2 
Urinal 1  
Wash hand basin 2 2 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 59



 

 
Table 4 – Restaurants, cafes, canteens and catering premises  

(non-liquor licensed premises) – over 100 covers 
Appliances For male customers For female customers 

WC 1 per 100 up to 400 males 
plus 1 for every additional 
250 (or part of 250) males 

2 per 50 up to 200 females 
plus 1 for every additional 100 
(or part of 100) females 

Urinal 1 per 50 males  
Wash hand basin 1 per WC plus 1 per 5 (or 

part of 5) urinals 
1 per WC 

Cleaners sink Adequate provision should be made for cleaning facilities 
including at least one cleaner’s sink. 

 
Table 5 – Buildings used for public entertainment or similar  

(non-liquor licensed premises) 
In single screen cinemas, theatres, concert halls and similar premises without licensed 
bars 

Appliances For male customers For female customers 
WC 1 for up to 250 males plus 1 for 

every additional 500 (or part of 
500) males 

2 for up to 40 females 
3 for 41 to 70 females 
4 for 71 to 100 females 
Plus 1 for every additional 40 (or 
part of 40) females 

Urinal 2 for up to 100 males plus 1 for 
every additional 80 (or part of 80) 
males 

 

Wash hand 
basins 

1 per WC plus 1 per 5 (or part of 
5) urinals 

1 plus 1 per 2 (or part of 2) WCs 

Cleaners sink Adequate provision should be made for cleaning facilities including at 
least one cleaners sink. 

Notes: Where buildings for public entertainment or similar have licensed bars, facilities 
should also be provided in accordance with table 6, based on the capacity of the bar 
 
 

Table 6 – Public houses and Licensed Bars 
Appliances For male customers For female customers 

WC 1 for up to 150 males plus 1 for 
every additional 150 (or part of 
150) males 

1 for up to 12 females plus 1 for 13 
to 30 females plus 1 for every 
additional 25 (or part of 25) females. 

Urinal 2 for up to 75 males plus 1 for 
every additional 75 (or part of 75) 
males 

 

Wash hand 
basins 

1 per WC and an additional 1 per 
5 (or part of 5) urinals 

1 per 2 WCs 

Cleaners sink Adequate provision should be made for cleaning facilities including at 
least one cleaners sink. 

Notes: In public houses you may assume a ratio of 75% male customers to 
25% female customers unless the proposed clientele is known to be 
different.  

 
 
 

Page 60



 

Table 7 – Place of work – for staff 
Sanitary appliances for any group of staff 

Number of persons at 
work 

Number of WCs Number of wash hand basins 

1 to 5 1 1 
6 to 25 2 2 
26 to 50 3 3 
51 to 75 4 4 

76 to 100 5 5 
Above 100 One additional WC and washing station for every 25 (or 

part of 25) persons 
Alternative scale of provision of sanitary appliances for use by male staff only 
Number of males at work Number of WCs Number of urinals Number of wash 

hand basins 
1 to 15 1 1 1 
16 to 30 2 1 2 
31 to 45 2 2 2 
46 to 60 3 2 3 
61 to 75 3 3 3 
76 to 90 4 3 4 

91 to 100 4 4 4 
Above 100 One additional WC for every 50 (or part of 50) males plus 

at least one additional urinal for every one extra WC. 
Note 1:  You should also see the Workplace (Health, Safety and Welfare) Regulations 
1992 
Note 2: Where work activities result in the heavy soiling of hands and forearms, wash 
hand basins should be provided for the staff as follows: 
a) One wash hand basin per 10 (or part of 10) people at work up to 50 people 
b) For more than 50 people, one additional wash hand basin for every further 20 (or part 
of 20) people. 
Note 3: Where sanitary conveniences provided for staff are also used by the public, the 
numbers given in table 7 should be increased by at least one for each sex so that staff 
can use the facilities without undue delay. 
 

Table 8 – Hotels 
Type of 

accommodation 
Appliances/facilities Number required Remarks 

Hotel with en-suite 
accommodation 

En suite 
 
 
 
Staff bathroom 

1 per residential 
guest bedroom 
 
 
1 per 9 residential 
staff 

Containing 
bath/shower, WC 
and wash hand 
basin 
Containing 
bath/shower, WC 
and wash hand 
basin 

Bucket/cleaners 
sink 

1 per 30 bedrooms At least 1 on every 
floor 

Hotels and guest 
houses without en-
suite 
accommodation 

WC 
Wash hand basin 
Bathroom 

1 per 9 guests 
1 per bedroom 
1 per 9 guests 

 
Containing 
bath/shower, WC 
and wash hand 
basin 

Page 61



 

Bucket/cleaners 
sink 

1 per floor  

Tourist hostels WC 
Wash hand basin 
 
 
Bathroom 

1 per 9 guests 
1 per bedroom or 1 
for every 9 guests 
in a dormitory 
1 per 9 guests 

 
Containing 
bath/shower, WC 
and wash hand 
basin 

Cleaner’s sink 1 per floor 
 

Table 9 – Residential homes and Nursing Homes for elderly people 
Type of 

accomm. 
Appliances Number 

recommended 
Remarks 

Residents WC 
 
Bath 
 
Wash hand basin 

1 per 4 persons 
 
1 per 10 persons 
 
1 to each bedsitting 
room 

An adequate wash 
hand basin is also 
required 

Staff WC 
 
Wash hand basin 

At least 1 for staff 
 
1 

 
 
In WC compartment 

Visitors WC 
 
Wash hand basin 

1 
 
1 

 
 
In WC compartment 

Kitchen Sink As appropriate  
Cleaners 
room 

Cleaner’s sink 1 In each cleaners 
room 

Other Bed pan 
cleaning/disposal 

As appropriate Service area 

 
 

Table 10 – Outdoor music and similar events 
For events with a gate opening time of 6 
hours or more 

For events with a gate opening time of 
less than 6 hours  

Male Female Male Female 
1 WC per 500 
males plus 1 urinal 
per 150 males 

1 WC per 100 
females 

1 WC per 600 
males plus 1 urinal 
per 175 males 

1 WC per 120 
females 

1 wash hand basin per 5 (or part of 5) 
WCs plus 1 per 5 (or part of 5) urinals 

1 wash hand basin per 5 (or part of 5) 
WCs 

 
 

Table 11 – Nursery Schools and Play Schools 
WCs 1 per 10 pupils (not less that 4) 
Wash hand basins 1 per WC/urinal 
Deep sink, bath or shower 1 per 40 pupils 

 
 

Page 62



   
HAMBLETON DISTRICT COUNCIL 
 
Report To: Cabinet 
  10 June 2014  
 
Subject: FOOD SERVICE PLAN 2014/2016, FOOD AND ENVIRONMENT SAMPLING 

POLICY and FOOD SAFETY ENFORCEMENT POLICY 
 

All Wards 
Portfolio Holder for Environmental and Planning Services: Councillor B Phillips 

 
 
1.0 PURPOSE AND BACKGROUND: 
 
1.1 This report is required to demonstrate that food safety services and their enforcement within 

Hambleton are properly organised in order to minimise the risk of food poisoning or harm to 
consumers within Hambleton and beyond. 

 
1.2 The Plan is required to comply with the requirements of the Food Standards Agency and 

the Regulators’ Code in relation to the development of food enforcement services and their 
enforcement. 

 
2.0 INFORMATION AND ANALYSIS 
 
2.1 A Code of Practice was issued under section 40 of the Food Safety Act 1990, regulation 26 

of the Food Safety and Hygiene (England) Regulations 2013 and regulation 6 of the Official 
Feed and Food Controls (England) Regulations 2009. This prescribed how food legislation 
must be enforced by Food Authorities. 

 
2.2 As part of the Food Standards Agency’s (FSA) work to strengthen and develop links with 

local authority enforcement, an Enforcement Liaison Group was established. This group 
developed a Framework Agreement on Official Feed and Food controls by Local 
Authorities. The 5th amendment was published in April 2010. This takes into account the 
Government’s better regulation agenda and the principles of good regulation. 

 
2.3  The Framework Agreement requires that three principle policy documents should receive 

member approval:- 
 

a) The Food Service Plan (appendix 1) ensures that national priorities and standards are 
addressed and delivered locally. It also enables services to reflect local needs and 
priorities and provides a means for monitoring compliance with the Code of Practice. 

 
b) The Food and Environment Sampling Policy (appendix 2) is required to indicate the 

Authority’s basis for the sampling programme and an estimate of the numbers and 
types of samples that will be taken from establishments, or submitted in relation to 
complaints.  

 
c) The Food Safety Enforcement Policy should be up to date, available to food business 

operators and should cover all areas of food law that the Food Authority has a duty to 
enforce and include criteria for the use of all the enforcement options that are available. 
A generic Environmental Health Enforcement Policy has been produced which covers 
general issues. The Food Safety Enforcement Policy has been amended to take into 
account minor changes in legislation since 2012. 

Page 63

Agenda Item 9



 
3.0 LEGAL IMPLICATIONS: 
 
3.1 These are contained within the body of the policies and plans. 
 
4.0 FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS: 
 
4.1 There are no financial implications in this report. All services will be provided from within 

existing budgets. 
 
5.0 RISK ASSESSMENT: 
 
5.1 There are no risks associated with this report. 
 
6.0 EQUALITY AND DIVERSITY: 
 
6.1 Equality issues will be taken into account during future Service Plans once the levels of 

representation of minority communities and the perceptions of communities have been 
ascertained. 

 
7.0 RECOMMENDATIONS: 
 
7.1 That Cabinet approves and recommends to Council the Food Service Plan 2014-2016, the 

Food and Environment Sampling Policy and the Food Safety Enforcement Policy. 
  
MICK JEWITT 
 
 
Background papers: The Framework Agreement on Official Feed and Food Controls by 

Local Authorities – amendment 5, April 2010 – Food Standards Agency 
  Regulators’ Code. BRDO. July 2013. 
 
Author ref: Philip Mepham   
 
Contact: Philip Mepham  
 Environmental Health Manager  
 Direct Line No: (01609) 767037   
 
 
 
100614 food service plan 

Page 64



 

Annex 1 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

HAMBLETON DISTRICT COUNCIL 
 

ENVIRONMENTAL HEALTH SERVICE 
 
 
 
 
 
 

FOOD SERVICE PLAN 
 

2014/16 
 
 
 
 

Date of Issue 
 
 

Version Control 
 
Version No. Amended by Date 
1.0 Philip Mepham 26/3/14 

Page 65



FOOD SERVICE PLAN 2010/11 
 

 
 

 
 

CONTENTS 
 
 
 
 

  Page Number 
 

1.0 Introduction 
 

3 

2.0 Service Objectives and Links 
 

3 

3.0 Background 
 

4 

4.0 Service Delivery 
 

6 

5.0 Resources 
 

11 

6.0 Quality Assessment 
 

12 

7.0 Review 
 

12 

8.0 Glossary of terms 
 

14 

 Monitoring criteria 
 

16 

 

Page 66



 

Y:\Committee Services\Cabinet\Reports\2014\100614 food service plan Annex1.doc Page 3 of 16 

1.0 Introduction 
 
The Council, being a Food Authority, is responsible for the enforcement of food 
safety in approximately 1,117 premises within Hambleton District Council (HDC).  
This includes premises at all stages in the food chain ranging from farm producers of 
food, food manufacturers and processors through to retail food premises, food 
vehicles restaurants and other premises involving catering. 
 
The Food Standards Agency (FSA), amended its Framework Agreement in April 
2010 to take into account the Agency’s new Vision for food law enforcement, and the 
FSA Framework for Regulatory Decision Making, which takes account of the 
Government’s better regulation agenda and principles of good regulation. This 
Framework Agreement requires all local authorities to prepare a Food Service Plan 
which reviews the implementation of the previous year’s plan and details the delivery 
of their food safety enforcement responsibilities for the current year. 
 
This plan is seen as an important document ensuring that national priorities and 
standards are addressed and delivered locally.  This service plan will also: 
 Focus debate on key delivery issues; 
 Provide an essential link with financial planning; 
 Set objectives for the future, and identify major issues that may cross service 

boundaries; 
 Provide a means of managing performance and making performance 

comparisons. 
 
This Food Service Plan has been drafted having regard to the FSA “Standard” and 
guidance and has been produced by the Environmental Health Service.  
 
The plan seeks to ensure that all national priorities and standards are delivered 
locally and provides a balanced approach to local food safety enforcement.  This is 
achieved by not merely directing resources towards the programmed inspection and 
intervention process, but also by ensuring that adequate provision is made to 
address food complaints, food poisoning notifications and other reactive work, advice 
to businesses, and also the ability to follow-up intelligence driven areas of work such 
as sampling and targeted inspections. 
 
Local authorities are permitted to select the most appropriate action to be taken to 
drive up levels of compliance by food establishments with food law.   
 
2.0   Service Objectives and Links 
 
2.1 Aim and Objectives 
The Aim is to ensure the safe and hygienic production, storage, distribution and sale 
of food and drink through the enforcement of legislation, the provision of advice and 
information to consumers and the operators of food businesses, and the collection of 
information about the microbiological quality of food produced or bought within the 
District through achievement of the following objectives:- 
 Delivery of an annual programme of food hygiene interventions including 

inspections and enforcement in accordance with statutory requirements, codes 
of practice and guidance. 

Page 67



 

Y:\Committee Services\Cabinet\Reports\2014\100614 food service plan Annex1.doc Page 4 of 16 

 Supporting the annual interventions programme with an annual microbiological 
food and water sampling programme. 

 Investigating complaints within service standards and to take appropriate action 
in accordance with Codes of Practice and Guidance. 

 Supporting food businesses and consumers with targeted promotional advice 
and educational initiatives together with providing information and advice on 
food safety to food businesses and consumers and co-ordinating training. 

 Taking appropriate enforcement action in accordance with the Council’s Food 
Safety Enforcement Policy. 

 Investigating cases and outbreaks of food borne infections in close co-operation 
with Public Health England and, where appropriate, other health care 
professionals. 

 Ensuring that public and private drinking water supplies are safe and 
wholesome. 

 Investigating and assessing the fitness of food and the hygienic conditions of 
food premises, practices and personnel. 

 The inspection of hygiene on food vehicles and mobile food premises trading 
within the District. 

 Providing information about the hygienic standards of food premises through the 
Food Hygiene Rating Scheme 

 Working with others to encourage healthy eating 
 Improving the way information is collected, analysed and used. 
 Ensuring that food imported from outside the EU, complies with the EC 

Regulations and, where this is found not to be case, taking appropriate action. 
 
2.2 Links to corporate priorities 
 The Food Service is linked to the Council’s Business Plan  
 The Food Service is an integral part of the Environmental Health Service.  
 
3.0 Background 
 
3.1 Profile of the Local Authority 
 

 Hambleton District Council 
 
87,300 population 
131,117 hectares 
44 Local District Councillors 
177 Parishes 
78 Parish Councils 
5 market towns 
2 Parliamentary Constituencies 

 
The District is a mixed area of urban and rural landscape.  Predominant 
employment is associated with rural/farming and tourism.  

 
3.2 Political Arrangements 

 
Under the Constitution of the Council the Director of Environmental and 
Planning Services has delegated authority for all enforcement including food 
safety.  

Page 68



 

Y:\Committee Services\Cabinet\Reports\2014\100614 food service plan Annex1.doc Page 5 of 16 

 
This Food Service Plan is reported to the HDC Cabinet whose minutes are 
approved by the Council.  

 
3.3 The Scope of the Environment Health Service 

 
In April 2013 the District signed a service level agreement with Richmondshire 
District Council which provides an Environmental Health Service for both 
Districts. As a District Council the Authority is responsible for the full range of 
food hygiene duties under the Food Safety Act 1990, Food Safety and 
Hygiene (England) Regulations 2013 and associated EC Regulations.  

 
Primary Production, Food Standards and Animal Feeding Stuffs are the 
responsibility of the North Yorkshire County Council Trading Standards 
Service. 

 
3.4 Specialist External Services/Partners  
 

Food Analytical Services West Yorkshire County Analysts plus specialist 
service providers as necessary 

Food Examiner Public Health England - Food, Water and 
Environment Microbiology Laboratory at York 

Proper Officer Public Health England – Yorkshire and the 
Humber Consultant in Communicable Disease 
Control  

Public Health Director of Public Health, North Yorkshire County 
Council 

 
3.5 Service Delivery Point: 
 

Hambleton District Council 
Civic Centre 
Stone Cross 
NORTHALLERTON 
North Yorkshire 
DL6 2UU 
 
Tel: 01609 779977 
Fax: 01609 767248 
Website: www.hambleton.gov.uk 
Email: ehts@hambleton.gov.uk 

 
 
3.6 Demands on the Environmental Health Service  
 

The area contains a mix of manufacturing, retail and catering premises.  
Catering and retail are the dominant sectors within this mix.  The businesses 
are predominantly small to medium sized establishments. 

 
 
 
 

Page 69



 

Y:\Committee Services\Cabinet\Reports\2014\100614 food service plan Annex1.doc Page 6 of 16 

Types of Premises Estimated Number of 
premises at May 2013 

Laems cat. 
 

Laems description 
 

HDC RDC 

A 
C 
E 
F 
G 
H 
 

Primary producers 
Manufacturers etc 
Importers/exporters 
Distributors/transporters 
Retailers   
Restaurants & caterers  
 

13 
62 
5 
22 

221 
794 

 

8 
39 
0 
11 

129 
620 

Total 1117 807 
Of which: 
Approved premises (including egg packing 
establishments) 
Premises where the Service acts as Primary Authority

 
24 
 

0 
 

 
8 
 

0 

 
3.7 Enforcement Policy 
 
HDC has a written and Member approved Food Safety Enforcement Policy that 
incorporates all enforcement activity.   The Food Law Code of Practice describes the 
interventions that can be used and the circumstances in which they should be used. 
The Food Service will use the range of official controls as detailed in that Code. 
 
All enforcement action will be undertaken having regard to the Food Safety 
Enforcement Policy.  This may range from informal action, through to the service of 
formal hygiene improvement or hygiene emergency prohibition notices, or ultimately 
the issue of simple cautions or recommendations for prosecution.  The main aim is to 
ensure that all food businesses within the District produce food that is safe to eat and 
that they comply with the requirements of food safety legislation.  This enforcement 
policy is available through the Council’s website. 
 
The Food Standards Agency is currently completing a consultation exercise of the 
Framework for Policy Making in the FSA and propose to revise it as required, taking 
into account the views of stakeholders. 
 
4.0 Service Delivery 
 
4.1 Food Premises Interventions 
 
The Council’s policy is to carry out programmed interventions in accordance with the 
minimum inspection frequencies specified in the current Food Law Code of Practice. 
The Council will choose the most appropriate action to be taken to drive up levels of 
compliance with food law by food establishments.   
 
Interventions are all prioritised in accordance with the food safety ratings derived 
from risks posed by the premises.  This is assessed in relation to the nature of the 
food handling involved, the standards maintained, and the quality of management. 
 
 
 

Page 70



 

Y:\Committee Services\Cabinet\Reports\2014\100614 food service plan Annex1.doc Page 7 of 16 

Premise Profile 
(Risk Categories A-E) 

Estimated Number of 
Premises (as at 

01/04/14)

Estimated number of 
inspections/audits 
required annually 

 HDC RDC HDC RDC 
Category A 2 1 1 0 
Category B 39 23 36 23 
Category C 373 248 233 170 
Category D 176 121 52 39 
Category E * 221 289 50 75 
Unrated and others not 
recently visited 

179 125 (179) (125) 

Childminders (removed 
from the inspection 
programme 2014) 

(127) n/a   

Total 990 807 372** 307** 
 
*Alternative enforcement strategies will be implemented for the majority of these low 
risk food premises in accordance with the Food Safety Act Code of Practice, and the 
North Yorkshire Chief Environmental Health Officers’ Quality Management System 
procedures.   
** Not including unrated premises 
 
 HDC RDC 
Estimated number of revisits 
Estimated number of additional inspections to new  
premises 

100 
250 

100 
150 

 
Performance Indicators: 100%  Category A premises 

90% Category B premises 
85% Category C premises 
70% Category D  

 
4.2  Food Complaints 
 
Requests for service about the condition of food, food premises, practices or 
personnel are investigated. The Council’s policy is to give a first response within 3 
working days to all food and food premises complaints.  The performance standard is 
to respond to 95% of complaints within 3 days. 
 

 
4.3 Home and Primary Authority Scheme 
The operation of the Primary Authority scheme is a statutory responsibility of the 
Better Regulation Delivery Office (BRDO). The Primary Authority scheme ensures 
that businesses trading across authority boundaries are regulated in a consistent 
way. Companies have the legal right to form a partnership with a ‘primary authority’, 
providing robust and reliable advice on compliance that other councils must take into 
account, and setting inspection plans to guide and coordinate activity. The Council 
will continue to comply with the requirements of the Home Authority Scheme. The 

 HDC RDC 
 12/13 13/14 12/13 13/14
Estimated number of food complaints per annum 34 27 12 9 

Page 71



 

Y:\Committee Services\Cabinet\Reports\2014\100614 food service plan Annex1.doc Page 8 of 16 

Council has not been requested to enter into a formal agreement with any local 
company for either Home or Primary Authority status.   
 
4.4 Advice to Business 
The Council has a policy of offering advice to any business that has trading premises 
within our area unless the trader has a Primary Authority arrangement with another 
Local Authority. 
 
Advice is also given when planning applications are submitted relating to new food 
businesses 
 
The Council is continually developing its website in order to improve, in particular, the 
access to specialist food safety advice. 
 
 HDC RDC 
 12/13 13/14 12/13 13/14
Estimated number of advice contacts per annum: 375 444 60 160 
 
4.5 Food and Environment Sampling and Inspection 
The Council has a written and approved Food and Environment Sampling Policy in 
compliance with the Food Law Code of Practice. The Policy is to sample food and 
drink supplied, produced and sold within the District, in accordance with a planned 
sampling programme, to assess its safety and quality and where necessary in 
response to food complaints/investigations.  The Council will also participate in North 
Yorkshire-wide, national and European sampling programmes where relevant.  
 
 HDC RDC 
Estimated number of routine food samples as part of the 
sampling programme per annum 

250 in the two districts 

Estimated number of complaint samples which will be 
submitted for examination/analysis 

1 or 2 1 or 2 

Estimated number of surrender visits 2 2 
 
All formal food samples will be submitted to the West Yorkshire County Analyst for 
analysis or to Public Health England, Microbiological Services, Food, Water and 
Environment Microbiology Laboratory at York for examination. 
 
4.6 Control and investigation of Outbreaks and Food Related Infectious 

Disease 
The Council investigates all outbreaks and notifications of food related disease in 
accordance with procedures agreed with its North Yorkshire partners and advice 
from its Proper Officer.  Close working links exist with North Yorkshire & York 
Community Infection and Control service, and other health organisations and groups 
in the region. 
 
 HDC RDC 
 12/13 13/14 12/13 13/14 
Estimated number of notifications of food related 
infectious diseases per annum* 

186 41 96 24 

Estimated number of outbreaks 1 1 
* Numbers reduced due to reduction in notification of Campylobacter isolations. 

Page 72



 

Y:\Committee Services\Cabinet\Reports\2014\100614 food service plan Annex1.doc Page 9 of 16 

4.7 Food Safety Incidents 
 
The Council will comply with the Food Law Code of Practice in relation to the 
handling of national food safety incidents and alerts.  This now includes Allergy 
Alerts.  To improve the communication of incidents and alerts a specific link with the 
Food Standards Agency website has been created on the Council’s website.   
 
 HDC and RDC 
Estimated number of food alerts where action is required p.a. 12 
 
4.8 Liaison with other organisations and partnership working 
 
The Council participates in the following liaison groups or organisations related to 
food safety issues in an endeavour to ensure that the service and/or any 
enforcement action taken within the District is consistent with those of neighbouring 
local authorities, that service improvements can be identified, and that competence 
based training can be assessed. 
 
 North Yorkshire and York Community Infection Prevention Team 
 Public Health England – Yorkshire and the Humber team 
 North Yorkshire Chief Environmental Health Officers Group and Associated Food 

Liaison Groups 
 Uni-form User Group (Environmental Health IT system) 
 Care Quality Commission (CQC) 
 North Yorkshire District Control of Infection Committee (NYDCIC) 
 North Yorkshire Health Protection Board 
 Yorkshire Zoonoses Group 
 Public Health England, PHE Food, Water and Environment Microbiology 

Laboratory, York Sampling Liaison Group 
 Yorkshire Water 
 Northumbria Water 
 OFSTED 
 Better Regulation Delivery Office 
 
The resources required for this work depends on the nature of issues discussed and 
frequencies of meetings, which are largely beyond the control of the Council. 
 
We will work with other organisations to undertake joint initiatives and extend our 
effectiveness through this increased capacity. 
 
4.9 Food Safety Promotion 
 
We will be considering bidding for funds to undertake food safety promotions. The 
Service aims to be active in food safety promotions and tries to employ innovative 
approaches to ensure the food safety message reaches the widest possible target 
audience. 
 
Food hygiene training through local service providers will be promoted through the 
Council’s website. 
 

Page 73



 

Y:\Committee Services\Cabinet\Reports\2014\100614 food service plan Annex1.doc Page 10 of 16 

To assist proprietors of small businesses in meeting the legal requirements which 
came into force in January 2013, the Food Standards Agency introduced a simplified 
food safety management system, “Safer Food Better Business”, that they suggest 
should be promoted to catering businesses that need help. In 2014/15 we will 
continue to promote the uptake of this food safety management model within the 
District. 
 
We promote food safety with messages on the Council’s website and with leaflets 
available from the Council offices. This includes Food Safety Week. Since 2011/12 
40 Leaflets have been developed and publicised concerning food hygiene and safety 
and we will continue to develop this source of advice to the food trade and 
consumers. 
 
4.10 Food Hygiene Rating Scheme  
 
The Council implemented the national scheme during 2011. In the first 2.5 years of 
operation the profile of award holders was as shown below:- 
 

Score 5th September 2011 8th March 2012 20th March 2014 
 HDC RDC HDC RDC HDC RDC 

0 2 0 3 2 0 0 
1 34 13 21 15 15 7 
2 16 8 16 10 11 9 
3 117 39 95 28 54 18 
4 94 53 131 65 105 57 
5 217 233 302 275 445 322 
Exempt 
premises 

    4 12 

Total on 
FSA 
website 

480 346 568 395 634 425 

 
Requests for revisits to check changes in score 
 
Hambleton Richmondshire 
12/13 13/14 12/13 13/14 

19 32 18 27 
 
4.11 Food and Nutrition 
 
The development of the new Public Health arrangements will result in opportunities 
for Local Authorities to develop food nutrition initiatives. These are especially 
valuable in this District because of the high levels of obesity and comparatively low 
levels of consumption of fruit and vegetables. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 74



 

Y:\Committee Services\Cabinet\Reports\2014\100614 food service plan Annex1.doc Page 11 of 16 

5.0 Resources 
 
5.1 Financial Allocation 
 
The Food Safety Service financial costs are contained within the ‘Food Safety” cost 
centre.  Further work will be undertaken during 2014/15 to ascertain the true cost of 
the service. The budget for the total food hygiene service is as follows.   
 

Food Safety Service 2014/2015 budget 
Staff costs 117,000 
Transport costs 3,231 
Supplies & services 1,026 
Recharges 355 
Total costs 121.612 
Income 12,000 
Net costs 109.612 

 
5.2 Staffing Allocation 
 
The Environmental Health Service is responsible for the delivery of a range of 
services in addition to food safety i.e. health and safety, health promotion, licensing, 
pollution control, air quality, contaminated land, pest control & abatement of 
nuisance. 
 
 f.t.e 
The total resource currently available 27 
EH Tech Support  0.9 
Of the above, the estimated in-house resource 
to deliver the food safety service 

4.6 

 
5.3 Staff Development Plan 
 
A staff competency scheme has been prepared to incorporate the existing national 
food competency schemes and to conform with the Council’s Competency Scheme. 
This will be reviewed during 2014/15 to incorporate the RDNA initiative on the BRDO 
website. 
 
The Council’s policy is to comply fully with the requirements of the Food Law Code of 
Practice in relation to staff training and the qualifications of Authorised Officers.  This 
requires that food safety work is only undertaken by appropriately trained and 
experienced officers.  This necessitates access to external training on specialist 
topics, supplemented by regular in-house and liaison group arranged update training 
for authorised food safety officers. 
 
The Authority has a Staff Development Scheme and general staff development is 
subject to annual appraisal and ongoing monitoring. In addition the Environmental 
Health Service subscribes to the North Yorkshire Chief Environmental Health 
Officers’ Training Group and are able to influence training delivery based upon 
known training needs. 
 
 

Page 75



 

Y:\Committee Services\Cabinet\Reports\2014\100614 food service plan Annex1.doc Page 12 of 16 

6.0 Quality Assessment 
 
6.1 Quality Management and Internal Monitoring 
 
The Council is a signatory to the North Yorkshire Chief Environmental Health 
Officers’ Food Safety Quality Management System.  The Council’s policy is to carry 
out all areas of food service delivery in accordance with this system and in particular 
to fulfil the inter- and intra-authority audit requirements as set out in the quality 
system.  The system received initial accreditation by ISOQAR in accordance with ISO 
9002:1994 on 13 November 2002 and was updated to the 9001:2000 standard in 
March 2004. This quality management system was revised to bring it into line with 
ISO 9001:2008 in November 2010 and version 4 of the Quality Manual was 
published on 20th September 2010. Re-evaluation of the QMS was undertaken in 
January 2012 and the system re-accredited. 
 
7.0 Review 
 
7.1 Reviews against the Service Plan 
 
The Service Plan will be reviewed by the Environmental Health Manager against the 
9 key service monitoring indicators identified in Section 4 of this Service Plan at least 
annually and results reported to the Portfolio Holder.  The review will be linked with 
the annual budgetary process and the review of service performance. 
 
Performance is monitored monthly within the service with a quarterly management 
review of progress reported to the appropriate Performance Board. 
 
This plan will be reviewed annually in the light of previous performance, feedback 
from food businesses, consumers, other stakeholders and partners. A revised plan 
will be published for consultation during each autumn prior to subsequent 
consideration by the Licensing Committees of the District. 
 
7.2 Identification of Any Variance from Service Plan 2013/14 
 
Last year has again been another exceptionally busy year with the staff involved in 
working on developing the District’s services and developing processes. 
 
Our involvement in work associated with the approval of new manufacturing 
premises under the product specific legislation, has continued.  This work requires a 
high level of technical skill and is very demanding on resources. 
 
7.3 Key Service Achievements 2013/14  
 
Key service achievements over the period of the plan included:- 

 Produced information leaflets to help food businesses during Tour de France 
in July 2014. 

 Changes all documents, letters and notices following changes in food hygiene 
legislation; 

 Whistleblowing Policy created and approved; 
 Joint investigation carried out with other North Yorkshire Authorities, Police, 

Trading Standards into alleged illegal food animal slaughter. 0.75 tonnes of 

Page 76



 

Y:\Committee Services\Cabinet\Reports\2014\100614 food service plan Annex1.doc Page 13 of 16 

meat was seized and condemned by magistrates. This operation involved the 
whole food service team; 

 Increasing number of changes to food businesses followed up within 28 days 
by visit and offer of advice on compliance; 

 Promotions undertaken in relation to food hygiene in Village Halls and the dual 
use of vacuum packing machines; 

 Participation in North Yorkshire exercise in relation to theft and illegal 
slaughter of sheep; 

 Work started with Fire and Rescue Service promoting joint issues in bed and 
breakfast premises; 

 Food Safety Week supported with promotion on domestic kitchen hygiene; 
 Many situations found in various food premises where Hygiene Improvement 

Notices served due to filthy conditions – resolved without further legal 
proceedings. 

 At 24th March no premises were rated 0 in the Food Hygiene Rating Scheme 
and the proportion of premises scoring 5 increased to 70% from 53% in March 
2012. 

 
7.4 Customer Satisfaction Survey (to be checked) 
 
Business perception of the service was surveyed during Q4 of 2013/14. The 
responses were as follows:- 
 

Q1 How satisfied were you with the following: 

  
Very 

satisfied 
Fairly 

satisfied 
Fairly 

dissatisfied
Very 

dissatisfied
Don't know N/A No reply 

 The service 
provided 8 (88.9%) 1 (11.1%) 0 (0.0%) 0 (0.0%) 0 (0.0%) 0 (0.0%) 0 (0.0%) 

 How regularly 
you received 
updates 

5 (55.6%) 2 (22.2%) 1 (11.1%) 0 (0.0%) 0 (0.0%) 0 (0.0%) 1 (11.1%)

 How fairly you 
were treated 8 (88.9%) 1 (11.1%) 0 (0.0%) 0 (0.0%) 0 (0.0%) 0 (0.0%) 0 (0.0%) 

 How you were 
informed of the 
outcome 

8 (88.9%) 0 (0.0%) 1 (11.1%) 0 (0.0%) 0 (0.0%) 0 (0.0%) 0 (0.0%) 

 
7.5 Areas for Improvement 2014/16 
 
The following areas of service development have been identified for 2014/16:- 
 Deliver a planned program of food safety interventions in accordance with the 

requirements of the Food Standards Agency Code of Practice. 
 Deliver a co-ordinated food sampling program in support of the above taking full 

advantage of the Public Health England laboratory’s credit allocation. 
 Implement customer satisfaction surveys for relevant food service activities. 
 Improve the accuracy of the food premises database 
 Review and further develop the content of the website 
 Improve the collection and recording of information by enforcement staff 

Page 77



 

Y:\Committee Services\Cabinet\Reports\2014\100614 food service plan Annex1.doc Page 14 of 16 

 Develop and implement a programme of food hygiene promotions 
 Develop and promote food nutrition initiatives and other initiatives as part of the 

newly emerging public health arrangements 
 Revise and update the quality management system. 
 Develop improved communications with food businesses 
 Improve communications and collaborative working with Trading Standards and 

other enforcement agencies. 
 Improve access to food hygiene training for businesses. 
 
8.0 Glossary of Terms 
 
Duty Holder 
The individual or corporate body with the primary responsibility for meeting the legal 
requirements in the area under consideration. 
 
Food Hygiene Interventions 
Food hygiene interventions are activities which are designed to monitor, support and 
increase Food Law compliance within a food establishment. These include ‘official 
controls’ such as monitoring, surveillance, verification, audit, inspection and 
sampling.  In addition, there are other interventions which are not classed as ‘official 
controls’ which should assist in supporting food businesses achieve compliance with 
Food Law.  These include the provision of targeted educational and advisory visits 
that take place at food establishments and also information and intelligence 
gathering. 
 
North Yorkshire Chief Environmental Health Officers (NYCEHO) Food Safety 
Quality Management System 
A quality system developed through the Chief Environmental Health Officers Group 
within North Yorkshire in order to raise standards and consistency of food safety 
enforcement within the region. 
 
Primary Authority 
The operation of the Primary Authority scheme is a statutory responsibility of the 
Better Regulation Delivery Office. The Primary Authority scheme ensures that 
businesses trading across council boundaries are regulated in a consistent way. 
Companies have the legal right for the first time to form a partnership with a ‘primary 
authority’, providing robust and reliable advice on compliance that other councils 
must take into account, and setting inspection plans to guide and coordinate activity. 
 
Portfolio Holder 
Elected Councillor with specific responsibility for food safety matters. 
 
Regulators’ Code 
A code of practice developed by the Better Regulation Delivery Office (BRDO) 
intended to promote efficient and effective approaches to regulatory inspection and 
enforcement which improve regulatory outcomes without imposing unnecessary 
burdens on businesses, charities, public sector bodies and other regulated entities. 
 
 
 
 

Page 78



 

Y:\Committee Services\Cabinet\Reports\2014\100614 food service plan Annex1.doc Page 15 of 16 

“Safer Food Better Business” (SFBB) 
A food safety model which has been adopted by the FSA in England, to assist small 
businesses with the implementation of suitable management arrangements to control 
food safety within their business. 
 
Simple Caution 
An alternative to prosecution which aims to:- 

 deal quickly and simply with less serious offenders,  
 divert offenders where appropriate from appearing in the criminal courts, and  
 reduce the chances of people re-offending. 

 
Stakeholder 
A person or body, both within the community or the organisation in question, who 
either uses, or is affected by, or has some interest in, the service in question. 
 
9.0 Service Review 
 
This Service Plan is prepared by the Lead Officer for the Commercial team together 
with the Environmental Health Manager. The draft plan is then agreed with the 
appropriate Director and submitted for approval by Hambleton District Council’s 
Cabinet  
 
The Plan is reviewed every two years or whenever legislation or Guidance is 
published that affects the content of the plan. 

Page 79



F
O

O
D

 S
E

R
V

IC
E

 P
LA

N
 2

01
0/

11
 

 

F
o

o
d

 S
er

vi
ce

 P
la

n
 -

 M
o

n
it

o
ri

n
g

 C
ri

te
ri

a 
  

S
er

vi
ce

 
P

la
n

 
S

ec
ti

o
n

 

In
d

ic
at

o
r 

S
ta

n
d

ar
d

 
T

ar
g

et
 

M
o

n
it

o
ri

n
g

 li
n

k 
to

 
N

o
rt

h
 Y

o
rk

sh
ir

e 
Q

u
al

it
y 

S
ys

te
m

 
1 

4.
1 

T
o 

de
liv

er
 th

e 
re

qu
ire

d 
nu

m
be

r 
of

 
pr

em
is

es
 in

sp
ec

tio
ns

 w
hi

le
 m

ai
nt

ai
ni

ng
 

qu
al

ity
. 

S
ec

 7
 –

 
F

S
A

* 
10

0%
 A

 , 
90

%
 B

,  
85

%
 C

, 
70

%
 D

 
A

ll 
w

ith
in

 th
e 

re
po

rt
in

g 
ye

ar
 (

A
pr

il 
to

 M
ar

ch
) 

S
ec

 1
3 

– 
N

Y
Q

M
S

 
 S

ec
 2

5 
– 

N
Y

Q
M

S
 

2 
4.

2 
T

o 
re

so
lv

e 
al

l f
oo

d 
co

m
pl

ai
nt

s 
an

d 
fo

od
 

pr
em

is
es

 c
om

pl
ai

nt
s.

 
S

ec
 8

 –
 

F
S

A
 

95
%

 f
irs

t 
re

sp
on

se
 w

ith
in

 1
 w

or
ki

ng
 d

ay
 

95
%

 r
es

ol
ve

d 
w

ith
in

 3
 m

on
th

s 
S

ec
 1

4 
– 

N
Y

Q
M

S
 

 S
ec

 1
9 

- 
N

Y
Q

M
S

 
3 

4.
3 

T
o 

pu
rs

ue
 th

e 
H

om
e 

an
d 

P
rim

ar
y 

A
ut

ho
rit

y 
P

rin
ci

pl
e.

 
S

ec
 9

 –
 

F
S

A
 

T
o 

pr
ov

id
e 

ad
vi

ce
 to

 a
ll 

fo
od

 b
us

in
es

se
s 

w
he

re
 H

om
e 

an
d 

P
rim

ar
y 

A
ut

ho
rit

y 
ar

ra
ng

em
en

ts
 a

re
 in

 p
la

ce
. 

D
oc

um
en

ta
ry

 
ev

id
en

ce
 

4 
4.

4,
 4

.9
 

T
o 

pr
om

ot
e 

sa
fe

 fo
od

 th
ro

ug
h 

ad
vi

ce
 to

 
bu

si
ne

ss
 a

nd
 p

ro
m

ot
io

na
l a

ct
iv

ity
. 

S
ec

 1
0 

- 
 

F
S

A
 

S
ec

 2
1 

– 
F

S
A

 

T
o 

in
cl

ud
e 

ea
ch

 y
ea

r 
at

 le
as

t 1
 o

f t
he

 F
S

A
s 

ex
am

pl
es

 
w

ith
in

 th
ei

r 
en

fo
rc

em
en

t m
ix

. 
D

oc
um

en
ta

ry
 

ev
id

en
ce

 

5 
4.

5 
T

o 
ac

hi
ev

e 
th

e 
ta

rg
et

 d
em

an
de

d 
by

 t
he

 
fo

od
 s

am
pl

in
g 

pr
og

ra
m

m
e.

 
S

ec
 1

2 
– 

F
S

A
 

90
%

 o
f t

ar
ge

t w
ith

in
 th

e 
lo

ca
l f

oo
d 

sa
m

pl
in

g 
pl

an
 o

f 
w

hi
ch

 1
0%

 is
 o

f i
m

po
rt

ed
 fo

od
. 

S
ec

 2
1 

– 
N

Y
Q

M
S

 

6 
4.

6 
T

o 
in

ve
st

ig
at

e 
al

l i
nc

id
en

ts
 o

f 
fo

od
 

bo
rn

e 
ill

ne
ss

 n
ot

ifi
ed

 to
 th

e 
au

th
or

ity
. 

S
ec

 1
3 

– 
F

S
A

 
T

o 
be

 d
et

er
m

in
ed

 b
y 

N
or

th
 Y

or
ks

hi
re

 In
fe

ct
io

us
 D

is
ea

se
 

su
b 

gr
ou

p 
(r

ep
or

tin
g 

to
 th

e 
N

or
th

 Y
or

ks
hi

re
 F

oo
d 

Li
ai

so
n 

G
ro

up
).

 

S
ec

 2
1 

– 
N

Y
Q

M
S

 

7 
4.

7 
T

o 
in

ve
st

ig
at

e 
an

d 
ta

ke
 a

ct
io

n 
on

 a
ll 

fo
od

 h
az

ar
d 

w
ar

ni
ng

s.
 

S
ec

 1
4 

– 
F

S
A

 
10

0%
 a

ct
io

ne
d 

in
 a

cc
or

da
nc

e 
w

ith
 lo

ca
l d

ec
is

io
ns

. 
S

ec
 3

 –
 N

Y
Q

M
S

 

8 
4.

8 
T

o 
pr

om
ot

e 
lia

is
on

 w
ith

 o
th

er
 k

ey
 

or
ga

ni
sa

tio
ns

. 
S

ec
 1

8 
– 

F
S

A
 

E
ac

h 
au

th
or

ity
 w

ill
 b

e 
re

pr
es

en
te

d 
at

 th
e 

N
or

th
 

Y
or

ks
hi

re
 F

oo
d 

Li
ai

so
n 

G
ro

up
, 

ha
ve

 li
ai

so
n 

ar
ra

ng
em

en
ts

 w
ith

 th
ei

r 
P

ub
lic

 H
ea

lth
 E

ng
la

nd
 

La
bo

ra
to

ry
 S

er
vi

ce
 a

nd
 th

e 
N

or
th

 Y
or

ks
hi

re
 C

on
tr

ol
 o

f 
In

fe
ct

io
n 

C
om

m
itt

ee
. 

D
oc

um
en

ta
ry

 
E

vi
de

nc
e 

9 
3.

7 
T

o 
m

on
ito

r 
co

m
pl

ia
nc

e 
of

 e
nf

or
ce

m
en

t 
de

ci
si

on
s 

w
ith

 E
nf

or
ce

m
en

t P
ol

ic
y 

 
T

o 
be

 fu
lly

 d
ev

el
op

ed
 fo

llo
w

in
g 

re
vi

si
on

 o
f t

he
 F

oo
d 

S
af

et
y 

E
nf

or
ce

m
en

t P
ol

ic
y 

 

 Page 80



Annex 2 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 

HAMBLETON DISTRICT COUNCIL 
 

ENVIRONMENTAL HEALTH SERVICE 
 
 
 
 
 
 

FOOD AND ENVIRONMENT 
SAMPLING POLICY 

 
2014/2016 

 
 
 
 

Date of Issue  

 
Version Control 
Version No. Amended by Date 
1.0 Philip Mepham  
2.0 Maria Bentley 19.04.12 
2.1 Philip Mepham 7th April 2014 
   

Page 81



1.0 Introduction 
 
1.1 The purpose of this document is to state the policy of Hambleton District 

Council in respect of food and environment sampling. 
 
1.2 This Policy has been prepared in accordance with the requirements of the 

Food Standards Agency as part of the Framework Agreement on Local 
Authority Food Law Enforcement and the Food Law Code of Practice (April 
12) and Practice Guidance (April 2012). 

 
1.3 This Policy has been drawn up in consultation with Public Health England 

(PHE)(Yorkshire and the Humber Team) North Yorkshire Health Protection 
Team, Public Health England Food, Water and Environment Microbiology 
Laboratory at York, PHE Cross Regional Group, North Yorkshire Sampling 
Group and the North Yorkshire Food Liaison Group. 

 
1.4 When drawing up this Policy, account has been taken of the requirements of 

the Food Safety Act 1990 as amended and Regulations made thereunder, 
European Communities Act 1972, and EC Regulations made thereunder and 
approved Food Law Code of Practice. 

 
1.5 This Policy relates to all food, water and environment samples taken by the 

Authority including those not covered by the Food Law Code of Practice. 
 
1.6 The Authority recognises that: 
 

i The microbiological sampling and examination of food and water is an 
essential part of food safety enforcement which enables authorised 
officers to gain an insight into the microbiological safety of food and 
which may reveal shortcomings in its safe handling, preparation and 
storage. 

 ii The analysis and microbiological examination of complaint samples 
  can assist the investigation of consumer complaints. 
 
2.0 Policy 
 
2.1 The Authority will maintain a Service Level Agreement with an Official Food 

Control Laboratory for the microbiological examination of food samples.  The 
PHE Food, Water and Environment Microbiology Laboratory at York is the 
Authority’s Official Food Control Laboratory. 

 
2.2 In consultation with the Food Examiner the Authority will draw up an annual 

food and environment sampling programme which will detail the Authority’s 
intended food sampling priorities.  The programme will take into account the 
number, type and risk ratings of the food businesses in the area, the 
Authority’s Home and Primary Authority responsibilities, when relevant, and 
the need to ensure that the provisions of the food law are adequately 
enforced. 

 

Page 82



2.3 The food and environment sampling programme will be kept under review to 
take into account any variation in circumstances. 

 
2.4 Food and environment samples may be taken: 
 

i. As part of a food poisoning or food contamination investigation. 
 
ii. When an authorised officer has concerns about the safety of food 

because of the food handling/cooking/preparation practices and 
procedures observed during the inspection of food businesses. 

 
iii. As part of a complaint investigation. 
 
iv. As part of the controls exercised under the Home or Primary Authority 

Principle. 
 
v.   In order to verify process monitoring undertaken by a food 

manufacturer/processor and in particular in relation to approved 
premises. 

 
vi. As part of a national, regional or locally conducted survey organised by 

PHE, PHE UK Study Programme and PHE Cross-Regional Survey 
Steering Group or Local Authority Food Liaison Group. 

 
vii. In order to assess the microbiological quality of food that has been 

imported. 
 

viii. In order to gather information to help prepare advice and guidance on 
food hygiene. 

 
ix. As part of a routine programmed food hygiene inspection or in any 

other circumstances deemed appropriate by the specialist officer for 
Food Safety. 

 
x. As part of the controls on Food imported from third countries. 

 
2.5 All food and water samples will be taken in accordance with the Food Law 

Code of Practice and the Code of Practice Guidance having regard to further 
advice from the PHE laboratory or other official guidance and the Authority’s 
documented food sampling procedures. 

 
2.6 All food and water samples and the results of examination/analysis will be 

recorded and, where sample results are considered to be unsatisfactory, the 
Authority will take investigative and appropriate enforcement action in 
accordance with the Authority’s enforcement policy and North Yorkshire 
Quality Management System. 

 
2.7 This Policy will be published and made available to all interested parties on 

request. 
 

Page 83



2.8    Samples will normally be taken on an informal basis unless enforcement action 
is to be considered in line with the Council’s Enforcement Policy. 

 
2.9 This Policy will be reviewed regularly to take into account any changes made 

by legislation, revised Code of Practice or Guidance from the Food Standards 
Agency or other changed circumstances. 

 
2.10 This Policy is a controlled document and may not be altered without the 
 approval of Hambleton District Council. 
 
Any query regarding this Policy should be addressed to the, Environment Health 
Manager, Environmental Health Service or the Lead Officer appointed for Food 
Safety. 
 

Page 84



Annex 3 

 
 
 
 

HAMBLETON DISTRICT COUNCIL 
 

ENVIRONMENTAL HEALTH SERVICE 
 
 
 
 

FOOD SAFETY ENFORCEMENT 
POLICY 

 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Date of issue: 26th November 2012 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Version Control 
Version No. Amended by Date 
1.0 Philip Mepham 27/6/2011 
2.0 Philip Mepham 15/7/2011 
3.0 Philip Mepham 14/2/2012 
3.1 Philip Mepham 3/4/2012 
3.2 Maria Bentley 18/04/12 
3.3 Philip Mepham 05/10/2012 
3.4 Philip Mepham 07/04/2014 
 

 
 
 
 
 

Page 85



 
 
1.0 Introduction 
 
1.1 Hambleton District Council is an enforcement authority in relation to food hygiene 

and safety and has powers and duties in the Food Safety Act 1990, relevant EU 
Regulations and associated legislation. 

 
1.2 This enforcement policy builds on the overall Environmental Health Enforcement 

Strategy and Policy and explains its interpretation in relation to food hygiene and 
safety. 

 
1.3 This policy applies to all aspects of the food hygiene and safety service within the 

boundaries of Hambleton District Council. 
 
2.0 Relevant Documents 
 

 Food Safety Act 1990 (as amended) and any relevant regulations or codes of 
practice made thereunder. 

 The Framework Agreement (5th amendment published April 2010). 
 Relevant EU regulations made under The European Communities Act 1972. 
 Current relevant guidance or codes of practice from the Food Standards Agency 

and other Government departments or agencies. 
 Police and Criminal Evidence Act 1984. 
 Criminal Procedure and Investigation Act 1996. 
 Government’s Regulators’ Code. 
 The Environmental Health Service Enforcement Strategy and Policy. 

  
3.0 Responsibility 
 
3.1 All authorised officers are responsible for compliance with this policy in relation to 

the use of their enforcement powers. 
 
4.0 The Food Safety Enforcement Policy Statement 
 
4.1 Hambleton District Council’s Policy is to take all necessary steps to ensure that 

food and drink intended for sale within or without the District is produced, stored, 
distributed or handled in such a manner that it does not represent a risk to the 
health or safety of the consumer. 

 

4.2 The policy is made in the context of current legislation and it supports associated 
Codes of Practice, Better Regulation Delivery Office (BRDO) guidance, The 
Government’s Enforcement Concordat and Regulators’ Code, other Government 
circulars, and current Technical knowledge. 

 
4.3 The policy is subject to annual review and at any other relevant time when 

circumstances require its amendment. 
 
4.4 The policy and its associated procedural documents must be adhered to by all 

enforcement staff. 
 

Page 86



4.5 The policy is based upon a commitment by the authorities to train enforcement staff 
in the practices necessary for the efficient and effective implementation of the 
policy. 

 
5.0 Authorisations and Delegations 
 
5.1 Decisions about food safety enforcement are delegated to officers of the Council 

as follows:- 
 

5.1.1 Environmental Health Manager 
 

- appointment and/or authorisation of officers to exercise statutory 
functions 

- exercise of powers of entry 
- service of notices, exercise of powers in default and recovery of 

expenses 
- in consultation with the Head of Legal Services, the institution of legal 

proceedings, and approval and amendment of any grant, licence, 
permit, authorisation or approval. 

 
N.B. In the absence of the Environmental Health Manager (EHM), the duty 
will be undertaken by the Environmental Health Team Leader. 

 
5.1.2 Legal Officer 
 

To institute and prosecute on behalf of the Council proceedings in respect 
of any offence against any legislation, including byelaws, which the 
Council is authorised to enforce. 

 
5.1.3 Authorised Officers 
 
5.2 All Environmental Health Officers who are suitably qualified and experienced are 

empowered to inspect food premises and serve Hygiene Improvement Notices 
under the Food Safety and Hygiene (England) Regulations 2013. 

 
5.3 Technical Officers – authorisation to inspect food premises and serve Hygiene 

Improvement Notices is linked to the qualifications held and post qualification 
experience. Three levels are available:- 

 a) Ordinary Certificate in Food Premises Inspection – inspect premises C to E. 
 b) Higher Certificate in Food Premises Inspection – 0-2 years experience inspect 

premises C to E, 2 years and over experience inspect premises A to E. 
 c) Professional Diploma in Food Premises Inspection – 0-2 years experience 

inspect premises C to E, 2 years and over inspect premises A to E. 
 
5.4 Hygiene Emergency Prohibition Notices may be served by Environmental Health 

Officers who are suitably qualified and experienced. In any event an officer 
authorised to serve a Hygiene Emergency Prohibition Notice should endeavour to 
discuss the circumstances with another authorised officer prior to service of the 
notice. 

 
5.5 Remedial Action Notices may only be served by Environmental Health Officers who 

are suitably qualified and experienced 
 

Page 87



5.6 Food complaints which may lead to formal action must be investigated by qualified 
and experienced Environmental Health Officers or suitably experienced Technical 
Officers. 

 
5.7 Seizure and Detention of Food may be carried out by all Environmental Health 

Officers who are suitably qualified and experienced and are authorised to 
exercise the powers contained in  

 Regulation 29 of the Food Safety and Hygiene (England) Regulations 
2013 

 Section 9 of the Food Safety Act 1990 (as amended) 
 Regulation 34 of the Trade in Animals and Related Products Regulations 

2011, and 
 Regulation 23 of the Animal By-Products (Enforcement) (England) 

Regulations 2013  

5.8 Samples may be procured by all Environmental Health and Technical Officers 
who are suitably qualified and experienced and are authorised to exercise the 
powers contained in  

 Regulation 14 of the Food Safety and Hygiene (England) Regulations 
2013, 

 Section 29 of the Food Safety Act 1990 (as amended), and 
 Regulation 23 of the Animal By-Products (Enforcement) (England) 

Regulations 2013. 

5.9 Powers of Entry - all Environmental Health Officers who are suitably qualified 
and experienced are authorised to exercise the powers contained in:- 

 Regulation 16 of the Food Safety and Hygiene (England) Regulations 
2013, 

 Section 32 of the Food Safety Act 1990 (as amended), 
 Regulation 34 of the Trade in Animals and Related Products Regulations 

2011,  
 Regulation 23 of the Animal By-Products (Enforcement) (England) 

Regulations 2013, and 
 Regulation 39 of the Official Feed and Food Controls (England) 

Regulations 2009.  
 
6.0 Enforcement 
 
6.1 When determining food enforcement options, our Policy is to give paramount 

consideration to the protection of public health and safety and in determining this it 
will be necessary to: 

 
 i. Identify Hazards and Assess Risks 
 
 ii. Assess business management effectiveness 
 
 iii. Identify contravention of relevant legislation and have regard to Codes of 

Practice, enforcement-related correspondence (ENF) from the Food 
Standards Agency, Communities of Practice, other government guidelines  
and the Primary and Home Authority Principles. 

 

Page 88



6.2 All available steps shall be taken to ensure consistent, balanced and fair 
enforcement. 

 
6.3 In the event of alleged inconsistencies it will be the duty of the Lead Officer 

(Commercial) to resolve the matter. 
 
6.4 In the event of the Lead Officer (Commercial) failing to resolve inconsistencies they 

should be referred to the Environmental Health Team Leader (EHTL) or EHM. 
 
6.5 When inconsistencies cannot be resolved by the EHTL or EHM they should be 

referred to the North Yorkshire Food Liaison Group for their consideration. 
 
7.0 The Enforcement Options 
 
7.1 After having due regard to all relevant information and evidence, the following 

enforcement options will be considered: 
 
 a) To take no action 
 b) To take informal action 
 c) To take statutory action 
 d) To use simple cautions 
 e) To prosecute 
 f) Voluntary closure 
 g) Seizure and detention 
 
8.0 No Action 
 
8.1 This course of action is only considered appropriate where, in the officers’ opinion, 

all relevant statutes and guidelines are satisfactorily complied with. 
 
9.0 Informal Action 
 
9.1 Informal action is the first enforcement action to be considered by an officer where 

food hazards or contraventions are discovered. 
 
9.2 Informal action is action which will, in the officers’ opinion, secure compliance with 

legislation by offering advice, issuing verbal warnings, and the issue of letters, and 
food hygiene reports. 

 
9.3 Officers may recommend informal action where: 
 a) The act or omission is not serious enough to warrant formal action. 
 b) The previous record of the business/individual is such that it would be 

reasonable to expect compliance when informal action is taken. 
 c) Confidence in the business’s management is high. 
 d) The risk to public health as a result of non compliance is not significant. 
 e) There are special circumstances involving volunteer workers where formal 
  action  would be counter-productive. 
 f)  The action is part of an ongoing project to improve standards. 
 
9.4 At the conclusion of every inspection visit or investigation the officer will discuss the 

result of the inspection of the premises or investigation with the proprietor or 
manager and issue a report of the inspection or investigation. 

 

Page 89



9.5 When taking informal action the officer will: 
 
 a) Give all the necessary information to enable the proprietor/manager to 

understand what is required to remedy contravention and why the action is 
necessary. 

 
 b) Indicate the legislation contravened and indicate that any other means that 

achieve the objectives of compliance will be equally acceptable. 
 

c) Clearly differentiate between legal requirements and                  
recommendations of good hygienic practice. 

 
d) Arrange to carry out follow-up visits to food businesses to monitor 

compliance where revisits are necessary to confirm compliance.  The timing 
of these visits will be determined by the significance of the breaches and 
should, wherever possible, be carried out by the original inspecting officer. 

 
10.0 Statutory Action - Hygiene Improvement Notices 
 
10.1 The service of statutory Hygiene Improvement Notices will not be considered until 

an officer is satisfied that the same effect could not be achieved by informal means. 
In any event due consideration will be given to the officer’s level of authorisation. 

 
10.2 In using Hygiene Improvement Notices due regard will be taken of Food Safety 

Legislation, Codes of Practice, Communities of Practice for the public sector and 
PACE procedures. 

 
10.3 Hygiene Improvement Notices would be considered by officers when: 
 a) There are significant contraventions of legislation. 
 b) There are significant risks to health. 
 c) There is a lack of confidence in the ability or will of the business to respond 

to informal action. 
 d) There is previous history of non compliance with informal action. 
 e) Standards are generally poor and there is low management awareness. 
 
10.4 Hygiene Improvement Notices will be signed by the authorised inspecting officer in 

person and must not be signed on behalf of an unauthorised officer unless the 
signatory has witnessed the contraventions and is satisfied that they fulfil the 
relevant Hygiene Improvement Notice criteria. 

 
10.5 When serving Hygiene Improvement Notices officers will set realistic time limits 
 and it will discuss these limits with proprietors. 
 
10.6 Failure to comply with a Hygiene Improvement Notice will generally result in Court 

Proceedings being implemented. 
 
10.7 Officers must have obtained sufficient evidence to satisfy the court and also be 

satisfied that such proceedings would not be jeopardised by any omission or failure 
in procedure or evidence gathering.  PACE procedures must be adhered to. 

 
10.8 Where relevant, officers will liaise with the appropriate Primary, Home or 

Originating Authorities and the guidance from the BRDO on Primary and Home 
Authority Principle will be adhered to.   

Page 90



 
11.0 Statutory Action - Food Complaint Investigations 
 
11.1 All food complaints will be investigated.  Prosecution will not be considered as the 

first course of action unless the officer is satisfied that the same effect could not be 
achieved by informal means. 

 
11.2 When investigating food complaints due regard will be taken of the relevant 

documents at 2.0. 
 
11.3 When investigating food complaints due regard should be given to the Food 

Service’s food complaint procedure (F.D.8). 
 
12.0 Statutory Action – Remedial Action Notices (RANs) 
 
12.1 Remedial Action Notices will only be considered at premises subject to approval 

under EC Regulation 853/2004. The Food Standards Agency has agreed to extend 
the use of RANs to all UK establishments from 1st April 2012. The use of RANs for 
all premises will be implemented in the two Districts when the necessary legislative 
changes have been completed. 

 
12.2 Remedial Action Notices will not be considered until an officer is satisfied that the 

same effect could not be achieved by informal means and, in any event, due 
consideration must be given to the officer’s level of authorisation. 

 
12.3 Authorised officers will give due consideration to the other formal enforcement 

options including Hygiene Improvement Notices and Hygiene Emergency 
Prohibition Notices before issuing a Remedial Action Notice. 

 
12.4 The issue of a Remedial Action Notice will be proportionate and linked to a risk to 

public health and such a notice may be used for a continuing offence which 
requires urgent action. 

 
12.5 As soon as an officer is satisfied that action has been taken by a business owner 

or operator to comply with a Remedial Action Notice, the notice will be withdrawn. 
 
12.6 Authorised officers will give due regard to the relevant documents referred to at 2.0 

of this policy. 
 
13.0 Statutory Action – Hygiene Emergency Prohibition Notices 
 
13.1 The use of Hygiene Emergency Prohibition Notices will only be considered where 

the following criteria are fulfilled: 
 
 a) The consequences of not issuing a Hygiene Emergency Prohibition Notice 

immediately would represent an unacceptable and imminent risk to Public 
Health. 

 
 b) The imminent risk can be demonstrated.  This might involve evidence from 

relevant experts such as food examiners or food analysts. 
 
 c) The criteria specified in the Food Law (England) Code of Practice are 

fulfilled and all other guidelines are followed. 

Page 91



 
 d) There is no confidence in the proprietors’ integrity even when an unsolicited 

 offer to cease using premises or equipment has been voluntarily offered. 
 
 e) A proprietor is unwilling to confirm in writing his unprompted offer to 

 voluntarily cease to use premises or a practice.  
 
13.2 When an authorised officer becomes aware that any premises is in such a 

condition that a Hygiene Emergency Prohibition Notice may be the only appropriate 
course of action, (s)he will endeavour to discuss the issue with another authorised 
officer prior to service of the Notice.  Authorised officers will not compromise on 
food safety considerations but will be mindful of the financial penalties should the 
Notice be served inappropriately.  

 
13.3 If any unauthorised officer becomes aware of conditions which may warrant service 

of a Hygiene Emergency Prohibition Notice, (s)he should alert an Authorised 
Officer immediately. 

 
13.4 Where chemical contamination is suspected the officer will seek the guidance of a 

Food Examiner, Food Analyst or other expert prior to taking an enforcement 
decision. 

 
13.5 Once an Emergency Prohibition Notice has been served, an application for an 

Emergency Prohibition Order will be made by the authorised officer to a 
Magistrates Court as soon as is reasonably practicable and, in any event, within 
three days.  This is vital to protect the Authority from possible compensation claims. 
In addition, authorised officers must have obtained sufficient evidence to satisfy the 
court and be satisfied that such proceedings would not jeopardised by any 
omission or failure in procedure or evidence gathering. PACE procedures should 
be adhered to. 

 
13.6 Where relevant, officers will liaise with the appropriate Primary, Home or 

Originating Authorities and the guidance from BRDO on Primary and Home 
Authority Principles should be adhered to. 

 
14.0 Prosecution 
 
14.1 The decision to prosecute is a serious matter and will only be considered after 

consultation with the Environmental Health Team Leader or EHM. The case and 
the available evidence would be discussed with the Council’s Legal Officer prior 
to any decision regarding the institution of legal proceedings 

 
14.2 The relevant criteria to be considered by officers when prosecution is being 

contemplated are one or more of the following: 
 
 a) Where the alleged offence involves a flagrant breach of the law where 

 public health and safety and jeopardised. 
 
 b) Where the alleged offence involves a failure by the suspected offender to 

 correct an identified serious potential risk to food safety after having been 
 given reasonable opportunity to do so by the authority. 

 

Page 92



 c) Where the offence involves a failure either in full or in part with the 
requirements of a statutory notice. 

 
 d) Where there is a history of similar offences related to risk to public health. 
 
14.3 Before a prosecution proceeds the EHM or Environmental Health Team Leader 

must be satisfied (by the authorised officer) that there is relevant, admissible, 
substantiated and reliable evidence that the offence has been committed by an 
identifiable body. 

 
14.4 There must be a realistic prospect of conviction. 
 
14.5 Where there is insufficient evidence to prosecute other formal actions such as 

Simple Cautions will also be discounted. 
 
14.6 The current Code for Crown Prosecutors issued by the Crown Prosecution Service 

and the relevant Codes of Practice must be followed. 
 
14.7 In addition to being satisfied that there is sufficient evidence a positive decision 

must be made by the officer based on the factors detailed in section 8 of the 
Environmental Health Enforcement Strategy and Policy. 

 
14.8 The decision to prosecute will be based upon fact and fairness and not upon 

arbitrary rules not embodied in this policy and the Environmental Health 
Enforcement Strategy and Policy. 

 
14.9 Once the decision to prosecute has been taken the matter and all relevant 

documents will be referred to the Council's Legal Officer without delay. 
 
14.10 Consideration will be given by the officer to the criteria on prohibition of premises 

and persons when they are successfully convicted.  The relevant Code of Practice 
will be consulted prior to a court appearance in order to establish whether an 
application should be made to the court for a prohibition.  Such a decision will 
revolve around the court deciding the degree to which the risk of injury to health 
exists. 

 
14.11 Where relevant, officers will liaise with the appropriate Primary, Home or 

Originating Authorities and the guidance from BRDO on Primary and Home 
Authority Principles should be adhered to. 

 
15.0 Statutory Action - Simple Cautions 
 
15.1 A Simple Caution is an option which officers may consider using Home Office 

Circular 016/2008.  Simple Cautions are an alternative to a prosecution that may be 
considered where circumstances described in section 7.14 – 7.21 of the 
Environmental Health Enforcement Strategy and Policy exist. 

 

Page 93



This page is intentionally left blank



   
HAMBLETON DISTRICT COUNCIL 
 
Report To: Cabinet 
  10 June 2014  
 
Subject: ENVIRONMENTAL HEALTH ENFORCEMENT STRATEGY AND POLICY 
 

All Wards 
Portfolio Holder for Environmental and Planning Services: Councillor B Phillips 

 
 
1.0 PURPOSE OF THE REPORT 
 
1.1 The purpose of this report is to seek approval of the Environmental Health Enforcement 

Strategy and Policy v4.0. 
 
2.0 BACKGROUND 
 
2.1 The current Environmental Health Enforcement Strategy and Policy v2.2 received Council 

approval in July 2011. Version 4.0 has now been produced following some minor redrafting 
during 2012 and the requirement to comply with the Regulators Code, published in July 
2013. The following amendments have been made in the latest version:- 

 
 a) Paragraph 3.3 – updated to include further previously approved function-specific 

Enforcement Policies. 
 
 b) Section 4.0 has been rewritten following the replacement of the Regulators’ 

Compliance Code, which was voluntary, with the Regulators’ Code, which became 
mandatory on 6th April 2014. This new code sets out how the enforcement activity 
must be carried out but makes no practical difference to individual enforcement 
decisions e.g. whether to prosecute or not. These will always be based on the 
Evidential and Public Interest tests in the Code for Crown Prosecutors, which is 
unchanged. 

 
 c) Section 5.0 – the Priority Regulatory Outcomes are unchanged. 
 
 d) Section 6.0 onwards – the Enforcement Options are unchanged. 
 
 e) The Enforcement Reference Documents have been updated. 
 
3.0 LEGAL IMPLICATIONS: 
 
3.1 The Code has been laid before Parliament in accordance with section 23 of the Legislative 

and Regulatory Reform Act 2006 (“the Act”). Regulators whose functions are specified by 
order under section 24(2) of the Act must have regard to the Code when developing 
policies and operational procedures that guide their regulatory activities. 

 
4.0 FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS AND EFFICIENCIES: 
 
4.1 There are no financial implications in this report.  
 

Page 95

Agenda Item 10



5.0 RISK ASSESSMENT: 
 
5.1 There are no significant risks associated with this report. 
. 
6.0 DIVERSITY: 
 
6.1 There are no equality or diversity implications. 
 
7.0 RECOMMENDATIONS: 
 
7.1 That Cabinet approves and recommends to Council the Environmental Health Enforcement 

Strategy and Policy v4.0. 
 
MICK JEWITT 
 
 
Background papers: Regulators’ Code. BRDO. July 2013 
 
Author ref: PM   
Contact: Philip Mepham  
 Environmental Health Manager  
 Direct Line No: (01609) 767037 
 
 
   

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

  
100614 environmental health enforcement policy 

Page 96



Annex 
 
 

 

 
 
 
 
 

HAMBLETON DISTRICT COUNCIL 
 

ENVIRONMENTAL HEALTH SERVICE 
 
 
 
 

ENVIRONMENTAL HEALTH  
ENFORCEMENT STRATEGY AND POLICY 

 
 
 
 
 
 

Date of Issue: 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Version control 
 
Version Date Author 
1.0 22nd  June 2010 Philip Mepham, Environmental Health Manager 
2.0 2nd June 2011 Philip Mepham, Environmental Health Manager 
2.1 6th June 2011 Philip Mepham, Environmental Health Manager 
2.2 27th June 2011 Philip Mepham, Environmental Health Manager 
3.0 3rd April 2012 Philip Mepham, Environmental Health Manager 
3.1 19th July 2012 Philip Mepham, Environmental Health Manager 
4.0 25th November 2013 Philip Mepham, Environmental Health Manager 
 
 
 
 
 

 
Contents 

Page 97



HAMBLETON DISTRICT COUNCIL 
 

 ENVIRONMENTAL HEALTH 
ENFORCEMENT STRATEGY AND  

POLICY 
ENVIRONMENTAL HEALTH SERVICE G.D.1 

Issue No. 4 November 2013 
 
           Page 
1. Background          3 
 
2. Human Rights         3 
 
3. Policy Statement         4 
 
4. Regulators’ Code         5 
 
5. Priority Regulatory Outcomes       6 
 
6. Enforcement Options        7 
 
7. Levels of enforcement action       8 
 
8. Legal proceedings        14 
 
9. Legal Proceedings Process       17 
 
10. Staff authorisation and delegation      17 
  
11. Staff support         17 
 
12. Ensuring fair and equal enforcement      18 
 
13. Review and monitoring        18 
 
14. National Police Computer       19 
 
Enforcement Reference Documents      20  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 98



HAMBLETON DISTRICT COUNCIL 
 

 ENVIRONMENTAL HEALTH 
ENFORCEMENT STRATEGY AND  

POLICY 
ENVIRONMENTAL HEALTH SERVICE G.D.1 

Issue No. 4 November 2013 
 
1.0 BACKGROUND 
 
1.1 Hambleton District Council (the Council) carries out a wide range of legal 

duties under various Acts and regulations. This Strategy and Policy outlines 
the approach we take when considering and carrying out enforcement action 
and applies to a variety of functions, including: 

 
 Food Safety including infectious disease and water supplies 
 Health and Safety including skin piercing and animal welfare 
 Licensing, including alcohol licensing, gambling, taxi and private hire 

vehicle licensing, charitable collections and street trading 
 Pest Control  
 Environmental Protection including Noise, Land and Air Pollution 
 Residential Services including private sector housing, nuisance and 

caravan sites. 
 
1.2 The purpose of enforcement is to ensure that preventative or remedial action 

is taken to protect public health and the environment by securing compliance 
with regulatory systems. Whilst the Council seeks to ensure full voluntary 
compliance with relevant legislative requirements wherever possible, it will not 
hesitate to institute legal proceedings where necessary. 

 
1.3 “Enforcement” includes inspection, investigation, intelligence and education 

and promotion activities. 
 Inspection includes the proactive review of premises, practices or 

activities to determine levels of compliance with legislation. 
 Investigation includes reactive activities to determine whether 

unsatisfactory situations exist where formal action is required. 
 Intelligence covers services that monitor activities, levels of pollution, 

food and drinking water quality etc to determine whether action is 
required on the basis of that evidence.  

 Education and promotion involves the provision of information or 
advice on how people and organisations can comply with requirements 
and good practice. 

 
1.4 Enforcement is a means for achieving Corporate Priorities. Environmental 

Health Services also make a significant contribution to Local Strategic 
Partnership plans and other outcome-based indicators. 

 
2.0 HUMAN RIGHTS 
 
2.1 The Council is a public authority for the purposes of the Human Rights Act 

1998. We therefore apply the principles of the European Convention for the 
Protection of Human Rights and Fundamental Freedoms. 

 

Page 99



HAMBLETON DISTRICT COUNCIL 
 

 ENVIRONMENTAL HEALTH 
ENFORCEMENT STRATEGY AND  

POLICY 
ENVIRONMENTAL HEALTH SERVICE G.D.1 

Issue No. 4 November 2013 
 
2.2 Human rights are rights and freedoms that belong to all individuals regardless 

of their nationality and citizenship. The Act identifies 16 rights – some 
absolute, some limited and some qualified.   

 
2.3 There are situations where a balance can be made between individual rights 

and those of the community e.g. if a restriction of a qualified right has a 
legitimate aim, such as public safety, and the restriction itself does not go any 
further than necessary to protect this aim, then it is likely that it will be 
compatible with the Convention. This Policy and all associated enforcement 
decisions take account of the provisions of the Human Rights Act 1998. In 
particular, due regard is had to the right to a fair trial and the right to respect 
for private and family life, home and correspondence. 

 
3.0 POLICY STATEMENT 
 
3.1 The Council aims to secure a safe and healthy environment for everyone 

living, working or visiting the District. This will be achieved through a 
combination of education, provision of advice, investigation of issues raised by 
customers and regulation of the activities of others. Securing compliance with 
legal regulatory requirements using enforcement powers, including 
prosecution, is an important part of achieving this aim.   

 We will exercise our regulatory activities in a way which is:- 
i) Proportionate – our activities will reflect the level of risk to the public and 
enforcement action will relate to the seriousness of the offence; 
ii) Accountable – our activities will be open to public scrutiny, with clear and 
accessible policies, and fair and efficient complaints procedures; 
iii) Consistent – our advice to those we regulate will be robust and reliable and 
we will respect advice provided by others. Where circumstances are similar, 
we will endeavour to act in similar ways to other local authorities; 
iv) Transparent – we will ensure that those we regulate are able to understand 
what is expected of them and what they can anticipate in return; and 
v) Targeted – we will focus our resources on higher risk enterprises and 
activities, reflecting local need and national priorities. 

 
3.2 In particular, the Council will:- 

 adhere to the provisions of the Regulators’ Code in respect of all 
enforcement decisions 
 ensure the interests of regulated entities and consumers are taken into 
account in the design and delivery of enforcement services 
 adhere to function-specific policies, guidance and codes of practice related 
to enforcement 
 work with other enforcers to achieve greater effectiveness and economy 
 carry out enforcement activities in a fair, consistent and transparent way 
 comply with requirements on the way enforcement activity should be 
undertaken 

Page 100



HAMBLETON DISTRICT COUNCIL 
 

 ENVIRONMENTAL HEALTH 
ENFORCEMENT STRATEGY AND  

POLICY 
ENVIRONMENTAL HEALTH SERVICE G.D.1 

Issue No. 4 November 2013 
 

 ensure enforcement staff are properly equipped, trained and supported to 
perform their functions. 

 
3.3 This strategy and policy covers general enforcement issues relating to all 

Environmental Health Services. This explained further in a series of function 
specific Enforcement Policies. These are subject to consultation with 
appropriate organisations and individuals as well as the community, and then 
approved by Licensing and Environmental Protection Committee. 

 Specific policies have been produced in relation to:- 
 Food Safety 
 Health & Safety 
 Domestic Services 
 Environmental Permitting 
 Licensing 
 Taxi and Private Hire Vehicle 
 Caravan sites 
 Animal Welfare 
 Housing Standards 
 Skin Piercing 
 Water Supplies 

 
3.4 Where there is a need for the Council to share enforcement information with 

other agencies, we will follow the provisions of the Data Protection Act 1988. 
 
3.5 The Council will protect the identity of people making a protected disclosure in 

relation to food hygiene and health & safety. 
 
4.0 REGULATORS’ CODE 
 
4.1 The Regulators’ Code provides a flexible, principles based framework for 

regulatory delivery. The Code was made under section 23 of the Legislative 
and Regulatory Reform Act 2006 and regulations must have regard to the 
Code when developing policies and operational procedures that guide their 
regulatory activities.  

  
 If we conclude, on the basis of material evidence, that a specific provision of 

the Code is either not applicable or is outweighed by another relevant 
consideration, we are not bound to follow that provision, but should record that 
decision and the reasons for it. 

 
4.2 The Code contains six main provisions:- 

1. Regulators should carry out their activities in a way that supports those 
they regulate to comply and grow; 

2. Regulators should provide simple and straightforward ways to engage 
with those they regulate and hear their views; 

3. Regulators should base their regulatory activities on risk; 

Page 101



HAMBLETON DISTRICT COUNCIL 
 

 ENVIRONMENTAL HEALTH 
ENFORCEMENT STRATEGY AND  

POLICY 
ENVIRONMENTAL HEALTH SERVICE G.D.1 

Issue No. 4 November 2013 
 

4. Regulators should share information about compliance and risk; 
5. Regulators should ensure clear information, guidance and advice is 

available to help those they regulate meet their responsibilities to 
comply; 

6. Regulators should ensure that their approach to their regulatory 
activities is transparent. 

 
4.3 The Council will avoid imposing unnecessary regulatory burdens through our 

regulatory activities and will assess whether similar social, environmental and 
economic outcomes could be achieved by less burdensome means. The 
Council will choose proportionate approaches to those it regulates, based on 
relevant factors including, for example, business size and capacity. 

 
4.4 In responding to non-compliance, the Council will clearly explain what the non-

compliant item or activity is, the advice being given, actions required or 
decisions taken, and the reasons for these. We will consult with regulated 
bodies to ensure that advice, requirements and decisions are proportionate 
and consistent. This may not apply to situations where immediate enforcement 
action is required. 

 
4.5 The Council will provide a timely explanation in writing of any right to 

representation or right to appeal. This explanation will be in plain language 
and include practical information of the process involved. 

 
4.6 The Environmental Health Service will take an evidence-based approach to 

determining the priority risks and allocate resources where they would be most 
effective in addressing those priority risks. Risk will be considered at every 
stage of our decision-making process. 

 
4.7 The Environmental Health Service will aim to create an environment in which 

those who are regulated can have confidence in the advice they receive and 
feel able to seek advice without fear of triggering enforcement action. 

 
4.8 The Environmental Health Service will work collaboratively to assist those 

regulated by more than one regulator. 
 
5.0 PRIORITY REGULATORY OUTCOMES 
 
5.1 The Better Regulation Delivery Office (BRDO) has a statutory duty under the 

Regulatory Enforcement and Sanctions Act 2008 to ‘prepare and publish a list 
specifying those matters to which a local authority should give priority when 
allocating resources’. Local Authorities must have regard to the priorities in 
allocating resources to their regulatory service functions. The BRDO has 
published new priorities to replace those previously published by the Rogers 
Review in 2007. 

 
5.2 The current priority set published by the BRDO are as follows:- 

Page 102



HAMBLETON DISTRICT COUNCIL 
 

 ENVIRONMENTAL HEALTH 
ENFORCEMENT STRATEGY AND  

POLICY 
ENVIRONMENTAL HEALTH SERVICE G.D.1 

Issue No. 4 November 2013 
 
  
 Priority 1: Support economic growth, especially in small businesses, by 

ensuring a fair, responsible and competitive trading environment 
 
 Priority 2: protect the environment for future generations including tackling the 

threats and impacts of climate change 
 
 Priority 3: Improve quality of life and wellbeing by ensuring clean and safe 

neighbourhoods 
 
 Priority 4: Help people to live healthier lives by preventing ill health and harm 

and promoting public health 
 
 Priority 5: Ensure a safe, healthy and sustainable food chain for the benefits of 

consumers and the rural economy. 
 
5.3 The Council will select the most appropriate tool from those included in the 

Priority Regulatory Outcomes Final Report (LBRO. November 2011) to drive 
better regulatory outcomes and build these tools into service designs.  

 
6.0 ENFORCEMENT OPTIONS 
 
6.1 Enforcement officers must seek to secure compliance with the law. The 

following applies to all Officers’ dealings with duty holders or other 
stakeholders, whether formal or informal, in ensuring compliance. 

 
6.2 In most cases compliance is achieved using informal action. We believe the 

first step in enforcement is to help prevent contravention of the law by raising 
awareness and promoting good practice. Methods of achieving this include: 
offering advice, information, guidance and support, both verbally and in the 
written form. In responding to requests for advice our primary concern will be 
to provide advice necessary to support compliance, and to ensure that the 
advice can be relied on. 

 
6.3 Formal enforcement mechanisms are also available, as set out in the law, 

these include: 
 Issuing of statutory notices to remedy a legal contravention or 

prohibition, where there is a risk of injury to health, serious personal 
injury, or damage to the environment;  

 Withdrawal of approvals;  
 Revocation of authorisations or permits; 
 Refusal of registration, variations to licences or conditions; or, 
 Prosecution 
 Simple Caution 

 

Page 103



HAMBLETON DISTRICT COUNCIL 
 

 ENVIRONMENTAL HEALTH 
ENFORCEMENT STRATEGY AND  

POLICY 
ENVIRONMENTAL HEALTH SERVICE G.D.1 

Issue No. 4 November 2013 
 
6.4 The Council is committed to protecting the public, the environment and groups 

such as consumers and workers. We are also committed to making 
enforcement decisions that are consistent and ensuring that businesses and 
individuals are treated in a fair, transparent and proportionate manner. 

 
6.5 The Council will consider the following factors when deciding whether or not to 

prosecute: 
 

 The seriousness and effect of the offence; 
 The previous history of the party concerned; 
 Confidence in management; 
 The intent and attitude of the offender; 
 The willingness of the alleged offender to prevent a recurrence; 
 The consequence of non-compliance;  
 The deterrent effect of a prosecution on offenders and others 
 Whether there is enough evidence to prove the offence; and, 
 Whether other enforcement options would be more appropriate. 

 
6.6 The factors are not exhaustive and will depend on the particular 

circumstances of each case. Each case is unique and must be considered on 
its own merits. There are, however, general principles that apply in the way 
each situation must be approached.  

 

6.7 Where enforcement is felt to be appropriate, then the Council has the following 
options available: 

 Take no action; 
 Take informal action; 
 Issue a statutory notice; 
 Issue a Simple Caution; 
 Use seizure and detention powers; 
 Revoke a licence, approval or authorisation; 
 Refuse a registration, licence, approval, permit or authorisation; 
 Carry out work in default; 
 Prohibition notice 
 Require action or compliance with standards 
 Seek an injunction; 
 Issue a Fixed Penalty Notice 
 Prosecute 
 Administration penalty 
 Voluntary Undertakings 

 
6.8 Should the Council decide on enforcement action, which goes against the 

advice of the Home, Lead, Primary or originating authority, then Officers will 
discuss the action with the relevant authority before taking any action. The 

Page 104



HAMBLETON DISTRICT COUNCIL 
 

 ENVIRONMENTAL HEALTH 
ENFORCEMENT STRATEGY AND  

POLICY 
ENVIRONMENTAL HEALTH SERVICE G.D.1 

Issue No. 4 November 2013 
 

Council will implement the Primary Authority framework for the operation of 
the Primary Authority Scheme, managed by the BRDO) where appropriate. 

 
7.0 LEVELS OF ENFORCEMENT ACTION 

 
7.1 The following paragraphs detail the enforcement actions available and 

circumstances where they would be applied. 
 

TAKE NO ACTION 
 

7.2 Following investigation, if the situation is found to be largely satisfactory, then 
no further action would be taken. The business or individual concerned would 
be informed of this, as would any complainant where applicable.  
 
INFORMAL ACTION 
 

7.3 Informal action to secure compliance with legislation includes: offering advice, 
verbal warnings and requests for action, letters and the issue of technical 
inspection reports, including those generated on the premises following an 
inspection. We will use compliance advice and support as a first response in 
the case of many breaches of legislation that are identified. 
 

7.4 Informal action will be considered where: 
 The act or omission is not serious; and 
 Confidence in the management is high; and 
 The past history demonstrates that informal action would achieve 

compliance; and 
 The consequences of non-compliance do not pose a significant risk to 

public health, safety, or welfare; or 
 Where a business is operated by a voluntary or charitable organisation 

using volunteers, informal action will always be considered as the first 
option. 

 
7.5 When taking informal action Officers will clearly differentiate between legal 

requirements and recommendations of good practice. This includes the 
provision of oral advice. If a similar breach is identified in the future, written 
advice will be persuasive in considering the most appropriate enforcement 
action to take on that occasion. 

 
7.6 Where letters or other reports are sent to a business or individual these will: 

 Clearly specify what work is required and why, 
 Indicate legislation which is being or is likely to be contravened and 

methods of compliance, including alternatives that may achieve the 
same effect 

 Clearly indicate recommendations of good practice, as distinct from 
legal requirements; 

Page 105



HAMBLETON DISTRICT COUNCIL 
 

 ENVIRONMENTAL HEALTH 
ENFORCEMENT STRATEGY AND  

POLICY 
ENVIRONMENTAL HEALTH SERVICE G.D.1 

Issue No. 4 November 2013 
 

 Detail time scales to achieve compliance. 
 
STATUTORY NOTICES 

 
7.7      Statutory notices will be considered where one or more of the following criteria 

apply: 
 

 There is a specific legal requirement to serve a notice; 
 There are significant contraventions of legislation; 
 There is a lack of confidence in the recipient to respond positively to an 

informal approach; 
 There is a history of non-compliance with informal action; 
 Standards are generally poor with little management awareness of 

statutory requirements; 
 The consequence of non-compliance could be potentially serious to 

public health, safety or welfare and, 
 Although it is intended to prosecute, effective action also needs to be 

taken to remedy conditions that are serious or deteriorating. 
 
Notices will be served for matters where there is a risk to public health, safety, 
or the environment and not for minor technical contraventions. 
 

7.8 Notices will be in the prescribed form where this has been specified. 
 
7.9 The notice will explain the contraventions (i.e. what is wrong), what is required 

to put things right and what the likely consequences are if the notice is not 
complied with.  

 
7.10 The time limit on notices will be realistic and recipients of notices will be given 

the opportunity, should they wish, to discuss the requirements. Alternative 
ways of complying with the notice will be considered. 

 
7.11 Compliance with the requirements of all notices will be checked as soon as is 

practicable after expiry. 
 
7.12 Failure to comply with a statutory notice will, in general, result in prosecution 

and/or work in default. Officers must have sufficient evidence to justify service 
of a statutory notice, and be prepared to pursue non-compliance through the 
courts. Work in default will be undertaken where there is a continuing need for 
the works to be carried out. Not all statutory notices can be followed by work in 
default. 

 
7.13 Where a formal notice is served the method of appealing against the notice 

and the time scale for doing so will be provided in writing at the same time as 
the notice is served. 

 

Page 106



HAMBLETON DISTRICT COUNCIL 
 

 ENVIRONMENTAL HEALTH 
ENFORCEMENT STRATEGY AND  

POLICY 
ENVIRONMENTAL HEALTH SERVICE G.D.1 

Issue No. 4 November 2013 
 

SIMPLE CAUTION 
 
7.14 The issue of a Simple Caution will be considered as an alternative to 

prosecution in accordance with the Home Office Circular 016/2008. 
 
7.15 Where there is a criminal offence, but the public interest does not require a 

prosecution, a Simple Caution may be an appropriate course of action. Home 
Office Circular 016/2008 states that the purpose of a Simple Caution is to: 

 
 To deal quickly and simply with less serious offences where the 

offender has admitted the offence; 
 To divert offenders where appropriate from appearing in the criminal 

courts;  
 To record an individual’s criminal conduct for possible reference in 

future criminal proceedings or relevant security checks; and 
 To reduce the chances of them re-offending 

 
7.16 Simple Cautions will be used in accordance with the Home Office Circular and 

relevant official guidance. Before administering a caution the following 
conditions must be satisfied: 

 
 The suspected offender must make a clear and reliable admission of 

the offence, either verbally or in writing; 
 There must be a realistic prospect of conviction if the offender were to 

be prosecuted; 
 It should be in the public interest to use a simple caution as a means of 

disposal;  
 The offender should be 18 years of age or older at the time the caution 

is administered; and 
 The offender must understand the significance of the formal caution 

and consent to it;  
 
7.17 The decision to refer matters to the Council’s Solicitor for Simple Caution will 

be taken by the Environmental Health Manager who will consider all relevant 
evidence and information. 

 
7.18 Alternative enforcement action will be considered by the Environmental Health 

Manager, where the offer of a Simple Caution is refused or is not appropriate. 
Again all evidence and information will be considered. 

 
7.19 In most cases, but not necessarily all, refusal of a Simple Caution will result in 

a referral for prosecution. 
  
7.20 A Simple Caution is a serious matter, which will influence any future decision 

should the company or individual offend again. It can be referred to in any 

Page 107



HAMBLETON DISTRICT COUNCIL 
 

 ENVIRONMENTAL HEALTH 
ENFORCEMENT STRATEGY AND  

POLICY 
ENVIRONMENTAL HEALTH SERVICE G.D.1 

Issue No. 4 November 2013 
 

subsequent court proceedings, but this will not apply if the caution was issued 
more than three years before. 

 
7.21 Home, Lead, Primary and Originating Authorities will be notified of formal 

action. The details of Simple Cautions must be forwarded to the Central 
Register of Convictions, operated by the Office of Fair Trading, together with a 
copy of the countersigned letter accepting the caution. 

 
SEIZURE POWERS 
 

7.22 Enforcement Officers may use appropriate statutory powers to take 
possession of and detain articles, substances or equipment where: 

 
 There are reasonable grounds for suspecting that the article, substance 

or equipment is a cause of imminent danger, serious personal injury or 
pollution of the environment; or, 

 Food is suspected to fail to meet the requirements of the relevant food 
safety legislation; or, 

 To secure the abatement of a statutory nuisance. 
 

PROHIBITION 
 
7.23 Prohibition notices will only be considered where: 
 

 The consequence of not taking immediate and decisive action to 
protect public health, safety and the environment would be 
unacceptable; 

 An imminent risk of injury or to health or to the environment can be 
conclusively demonstrated; 

 The requirements of the relevant statutory guidance criteria regarding 
the use of such notices are fulfilled; 

 There is no confidence in the integrity of an unprompted offer made 
voluntarily; 

 A proprietor is unwilling to confirm in writing his/her unprompted offer of 
voluntary prohibition. 

 
7.24 Officers authorised to issue prohibition notices will be suitably qualified and 

experienced, as described in the relevant statutory official guidance and in-
house procedures.  

 
REQUIREMENT OF ACTION, STANDARDS OR CONDITIONS 

  
7.25 Orders can be considered where action or standards are required as an 

alternative form of action. This includes powers such as:- 
 An order to comply with conditions attached to a licence, approval, 

registration or permit; 

Page 108



HAMBLETON DISTRICT COUNCIL 
 

 ENVIRONMENTAL HEALTH 
ENFORCEMENT STRATEGY AND  

POLICY 
ENVIRONMENTAL HEALTH SERVICE G.D.1 

Issue No. 4 November 2013 
 

 Provision of checklists prior to consideration of delivery of a service. 
 
These actions are specific to particular legislation and their use is described in 
service specific policies. 

 
REFUSAL/REVOCATION OF A REGISTRATION, LICENCE, APPROVAL, PERMIT OR 
AUTHORISATION 
 

7.26 Registrations, licences, prior approvals, permits and authorisations will only be 
refused or revoked by the Council in line with appropriate procedures and after 
consideration of all relevant evidence.  
 
In order to take this step the following criteria should be considered in relation 
to the individual or organisation who : 

 a) engages in fraudulent activity 
 b) deliberately or persistently breaches legal obligations 
 c) deliberately or persistently ignores written warnings or formal notices 
 d) endangers, to a serious degree, the health, safety or well being of people, 

animals or the environment 
 e) fails to pay subsistence fees 
 f) any other grounds which indicate the person is not deemed to be a fit and 

proper person e.g. for the purposes of licensing. 
 
WORK IN DEFAULT AND RECOVERY OF COSTS 
 

7.27 Where work is required in the interest of public health, safety or the 
environment and the statutory notice allows, it may be carried out by or on 
behalf of the Council and the cost recovered from the business, organisation 
or individual as appropriate, including an oncost to cover administration. 
 
INJUNCTION 
 

7.28 In exceptional circumstances where action under the relevant legislation is 
deemed unlikely to be effective or where there is a serious imminent risk to 
public health or the environment, and immediate action is considered 
necessary, injunctive proceedings may be considered. 
 
FIXED PENALTY NOTICE 

 
7.29 Enforcement action through fixed penalty notices will be taken against persons 

in circumstances permitted by specific legislation. A fixed penalty notice is not 
a criminal fine, and does not appear on an individual’s criminal record. If a 
fixed penalty is not paid, the Council may commence criminal proceedings or 
take other enforcement action in respect of the breach. 

 

Page 109



HAMBLETON DISTRICT COUNCIL 
 

 ENVIRONMENTAL HEALTH 
ENFORCEMENT STRATEGY AND  

POLICY 
ENVIRONMENTAL HEALTH SERVICE G.D.1 

Issue No. 4 November 2013 
 
7.30 The intention of a fixed penalty notice is to avoid the need for Court action, 

though the option of simple caution or prosecution is available where the 
offence warrants such action or in the event of non-compliance with the notice.  

 
7.31 If a fixed penalty is not paid within the prescribed period, legal proceedings 

shall be instituted. 
 

ADMINISTRATION PENALTY 
 
7.32 Enforcement action through administration penalties can be taken where there 

is sufficient evidence to prove that certain offences have occurred. 
 
7.33 The intention of the Administration Penalty is to provide another avenue, other 

than prosecution, for cases that would not be in the public interest to 
prosecute. 

 
7.34 If an administration penalty is not paid within the prescribed period, legal 

proceedings shall be instituted. 
 
 VOLUNTARY UNDERTAKINGS 
 
7.35 The Council may accept voluntary undertakings that breaches will be rectified 

and/or recurrences prevented. The Council will take any failure to honour 
voluntary undertakings very seriously and enforcement action is likely to 
result. 

 
 ANONYMOUS REQUESTS FOR SERVICE 
 
7.36 If requests for investigations are received but made anonymously, we will 

investigate them where:- 
 It concerns an issue that we would normally investigate, 
 A member of staff can witness the activity/issue without the need of 

input from a complainant, and 
 We could take enforcement action without the evidence of the 

complainant. 
 

8.0 LEGAL PROCEEDINGS  
 
8.1 The Council recognises that the decision to prosecute an individual is a 

serious step with implications for all involved – victims, witnesses and 
defendants. Circumstances where prosecution is considered appropriate are: 

 Where there has been a serious breach of the law or blatant disregard 
for the law;  

 Where there is a refusal to achieve basic minimum legal requirements, 
and  

 Following previous contact with an Authority. 
 

Page 110



HAMBLETON DISTRICT COUNCIL 
 

 ENVIRONMENTAL HEALTH 
ENFORCEMENT STRATEGY AND  

POLICY 
ENVIRONMENTAL HEALTH SERVICE G.D.1 

Issue No. 4 November 2013 
 
8.2 Circumstances which warrant prosecution include: 

 Where the offence involves the failure to comply in whole or in part with 
the requirements of a statutory notice; or 

 Where the offence involves a serious or flagrant breach of the law, such 
that it places public health, safety or well being at risk; or 

 Where the offender has been given reasonable opportunity to comply 
with legal requirements and where the offence involves a failure to 
correct an identified serious potential risk; or 

 Where there has been a history of similar offences; or 
 Obstruction or assault of an authorised officer; or 
 Legal action shall be taken on the first occasion that certain events are 

witnessed because of the extreme improbability that the person once 
seen committing an offence would be seen on a subsequent occasion. 
Community benefit would also be indicated by the importance of the 
case, for example, whether it might establish a legal precedent. 

 
8.3 The Officer and their line manager will consider all relevant information and 

evidence, when circumstances have been identified which may warrant 
prosecution, in order that a fair, consistent and objective decision be made, 
which is in line with relevant Council Policy. The case and the available 
evidence would be discussed with the Council’s Legal Section prior to any 
decision regarding the institution of legal proceedings 

 
8.4 Before a prosecution proceeds, the Officer shall refer to the Code for Crown 

Prosecutors which requires two stages to govern the Full Code Test decision-
making process:- the Evidential Stage and the Public Interest Stage. The 
Threshold Test is not appropriate, as the Council has no powers of arrest. 

 
 The Evidential Stage requires that the prosecutor be satisfied that there is 

enough evidence to provide a “realistic prospect of conviction” against each 
defendant on each charge. The defence case must be considered and how 
this is likely to affect the prospects of conviction. The prosecutor must 
consider whether the evidence can be used and is reliable. A case which does 
not pass the evidential test must not proceed. 

 
 The Public Interest Stage follows the Evidential stage. A prosecution will 

usually take place unless the prosecutor is sure that there are public interest 
factors tending against prosecution that outweigh those tending in favour, or 
the prosecutor considers the public interest is properly served by an out-of-
court disposal. Public interest factors that can affect the decision to prosecute 
usually depend on the seriousness of the offence or the circumstances of the 
offender. Some factors may increase the need to prosecute but others may 
suggest that another course of action would be better.  

 

Page 111



HAMBLETON DISTRICT COUNCIL 
 

 ENVIRONMENTAL HEALTH 
ENFORCEMENT STRATEGY AND  

POLICY 
ENVIRONMENTAL HEALTH SERVICE G.D.1 

Issue No. 4 November 2013 
 
8.5 When deciding whether or not to prosecute, certain factors in paragraph 4.16 

and 4.17 of the CPS Code for Crown Prosecutors will be taken into 
consideration. 
a) A prosecution is likely to be required if (briefly):- 
 a conviction is likely to result in a significant sentence; 
 a conviction is likely to result in an order of the court in excess of that 

which a prosecutor is able to secure through a conditional caution;  
 the offence involved the use of a weapon or the threat of violence; 
 the offence was committed against a member of the enforcement staff or 

other person serving the public; 
 the offence was premeditated; 
 the offence was carried out by a group; 
 the offence was committed in the presence, or in close proximity to, a 

child; 
 the offence involved motivation by any form of discrimination; 
 the offence was committed in order to facilitate more serious offending; 
 the victim of the offence was in a vulnerable situation and the suspect 

took advantage of this; 
 there was an element of corruption of the victim in the way the offence 

was committed; 
 there is a marked difference in the ages of the suspect and the victim and 

the suspect took advantage of this; 
 the suspect was in a position of authority or trust and he or she took 

advantage of this; 
 the suspect was a ringleader or an organiser of the offence; 
 the suspect’s previous convictions or the previous out-of-court disposals 

which he or she has received are relevant to the present offence; 
 the defendant is alleged to have committed the offence in breach of an 

order of the court 
 a prosecution would have a significant positive impact on maintaining 

community confidence. 
 There are grounds for believing that the offence is likely to be continued 

or repeated. 
 

b) A prosecution is less likely to be required if (briefly):- 
 The court is likely to impose a nominal penalty; 
 The seriousness and the consequences of the offending can be 

appropriately dealt with by an out-of-court disposal which the suspect 
accepts and with which he or she complies; 

 the suspect has been subject to any appropriate regulatory proceedings, 
or any punitive or relevant civil penalty which remains in place or which 
has been satisfactorily discharged, which adequately addresses the 
seriousness of the offending and any breach of trust involved; 

 The offence was committed as a result of a genuine mistake or 
misunderstanding 

Page 112



HAMBLETON DISTRICT COUNCIL 
 

 ENVIRONMENTAL HEALTH 
ENFORCEMENT STRATEGY AND  

POLICY 
ENVIRONMENTAL HEALTH SERVICE G.D.1 

Issue No. 4 November 2013 
 

 The loss or harm can be described as minor and was the result of a 
single incident, particularly if it was caused by a misjudgement; 

 There has been a long delay between the offence taking place and the 
date of the trial, unless; 

i. the offence is serious; 
ii. the delay has been caused wholly or in part by the suspect; 
iii. the offence has only recently come to light; 
iv. the complexity of the offence has meant that there has been a long 

investigation; or 
v. new investigative techniques have been used to re-examine 

previously unsolved crimes and, as a result, a suspect has been 
identified. 

 A prosecution is likely to have an adverse effect on the victim’s 
physical or mental health 

 The suspect played a minor role in the commission of the offence; 
 The suspect has put right the loss or harm that was caused; 
 The suspect is, or was at the time of the offence, suffering from 

significant mental or physical ill health, unless the offence is serious 
or there is a real possibility that it may be repeated; 

 A prosecution may require details to be made public that could harm 
sources of information, international relations or national security. 

  
8.6 Deciding on the public interest is not simply a matter of adding up the number 

of factors on each side. The prosecutor must decide how important each 
factor is in the circumstances of each case and go on to make an overall 
assessment. Once a decision has been made to prosecute then action should 
be taken without undue delay. 

 
8.7 When implementing legal proceedings, the requirements of the Police and 

Criminal Evidence Act 1984 (as amended) - Codes of Practice and the 
Criminal Procedures and Investigation Act 1996 (as amended) - Codes of 
Practice, will be adhered to. 

 
8.8 Charges will be selected which:- 

a) reflect the seriousness and extent of the offending 
b) give the court adequate powers to sentence and impose Orders 
c) enable the case to be presented in a clear and simple way. 

 
9.0 LEGAL PROCEEDINGS PROCESS 
 
9.1 In order to ensure that legal proceedings are administered in a consistent and 

timely fashion, and to the required level of quality, a documented procedure 
will be used to manage the process. This will deal with all aspects of routine 
cases including preparation of prosecution files, dealing with cases in 
progress, completion of documentation after the case has been completed 
and dealing with abandoned or withdrawn cases and appeals. 

Page 113



HAMBLETON DISTRICT COUNCIL 
 

 ENVIRONMENTAL HEALTH 
ENFORCEMENT STRATEGY AND  

POLICY 
ENVIRONMENTAL HEALTH SERVICE G.D.1 

Issue No. 4 November 2013 
 
 
9.2 In order to aid consistency, a set of forms have been designed to record and 

present information in a consistent fashion.  
 
10.0 STAFF AUTHORISATION AND DELEGATION 
 
10.1 The Council’s constitution and scheme of delegation describe how the 

responsibility for enforcement is allocated and how staff are authorised to 
undertake duties on behalf of the Council. 

 
10.2 Notices shall be served by officers whose opinion they reflect and who is 

properly authorised. 
 
11.0 STAFF SUPPORT 
 
11.1 Staff involved in enforcement are assured of their safety and welfare by 

means of the implementation of policies, strategies and the provision of 
guidance and training. In particular, as enforcement activity is generally 
carried out by staff working alone, policies and practices have been adopted to 
secure their safety while out of the office. These include:- 

 The Lone Worker Policy and Procedure, which provides a system for 
ensuring that contact is maintained with staff while they are working out 
of the office. 

 An Out of Hours Lone Working Procedure provides a framework for 
keeping in contact and emergency support for staff working outside 
normal working hours, at weekends and on bank holidays. 

 Training needs are assessed on an annual basis and training is made 
available for staff in relation to issues such as dealing with aggression 
and de-escalation of confrontational situations. 

 Staff are provided with suitable identification documents and their 
authority to undertake enforcement activity is confirmed through 
administrative procedures linked to the Council’s Constitution. 

 Richmondshire District Council has adopted policies in relation to 
unreasonably persistent complaints and unacceptable behaviour and 
based on guidance produced by the Local Government Ombudsman. 

 
12.0 ENSURING FAIR AND EQUAL ENFORCEMENT 
 
12.1 Policies and advice, produced within the Council, ensure that enforcement 

activity is undertaken in a professional and respectful way. Practices include:- 
 Disclosure and Barring Service checks are undertaken in respect of all 

staff that work with or come into contact with children and vulnerable 
adults. 

 The Council’s Equalities Strategy ensures that enforcement activity is 
delivered in such a way that stresses the importance of fair treatment 
and equal access to our services. 

Page 114



HAMBLETON DISTRICT COUNCIL 
 

 ENVIRONMENTAL HEALTH 
ENFORCEMENT STRATEGY AND  

POLICY 
ENVIRONMENTAL HEALTH SERVICE G.D.1 

Issue No. 4 November 2013 
 

 Equality Impact Assessments are undertaken of all significant policies 
and strategies and these are published and are publicly available. 

 The Code of Practice for carrying out surveillance under the Regulation 
of Investigatory Powers Act 2000 as amended ensures that individual’s 
rights are protected while also ensuring that law enforcement can be 
undertaken effectively. It ensures that covert surveillance is only used 
and authorised in specific circumstances and with specific controls. 
This would be where the collection of evidence would otherwise be 
jeopardised by the visibility or prior notice of the officer collecting that 
evidence, where prior notice might jeopardise the collection of 
evidence, or where the matter is of significant local importance. 

 
13.0 REVIEW, MONITORING AND REPORTING COMPLIANCE 
 
13.1 All regulatory services have come under increasing influence from central 

Government initiatives. These influences will be regularly assessed and this 
Strategy and Policy reviewed on not less than an annual basis to ensure it is 
up to date. 

 
13.2 Monitoring of compliance with the Policy and in the implementation of the 

Strategy will be monitored by the Environmental Health Manager.  
 
13.3 Staff shall use the Enforcement Policy Checklist (Form G.F.14) to record 

enforcement decisions that are not in compliance with the Enforcement Policy 
and record the agreement of that non-compliance by the relevant Lead Officer. 

 
13.4 The outcome of regulatory service delivery will be reported on an annual basis 

to the Corporate Director. 
 
14.0 NATIONAL POLICE COMPUTER 
 
14.1 The Council will co-operate, as a non-police prosecuting agency, with North 

Yorkshire Police in the transfer of appropriate information to and from the 
Police National Computer. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 115



HAMBLETON DISTRICT COUNCIL 
 

 ENVIRONMENTAL HEALTH 
ENFORCEMENT STRATEGY AND  

POLICY 
ENVIRONMENTAL HEALTH SERVICE G.D.1 

Issue No. 4 November 2013 
 
 
ENFORCEMENT REFERENCE DOCUMENTS 
 
Regulators’ Code. BRDC. 2014 
 
The Legislative and Regulatory Reform (Regulatory Functions) Order 2007. SI 
2007:3544. 6 April 2008 (the “Listing Order”) 
 
Corporate Manslaughter and Corporate Homicide Act 2007. HMSO 
 
Regulatory Enforcement and Sanctions Act 2008. HMSO. October 2008. 
 
Simple Cautioning of Adult Offenders. Home Office Circular 016/2008. July 2008. 
 
The Code for Crown Prosecutors. Crown Prosecution Service. February 2010. 
 
Human Rights and Human Lives. Ministry of Justice. October 2006. 
 
Priority Regulatory Outcomes. A new approach to refreshing the National 
Enforcement Priorities for Local Authority Regulatory Services. LBRO. November 
2011. 
 
Protected Disclosures 
 

Page 116



   
HAMBLETON DISTRICT COUNCIL 
 
Report To: Cabinet 
  10 June 2014  
 
Subject: HEALTH & SAFETY ENFORCEMENT POLICY  

All Wards 
Portfolio Holder for Environmental and Planning Services: Councillor Brian Phillips 

 
 
1.0 PURPOSE OF THE REPORT 
 
1.1 The purpose of this report is to present the Health and Safety Enforcement Policy for 

approval. 
 
2.0 BACKGROUND 
 
2.1 The current Health and Safety Enforcement Policy v1.1 was approved by the Licensing and 

Environment Protection Committee at its meeting on 26th November 2012. Version 1.2 has 
now been produced following changes in national guidance and requirements. The 
following amendments have been made in the latest version:- 

 
a) Section 2.0 and paragraph 4.11 reflect the changes introduced by the replacement 

of the section 18 Guidance with a National Local Authority Enforcement Code. This 
Code was developed in response to the recommendations by Professor Lofstedt 
that the Health & Safety Executive take a stronger role in directing Local Authority 
health & safety inspection and enforcement activity. This National Code has been 
developed in response to this recommendation and as an outcome of the Red Tape 
Challenge on Health & Safety. It is designed to ensure that LA health & safety 
regulators take a more consistent and proportionate approach to enforcement. This 
required no change to our existing enforcement practices. 

 
b)  Paragraph 5.1.6 introduces a reference to the approved Council policy in relation to 

Protected Disclosures. This confirms that the Council will protect the identity of 
employees who make protected disclosures under the Public Interest Disclosure Act 
1998. The Policy was approved by Cabinet on 5th November 2013 as an 
amendment to the Council’s existing Whistleblowing Policy covering its own 
employees. 

 
c)  Paragraph 7.1.1 refers to the replacement of the Regulators’ Compliance Code by 

the Regulators’ Code. This mandatory Code, published in July 2013, comes into 
effect on 1st April 2014. The Council must have regard to the Code when setting 
standards or giving evidence. This Code did not require a change of Policy but 
introduced some practices in relation to the way enforcement is carried out.  

 
d)  Paragraph 7.1.2 introduces the Environmental Health Service’s Business Friendly 

Scheme. This scheme implements the requirements of the Regulators’ Code and 
demonstrates how the Service will meet its requirements. 

 
e)  Section 8 – Enforcement Options remains unchanged. 
 
f)  Paragraph 8.6.5 again refers to the change from section 8 Guidance to the National 

LA Enforcement Code. 

Page 117

Agenda Item 11



 
g)  New paragraph 9.0 introduces the Independent Regulatory Challenge Panel. This 

new body will look into complaints regarding advice given by the Health and Safety 
Executive or Local Authority Inspectors about health and safety which a business 
might think is incorrect or goes beyond what is required to control risk adequately. 
Reference to this body will be made in our correspondence and on our website. 

 
2.2 The overall effect of these changes is not felt to be a change of policy but a formalisation of 

the current service design and delivery system in Hambleton. 
 
3.0 LEGAL IMPLICATIONS: 
 
3.1 The revisions ensure incorporation of recent Government requirements and ensure that the 

Health & Safety enforcement service complies with national expectations. 
 
4.0 FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS AND EFFICIENCIES: 
 
4.1 There are no financial implications in this report. 
 
5.0 RISK ASSESSMENT: 
 
5.1 There are no risks associated with this report. 
 
6.0 DIVERSITY: 
 
6.1 Approval of an up to date Enforcement Policy will ensure that all enforcement activity is 

undertaken based on the merits of the particular situation. 
 
7.0 RECOMMENDATIONS: 
 
7.1 That Cabinet approves and recommends to Council the Health and Safety Enforcement 

Policy. 
 
MICK JEWITT 
 
Background papers: Health & Safety at Work etc. Act 1974 
  National LA Enforcement Code. HSE. May 2013 
  Regulators’ Code. BIS. July 2013  
  Business Friendly Scheme. Environmental Health Service. 2013  
 
Author ref: PM   
Contact: Philip Mepham  
 Environmental Health Manager  
 Direct Line No: (01609) 767037 

 
 
 
 
 

100614 health and safety enforcement policy revision 

Page 118



Annex 

 
 
 
 
 
 

HAMBLETON DISTRICT COUNCIL 
 

ENVIRONMENTAL HEALTH SERVICE 
 
 

HEALTH AND SAFETY 
ENFORCEMENT POLICY 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Date of Issue:  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Version Control 
 
Version No. Amended by Date 
1.0 Philip Mepham 14/2/2012 
1.1 Philip Mepham 8/10/2012 
1.2 Philip Mepham 2/1/2014 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 119



 
 
1.0 Introduction 
 
1.1 Hambleton District Council is an enforcement authority in relation to health 

and safety in the workplace and have powers and duties in the Health and 
Safety at Work etc. Act 1974 and associated legislation. 

 
1.2 This enforcement policy builds on the overall Environmental Health 

Enforcement Strategy and Policy and explains its interpretation in relation to 
health and safety at work. 

 
1.3 This policy applies to all aspects of the health and safety service within the 

boundaries of Hambleton District Council. 
 
2.0 Relevant Documents 
  
 The following documents are relevant to this Policy:- 

Health and Safety at Work etc Act 1974, and any Regulations, Approved 
 Codes of Practice, or Guidance thereunder.  
 Current relevant guidance from the Health and Safety Executive and  
 Government Departments or Agencies 
 Work Related Deaths: A Protocol for Liaison         
 Police and Criminal Evidence Act 1984 
 Human Rights Act 1998 
 Criminal Procedure and Investigation Act 1996 
 Crown Prosecution Service Guidance 
 The Council’s Scheme of Delegation 
 National Local Authority Enforcement Code 
 HSE Enforcement Policy Statement 
 Regulation of Investigatory Powers Act 2000 
o Enforcement Management Model 
 A Risk based Approach for Selecting Complaints about Dutyholders. 
 Statutory Code of Practice for Regulators 
 Legislative and Regulatory Reform Act 2006 
 Regulatory Enforcement and Sanctions Act 2008. 

 
3.0 Responsibility 
 
3.1 All authorised officers are responsible for compliance with this policy in relation 

to the use of their enforcement powers. 
 
4.0 Enforcement Policy Statement  
 
4.1 The Council aims to improve health and safety outcomes which includes 

reducing work-related ill health and accidents, and protect the health, safety and 
welfare of employees and to safeguard others, principally the public, who may 
be exposed to risks from the way work is carried out. 

       

Page 120



4.2 The purpose of enforcement action is to: 
 Secure action by dutyholders to manage and control risks effectively, thus 

preventing harm  
 Ensure dutyholders take action to deal immediately with serious risks  
 Promote and achieve sustained compliance with the law 
 Hold dutyholders to account for failures to safeguard the health, safety and 

welfare of those to whom they owe that duty 
 

The full range of enforcement options available is listed in Section 8. All 
decisions regarding enforcement action will have regard to risks to health and 
safety which may arise because of failures in health and safety practices. 

4.3 The Council intends to achieve these aims using a range of targeted risk 
based interventions and using a variety of different methods. When carrying 
out these activities Authorised Officers will give due regard to current advice 
and guidance issued by the Health and Safety Executive (HSE), the HSE/ 
Local Authorities Enforcement Liaison Committee (HELA), Local Government 
Regulation as part of the Local Government Group, the Better Regulation 
Development Office, the Code for Crown Prosecutors, and any Services 
standards and procedures applicable to the circumstances. Information on the 
Environmental Health Service’s standards and procedures relating to these 
activities can be found in the Sections 6 and 7. 

4.4 The Council is fully committed to working in partnership, cooperating and 
liaising with other organisations, and co-ordinating internally with other Council 
Departments, in order to achieve the aims of this policy. The Council is also 
committed to operating under a flexible warrant scheme with the HSE and 
other West and North Yorkshire Local Authorities who are members of the 
West and North Yorkshire Health and Safety Liaison Group. In particular, 
where a Primary Authority Scheme exists for a business, Authorised Officers 
will check the scheme information and liaise with the Local Authority Partner 
before any intervention takes place. Also Authorised Officers will act in 
accordance with agreed procedures with the North Yorkshire Police in relation 
to the Protocol on Work-Related Deaths. Liaison arrangements will be 
maintained with other local authorities and the HSE’s Enforcement Liaison 
Officer through the West and North Yorkshire Health and Safety Liaison 
Group. A quality management system is in operation for the health and safety 
enforcement function within the overall Environmental Health Service Quality 
Management System.  

 
4.5 The Council will ensure that these services are flexible and responsive to 

needs in order to be equally accessible to all its citizens, and that all service 
users are treated equally and dealt with fairly. 

 
4.6 The Council will ensure that where there is the potential for a conflict of 

interest to arise in premises for which the Council is the relevant enforcing 
authority, but for which the Council also has an ownership or management 
interest, these issues will be dealt with in an open and transparent way.  

 
4.7 The Council is committed to consultation with stakeholders on the operation of 

Page 121



this policy.  
4.8 The Council recognises that enforcement activities must be effective and well 

targeted and are committed to the need to achieve objectives fairly and 
effectively without imposing unnecessary burdens on business by having 
regard to the Statutory Code of Practice for Regulators.  

 
4.9 The Council will ensure that all Officers authorised under the Health and 

Safety at Work etc Act 1974 are competent and are subject to assessment in 
order to determine and maintain competency.  

 
4.10 All Officers authorised under Section 19 of the Health and Safety at Work etc 

Act 1974 will comply with the Police and Criminal Evidence Act 1984, the 
Human Rights Act 1998, the Criminal Procedures and Investigations Act 1996, 
and the Regulation of Investigatory Powers Act 2000 when carrying out any 
enforcement duties.  

 
4.11 This policy is consistent with: 

 HSE’s Enforcement Policy Statement 
 National Local Authority Enforcement Code issued to Local Authorities in 

accordance with Section 18 of the Health and Safety at Work Act 1974  
 Guidance to Local Authorities by the HSE on targeting interventions 
 The Statutory Code of Practice for Regulators 

 
4.12 This policy will be reviewed on a regular basis. 
 
4.13 This enforcement policy has been agreed by the Members of Hambleton 

District Council. 
 
4.14 Copies of this policy will be made available on request to all parties. They can 

be obtained from any of the Council’s offices, on the Hambleton District 
Council website www.hambleton.gov.uk and will also be offered to employers 
during intervention visits. Other documents referred to in this policy detailing 
different aspects of service are also available to view on request. 

 
5.0 Delivering the service 
 
5.1.1 In all cases a targeted hazard and risk based approach will be applied to all 

health and safety enforcement activities. Health and safety interventions will 
be targeted on higher risk activities and serious breaches of health and safety 
regulation. Where the level of risk is either inherently low and/or the 
dutyholders manage the residual risk well, proactive intervention may not be 
warranted. In deciding the level of resources to be used in the application of 
this policy and the type of intervention, the following factors will be considered: 
 The management of significant risks 
 The risk profile of the business/sector 
 National information on accidents, priorities and inspection schemes 
 The principles of sensible risk management 
 The severity and scale of potential or actual harm 
 The seriousness of any potential breach of the law 
 Knowledge of the dutyholder’s past health and safety performance 

Page 122



 The enforcement priorities 
 The practicality of achieving results 
 The wider relevance of the event, including serious public concern 

 
5.1.2 All investigations have the same aims i.e. to determine: - 

 Causes 
 Whether action has been taken or needs to be taken to prevent a   

recurrence and to secure compliance with the law 
 Whether there are lessons to be learnt 
 What response is appropriate 

  
5.1.3 Businesses can expect to receive a visit summary sheet at the time of the 

inspection and also for initial visits the information leaflet ‘What to expect 
when a health and safety inspector calls’.  

 
5.1.4 Due regard will be given to the views of workers representatives for health and   

safety enforcement activities. 
 
5.1.5 Any disclosure of information will be lawful and in accordance with HSE policy 

and freedom of information legislation. 
 
5.1.6 Information provided by employees as whistleblowers will be protected in 

accordance with the Council’s Policy on Protected Disclosures. 
 
5.2 Inspection of workplaces and work activities. 
 

A priority rating scheme coupled with enforcement guidance of national, 
regional and local based priorities determines the frequency and targeting of 
proactive inspections of workplaces and work activities. This means that this 
inspection programme is weighted and directed at businesses with the most 
serious risks. In all cases the reason for the inspection will be recorded with 
the inspection records. Where proactive inspections are not indicated due to a 
lower risk, other interventions can be considered appropriate to the risk. 

 
5.3     Investigation of accidents and incidents  
 
 Each event is evaluated against criteria based on HSE guidance to determine 

the appropriate level of response. The criteria evaluation form will be kept with 
the event. A copy of the criteria for incident investigation is available on 
request.  

 
5.4    Investigation of complaints  
 
 Officers aim to respond promptly to complaints and in any event within 3 days 

which is the current target in the Environmental Health Service Plan. The 
Council will exercise discretion in deciding the nature and extent of any 
investigation of incidents, cases of ill health or complaints. The speed of 
response may vary according to the seriousness of the risk in line with the 
factors listed in paragraph 5.1.1. above. In all cases the allocation of 

Page 123



resources will be targeted at higher risks. Any information on decisions related 
to the response for the investigations will be kept with the case records. 

5.5       Provision of advice and responding to requests for service  
Officers aim to respond promptly and in any event within 3 days to requests 
for advice and service. This advice can include redirecting enquiries to the 
appropriate enforcing authority.  

 
5.6      Promotion of health and safety issues,  

The Council aims to promote a range of issues relating to health and safety. In 
particular, the Council supports national campaigns on priority topics with 
relevance to local issues and for those businesses for which the Council is the 
enforcing authority.  

 
6.0 Delegation to Officers 
 
6.1 Decisions about health and safety enforcement are delegated to officers of the 

Council as shown in the Council’s constitution. The following paragraphs 
illustrate the delegated powers. 

 
6.2 Chief Executive 
 Overall responsibilities for the health and safety enforcement function of the 

Councils. 
 
6.3 Director of Leisure and Health Services  

To carry out on behalf of the Chief Executive the health and safety function of 
the Council. Appointment of suitably qualified, experienced and competent 
persons to act as Authorised Officers to carry out functions under the Act in 
accordance with the relevant statutory provisions and codes of practice; 
responsibility for ensuring that Authorised Officers maintain their competency. 

 
6.4 Legal Officer 

 To assist in instituting proceedings and to prosecute on behalf of the Council in 
respect of any offence against any legislation which the Council is authorised to 
enforce. 

 
6.5 Authorised Officers 

As authorised according to their individual qualifications, experience and 
competency the exercise of the powers contained in Section 20 (Powers of 
Inspectors), 21 (Improvement Notices), 22 (Prohibition Notices), Section 25 
(Power to Deal with Imminent Dangers), and Section 38 (Institution of 
proceedings) of the Health and Safety at Work etc Act 1974. 

 
6.6 Any enforcement decisions which may be required and which do not fall within 

the limits of this policy shall be taken by the Director of Leisure and Health 
Services. 

 
7.0 Enforcement action 
7.1.1 The Council will comply with the Regulators’ Code which sets out what 

businesses and others being regulated can expect from enforcement officers. 
This Code requires regulation which is effective and well targeted promoting 

Page 124



fairness and protection from harm, but does not impose unnecessary burdens. 
Also, regulation must be flexible enough to allow or even promote economic 
progress and at the same time deal proportionately with criminal behaviour 
which would have a damaging effect on legitimate businesses. 

 
7.1.2 The Council will adopt a positive approach towards ensuring compliance by 

helping and encouraging businesses to understand and meet regulatory 
requirements more easily and will respond proportionately to regulatory 
breaches. This includes giving positive feedback to businesses and other 
regulators, to encourage and reinforce good practices. The means by which this 
will be achieved are set out in the EHS Business Friendly Scheme.  

 
7.1.3 Before taking any enforcement action the circumstances encountered during 

inspections or following incidents or complaints will be investigated 
 
7.2 This policy is consistent with the HSE Enforcement Policy Statement and the 

Enforcement Management Model, ensuring that the fair enforcement of Health 
and Safety law is determined by the principles of proportionality, consistency, 
targeting, transparency and accountability as follows: 

 
7.2.1 Proportionality 
 Enforcement action will be proportionate to any risks to health and safety and to 

the seriousness and extent of any breach, which includes consideration of any 
actual or potential harm arising from a breach of the law. Some duties are 
specific and absolute, whereas others require action ‘so far as is reasonably 
practicable’. The principles of proportionality will be applied in relation to both 
kinds of duties. 

 
7.2.2 Consistency 
 There are always many variables in the circumstances where enforcement 

action is considered. In order to achieve and maintain consistency decisions 
about enforcement action will be taken having due regard to the information in 
statutory Codes of Practice and .Guidance. The Council will aim to take a 
similar approach in similar circumstances to achieve similar ends, by giving due 
regard to this policy for all health and safety enforcement matters. Any 
departure from this policy will be made in consultation with the Environmental 
Health Manager and the reasons will be documented and kept with the relevant 
file. 

 
7.2.3 Targeting  
 Enforcement action will be prioritised and targeted to deal primarily with those 

activities which give rise to the most serious risks or where the risks are least 
well controlled, and focused on dutyholders who are best placed to control 
them. 

 
7.2.4 Transparency 

The Council will aim to ensure that duty holders understand what is expected of 
them and what they should expect from the Council. This also means 
distinguishing between statutory requirements and advice or guidance about 
what is desirable but not compulsory. All Authorised Officers will issue a written 

Page 125



visit summary and, for initial visits, the HSE leaflet ‘What to expect when a 
health and safety inspector calls’ to those duty holders they visit. 

 
         The procedures will adhere to the following principles: 

 
 Advice from an officer will be put clearly and simply and will be confirmed 

in writing, on request, explaining why any work is necessary and over 
what time-scale and making sure that legal requirements are clearly 
distinguished from best practice advice or recommendations.  

 
 Before formal enforcement action is taken, officers will provide an 

opportunity to discuss the circumstances of the case and, if possible, 
resolve points of difference, unless immediate action is required (for 
example, in the interests of health and safety or to prevent evidence 
being destroyed).  

 
 Where immediate action is considered necessary, an explanation of why 

such action was required will be given at the time, and, if not in the form 
of a notice, confirmed in writing in most cases within 5 working days and, 
in all cases, within 10 working days. 

 
      Where there are rights of appeal against Formal action, advice on the 

appeal mechanism will be clearly set out in writing at the time the action 
is taken (whenever possible this advice will be issued with the 
enforcement notice). 

 
7.2.5 Accountability 
 The Council is accountable to the public and businesses for their actions. The 

activities and actions of their officers are subject to procedures which are 
available on request. The contact details of the officer dealing with a particular 
issue will be included in any correspondence. Where appropriate, details of 
rights of appeal to an Employment Tribunal will be provided in writing to the duty 
holder. If you are dissatisfied,. Hambleton District Council operates a 
Complaints Procedure for dealing with any complaints about services. 
Customers can make a complaint about services, including the Health and 
Safety service in several ways. This could be by contacting Councillors or 
Council staff via the Council’s website or by contacting Council’s service points 
by phone, by post or by email. The procedures are available at Council offices 
too and will be provided on request to all parties. 

 
8.0 Enforcement options 
 
8.1 The choices for action are as follows: 
 

- take no action 
- take informal action 
- use statutory notices 
-        seize, render harmless or sample any article or substance 
- use formal cautions 
- prosecute 

Page 126



 
  The circumstances under which the various enforcement actions may be taken 

are described in the following sections of the policy. Written details of the 
reasons for the choice of action will be kept on the appropriate premises file. 

 
8.2  Informal Action 
 
8.2.1 Informal action includes giving advice and guidance, verbal and/or written 

warnings or requests for action and the use of letters. 
 
8.2.2 Informal action will be considered where: - 
 

 Circumstances do not warrant formal action 
 Confidence in the operator of the business is high 
 It is expected that informal action will achieve compliance. 

 
 When verbal advice is given it will, if requested, be confirmed in writing.  
 
8.3  Statutory Notices - Improvements 
 
8.3.1 Service of an Improvement Notice will be considered when: - 
 

 In the opinion of the inspector an offence has been committed 
 

 Standards are generally poor with little management awareness of 
statutory requirements. 

 
 There is significant contravention of statutory provisions but prosecution 

or prohibition is not appropriate. 
 

 Circumstances show it is likely that contraventions will continue or be 
repeated.  

 
 There is little confidence that the duty holder will respond to an informal 

approach. 
 

 The consequences of non-compliance could pose a serious risk to health 
or safety.  

 
 Effective action needs to be taken to remedy conditions that are serious 

or deteriorating, even though it is intended to prosecute 
 
8.3.2 Improvement Notices will only be issued by suitably qualified and competent 

officers who are authorised to do so. 
 
8.3.3 In serving Improvement Notices relevant HSE and HELA guidance will be 

followed. Realistic time limits will be applied and alternative ways of complying 
with the notice will be considered. 

 

Page 127



8.3.4 Information on the rights of appeal against Improvement Notices will be 
included  with the notice.   

 
8.3.5 The originating officer will consider all written requests to extend the time limits 

of the notice which are received within the existing time limits.  
 
8.3.6 Compliance with the notice will be checked as soon as practicable after the 

expiry of the notice, and in any case within 5 days. 
 
8.3.7 Failures to comply with a notice within the specified time limit will, except where 

extenuating circumstances apply, result in prosecution. 
 
8.3.8 Information on Improvement Notices will, where appropriate, be made publicly 

available. 
 
8.4 Statutory Notices - Prohibition 
 
8.4.1 Prohibition will be considered where the Authorised Officer is of the opinion that 

activities pose a risk of serious personal injury and the consequences of not 
taking immediate and decisive action to protect persons’ health or safety would 
be unacceptable. 

 

8.4.2 Prohibition will be considered where there is no confidence in the integrity of an 
unprompted offer to voluntarily close premises or cease the use of any 
equipment or process.  

 
8.4.3 Officers authorised to issue Prohibition Notices will be suitably qualified, 

competent, and be authorised to do so and also will have experience in a 
variety of health and safety enforcement situations. 

 
8.4.4 In serving Prohibition Notices relevant HSE and HELA guidance will be 

followed.  
 
8.4.5 Before issuing Prohibition Notices authorised officers will, where it is reasonably 

practicable to do so, consult with the Lead Officer (Commercial) or the 
Environmental Health Manager. 

 
8.4.6 Information on the rights of appeal against a Prohibition Notice will be included 

with the notice. 
 
8.4.7 The originating officer will consider all written requests to withdraw the notice or 

to extend the period specified in the notice which are received within this 
specified period. This will be carried out in consultation with the Environmental 
Health Manager. 

 
8.4.8 Monitoring of the compliance with the notice will be take place in a timely 

fashion and in accordance with the period specified in the notice. 
 
8.4.9 Failures to comply with a notice within the terms of the notice will, except where 

extenuating circumstances apply, result in prosecution. 

Page 128



 
8.4.10 Information on Prohibition Notices, where appropriate, will be made publicly 

available. 
 
8.5 Seizure 
 
8.5.1 The powers to seize, render harmless, and, where appropriate, sample any 

article or substance will be considered if the officer has reasonable cause to 
believe that such an article or substance is the cause of imminent danger of 
serious personal injury. 

 
8.5.2 As soon as may be after any article or substance has been seized and rendered 

harmless, the officer will give a copy of a report which gives the particulars of 
the circumstances to the responsible person at premises where the article or 
substance was found, or to the owner as appropriate. 

 
8.5.3 The powers to seize, render harmless, or sample any article or substance will 

only be used by suitably qualified and competent officers who are authorised to 
do so. 

  
8.6 Prosecution 
 
8.6.1 The Council must use discretion in deciding to bring a prosecution. Any decision 

to prosecute should be kept under continuous review. Where the circumstances 
warrant it and the evidence to support a case is available, the Council may 
prosecute without prior warning or recourse to alternative sanctions. 

 
8.6.2 Prosecution will be considered where there has been a serious breach of health 

and safety legislation. Other enforcement actions may have taken place prior to 
consideration for prosecution. 

 
8.6.3 The decision to refer matters to the Council Solicitor for prosecution will be 

taken by the Environmental Health Manager and the Director of Leisure and 
Health Services who will consider all relevant evidence and information. 

 
8.6.4 Where decisions are taken about whether to prosecute the due regard will be 

given to the Enforcement Management Model, the evidence, the relevant public 
interest factors set down by the Director of Public Prosecutions in the Code for 
Crown Prosecutors and the relevant Home Office Guidance. The factors which 
will be considered may include the following:- 

 the seriousness of the alleged offence 
 the previous history of the party concerned 
 the ability of any important witnesses and their willingness to co-operate 
 the willingness of the alleged offender to prevent a recurrence 
 the probable public benefit of prosecution and the importance of the case 
 whether other  enforcement action  would  be  more appropriate 
 any explanation offered by the alleged offender 

 

Page 129



8.6.5 The Council will have regard to the current Section 18 HSE Guidance to Local 
Authorities in that the circumstances where prosecution of offenders would be 
recommended include:- 

  
 death was the result of an offence  
 the gravity of an alleged offence, taken together with the seriousness of 

any actual or potential harm, or the general record and approach of the 
offender warrants it 

 flagrant or reckless disregard of health and safety requirements such that 
persons health, safety or well being is put at risk 

 work has been carried out without or in serious non compliance with an 
appropriate licence or safety case 

 A dutyholder’s standard of managing health and safety is found to be far 
below what is required by health and safety law and giving rise to 
significant risk  

 where there has been a failure to comply with an enforcement notice or 
there has been repetition of a breach that was subject to a formal caution 

 where there have been repeated breaches which give rise to significant 
risk, or persistent and significant poor compliance 

 officers have been wilfully supplied with false information or intentionally 
obstructed in the lawful course of their duties 

 
In the public interest prosecution will also be considered where: - 

 
 a conviction may deter others from failures to comply with the law. 
 a breach which gives rise to a significant risk has continued despite 

relevant warnings from employees, or their representatives, or from 
others affected by a work activity. 

 
8.7 Simple Caution 
 
 A Simple Caution is an option which officers may consider using Home Office 

Circular 016/2008.  Simple Cautions are an alternative to a prosecution that may 
be considered where circumstances described in section 7.14 – 7.21 of the 
Environmental Health Enforcement Strategy and Policy exist. 

 
9.0 Independent Regulatory Challenge Panel 
 
9.1 An Independent Regulatory Challenge Panel has been established. This body 

can look into complaints regarding advice given by LA Inspectors about health & 
safety which a person may think is incorrect or goes beyond what is required to 
control the risk adequately. An effort must first be made by that person to resolve 
the matter with the relevant Inspector and their manager. The Panel can be 
contacted at www.hse.gov.uk/contact/contactchallengepanel.htm where the 
process can be found. 

 

Page 130



   
 
HAMBLETON DISTRICT COUNCIL 
 
Report To: Cabinet 
  10 June 2014 
 
Subject: PUBLIC OPEN SPACE, SPORT AND RECREATION ACTION PLANS 
 

Topcliffe Ward 
Portfolio Holder for Customer and Leisure Services: Councillor Mrs B S Fortune 

 
 
 
1.0 PURPOSE AND BACKGROUND:     
 
1.1 The Council’s policy is to endorse Public Open Space, Sport and Recreation Sub Area 

Action Plans to provide a more strategic and efficient process for allocating future Section 
106 monies (see Annex A) either from Local Development Framework allocations or 
windfall sites.     

 
1.2 The purpose of this report is to endorse the refreshed Public Open Space, Sport and 

Recreation Action Plan for Dalton.  
  
1.3 The Council’s policy states that each Action Plan must comply with the following: 
 

 Ascertain what is already provided 
 Consider public open space, sport and recreation projects that are included in the 

local Community or Parish Plan to identify existing need 
 Includes consultation with community groups that manage public open space, sport 

or recreation facilities to identify future need 
 Includes consultation with the District Council Elected Member(s) and the local Area 

Partnership 
 Meet the obligations of Public Open Space, Sport and Recreation Supplementary 

Planning Document  
 Is signed off by a Council Director 

 
The Action Plan detailed in 1.2 meet this criterion.    

 
1.4 Copies of the Action Plans detailed in 1.2 are available at Annex B. 
 
2.0 LINK TO COUNCIL PRIORITIES:    
 
2.1 This links primarily to the Health priority of the Council. 
 
3.0 RISK ASSESSMENT 
 
3.1 Risk has been considered as part of this report and there are no risks identified as a result. 
 
4.0 FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS: 
 
4.1 The main method of delivery of Section 106 allocations is to passport external funding from 

developers to community groups.  Funds will not be committed or released to organisations 
until the Council has received the monies from the developer. 

4.2 Action Plans will be subject to 12 monthly reviews to determine progress to ensure that the 
projects are still relevant and viable. 

 

Page 131

Agenda Item 12



5.0 LEGAL IMPLICATIONS:  
 
5.1 There is a legal responsibility upon the Council to ensure this funding is used in a way 

consistent with the individual Section 106 Agreements. 
 
6.0 SECTION 17 CRIME AND DISORDER ACT 1998:   
 
6.1 Some of these projects have the potential to reduce crime and disorder through providing 

diversionary activity for young people. 
 
7.0  EQUALITY/DIVERSITY ISSUES:  
 
7.1  All projects in receipt of this funding should have equal access and be available for the 

general public to use. 
 
8.0  RECOMMENDATION(S): 
 
8.1  It is recommended that the Public Open Space, Sport and Recreation Action Plan in Annex 

B be endorsed. 
 
 
 
DAVE GOODWIN 
 
 
Background papers: Hambleton Local Development Framework – Open Space, Sport and 

Recreation Supplementary Planning Document 
 
Author ref:   DRG 
 
Contact:   Dave Goodwin 
    Director Customer and Leisure Services  
    01609 767147 
 
 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 132



E
lig

ib
le

 s
ch

em
es

 a
re

 p
re

se
nt

ed
 to

 C
ab

in
et

 fo
r 

ap
pr

ov
al

 

A
ct

io
n 

P
la

n 
sc

he
m

es
 a

pp
ro

ve
d

 

Y
es

 
N

o 

In
di

vi
du

al
 A

re
a 

A
ct

io
n 

P
la

n 
pr

oj
ec

ts
 a

re
 c

he
ck

ed
 b

y 
C

o
m

m
u

ni
ty

 
Le

is
ur

e 
to

 e
ns

ur
e 

th
ey

 m
ee

t S
ec

tio
n 

10
6 

cr
ite

ria
 a

nd
 s

tr
at

eg
ic

 
pr

io
rit

ie
s 

an
d 

of
fe

rs
 v

al
ue

 fo
r 

m
on

ey
 

H
ea

lth
 / 

P
ar

tn
er

sh
ip

 T
ea

m
 to

 s
up

po
rt

 
T

ow
n 

/ P
ar

is
h 

C
ou

nc
il 

to
 r

e-
su

bm
it 

A
re

a 
A

ct
io

n 
P

la
n 

S
ec

tio
n 

10
6 

m
on

ie
s 

se
cu

re
d 

fo
r 

st
ra

te
gi

c 
pu

bl
ic

 o
pe

n,
 s

po
rt

 a
nd

 
re

cr
ea

tio
n 

sc
he

m
es

 c
an

 b
e 

al
lo

ca
te

d 
to

 e
ac

h 
sc

he
m

e 
up

 to
 th

e 
va

lu
e 

sp
ec

ifi
ed

 in
 th

e 
S

ub
 A

re
a 

A
ct

io
n 

P
la

n.
  S

tr
at

eg
ic

 s
ch

em
es

 a
re

 S
po

rt
s 

F
ac

ili
tie

s 
in

 N
or

th
al

le
rt

on
 a

nd
 T

hi
rs

k;
 T

ow
n 

P
ar

ks
 in

 N
or

th
al

le
rt

on
 a

nd
 

B
ed

al
e 

an
d 

C
yc

le
-w

ay
s 

in
 B

ed
al

e 

S
ec

tio
n 

10
6 

m
on

ie
s 

se
cu

re
d 

fo
r 

of
f-

si
te

 p
ub

lic
 o

pe
n 

sp
ac

e,
 s

po
rt

 a
nd

 r
ec

re
at

io
n 

fr
om

 a
n 

Lo
ca

l D
ev

el
op

m
en

t 
F

ra
m

ew
or

k 
al

lo
ca

tio
n 

si
te

 c
an

 b
e 

al
lo

ca
te

d 
to

 e
ac

h 
sc

he
m

e(
s)

 in
 th

e 
S

ub
 A

re
a 

A
ct

io
n 

P
la

n 
th

at
 is

 
ap

pr
op

ria
te

 to
 th

at
 s

ite
, i

n 
pr

io
rit

y 
or

de
r,

 u
p 

to
 th

e 
va

lu
es

 
sp

ec
ifi

ed

S
ec

tio
n 

10
6 

m
on

ie
s 

se
cu

re
d 

fo
r 

of
f-

si
te

 p
ub

lic
 

op
en

 s
pa

ce
, s

po
rt

 a
nd

 r
ec

re
at

io
n 

fr
om

 w
in

df
al

l 
si

te
s 

ca
n 

be
 a

llo
ca

te
d 

to
 e

ac
h 

sc
he

m
e(

s)
 in

 t
he

 
S

ub
 A

re
a 

A
ct

io
n 

P
la

n 
th

at
 is

 a
pp

ro
pr

ia
te

 t
o 

th
at

 
si

te
, i

n 
pr

io
rit

y 
or

de
r 

O
nc

e 
ag

re
ed

 th
re

sh
ol

ds
 h

av
e 

be
en

 r
ea

ch
ed

 A
ct

io
n 

P
la

n 
ne

ed
s 

re
fr

es
hi

ng
 a

nd
 r

e-
su

bm
itt

in
g 

to
 C

ab
in

et
 

A
n 

in
di

vi
du

al
 P

ub
lic

 O
pe

n 
S

pa
ce

, S
po

rt
 a

nd
 

R
ec

re
at

io
n 

A
re

a 
A

ct
io

n 
P

la
n 

is
 s

ub
m

itt
ed

 t
o 

C
om

m
un

ity
 L

ei
su

re
  

P
ro

ce
ss

 f
o

r 
ap

p
ro

vi
n

g
 S

u
b

 A
re

a 
A

ct
io

n
 P

la
n

 
an

d
 S

ec
ti

o
n

 1
06

 t
h

re
sh

o
ld

s 
fo

r 
P

u
b

lic
 O

p
en

 
S

p
ac

e,
 S

p
o

rt
 a

n
d

 R
ec

re
at

io
n

 s
ch

em
es

 

A
N

N
E

X
 A

 

Page 133



 A
N

N
E

X
 B

 

 
  

P
U

B
LI

C
 O

P
EN

 S
P

A
C

E,
 S

P
O

R
T 

A
N

D
 R

EC
R

EA
TI

O
N

 A
C

TI
O

N
 P

LA
N

 –
 D

A
LT

O
N

 (
R

EF
R

ES
H

) 
  

 W
ha

t 
P

O
S 

/ 
Sp

or
t 

/ 
R

ec
re

at
io

n
 f

ac
ili

ti
es

 d
o 

yo
u 

h
av

e 
al

re
ad

y?
 

M
an

ag
in

g 
or

ga
ni

sa
ti

on
 a

nd
 

co
n

ta
ct

 d
et

ai
ls

 

Fu
tu

re
 a

ct
io

n
s 

H
ow

 d
o 

yo
u

 k
n

ow
 t

h
er

e 
is

 a
 n

ee
d 

fo
r 

th
is

 
pr

oj
ec

t?
 

Es
ti

m
at

e
d 

co
st

 (
£)

C
om

m
un

it
y 

P
ri

or
it

y 
(1

 =
 

hi
gh

es
t 

pr
io

ri
ty

) 

 Fo
ot

ba
ll 

Pi
tc

h 
 

Pa
ris

h 
Co

un
ci

l 

Pi
pe

d 
dr

ai
na

ge
 s

ch
em

e 
w

ith
 

sa
nd

 g
ro

ov
es

 t
o 

th
e 

fie
ld

. 
Ty

pi
ca

l c
os

ts
 in

cl
ud

e 
le

ve
lli

ng
, a

ll 
pr

el
im

in
ar

ie
s,

 s
et

tin
g 

up
, 

tr
an

sp
or

t,
 in

st
al

la
tio

n 
of

 p
ip

e 
dr

ai
na

ge
 s

ch
em

e,
 in

st
al

la
tio

n 
of

 
sa

nd
 g

ro
ov

es
, a

pp
lic

at
io

n 
of

 
fe

rt
ili

ze
rs

, s
ee

di
ng

 a
nd

 m
ak

in
g 

go
od

 

To
 e

na
bl

e 
th

e 
fa

ci
lit

y 
to

 b
e 

us
ea

bl
e/

su
st

ai
na

bl
e 

£4
2,

35
0

1 

Ca
r 

pa
rk

 a
nd

 s
er

vi
ce

s 
Pa

ris
h 

Co
un

ci
l 

W
e 

w
ill

 a
ls

o 
ha

ve
 t

o 
pa

y 
fo

r 
w

at
er

 a
nd

 e
le

ct
ric

ity
 t

o 
be

 
co

nn
ec

te
d 

an
d 

w
ill

 a
ls

o 
ha

ve
 t

o 
cr

ea
te

 a
 c

ar
 p

ar
ki

ng
 a

re
a 

To
 e

na
bl

e 
th

e 
fa

ci
lit

y 
to

 b
e 

us
ea

bl
e/

su
st

ai
na

bl
e 

£3
8,

00
0

2 

Re
cr

ea
tio

n 
fie

ld
 

Pa
ris

h 
Co

un
ci

l 

Al
l w

ea
th

er
 s

ur
fa

ce
 f

or
 7

-a
-s

id
e 

fo
ot

ba
ll 

(a
nd

 o
th

er
 s

po
rt

s)
 

si
tu

at
ed

 in
 t

he
 r

ec
re

at
io

n 
fie

ld
.  

G
oa

lp
os

ts
 a

re
 a

lre
ad

y 
in

si
tu

. 

To
 e

na
bl

e 
7-

a-
si

de
 f

oo
tb

al
l 

(a
nd

 o
th

er
 s

po
rt

s)
 t

o 
be

 
pl

ay
ed

 a
t 

al
l t

im
e 

£4
5,

00
0

3 

 Pa
vi

lio
n 

 
 

Pa
ris

h 
Co

un
ci

l 

Co
st

 o
f 

er
ec

tin
g 

a 
bu

ild
in

g 
fo

r 
us

e 
as

 a
 p

av
ili

on
 t

o 
in

cl
ud

e 
al

l 
w

in
do

w
s,

 d
oo

rs
, l

oc
ks

, i
nt

er
na

l 
w

al
ls

, s
ho

w
er

s 
et

c.
 

To
 e

nc
ou

ra
ge

 m
or

e 
us

e 
of

 
th

e 
fa

ci
lit

ie
s 

£3
0,

00
0

4 

 

Page 134


	Agenda
	3 Financial Strategy 2014/15 to 2023/24 (Revised)
	4 Council Performance 2013-14 (Quarter 4)
	5 Waste Services Comprehensive Review
	6 Establishment of Local Authority Economic Development Company
	7 Review of Polling Districts and Polling Places - Results of Consultation
	8 Policy for the Provision of Sanitary Accommodation for the Public
	9 Food Service Plan 2014/2016, Food and Environment Sampling Policy and Food Safety Enforcement Policy
	10 Environmental Health Enforcement Strategy and Policy
	11 Health and Safety Enforcement Policy - Revision
	12 Public Open Space, Sport and Recretation Plans

